Public Document Pack

Notice of meeting and agenda

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2)

10.00 am Wednesday, 2nd September, 2020

Meeting will be held by Teams

This is a public meeting and members of the public are welcome watch the live webcast

on the Council’s website.

Contacts
Email: blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk
Tel: 0131 529 4085

*€DINBVRGH-*

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




1. Appointment of Convener

1.1 The Local Review Body is invited to appoint a Convener from its
membership.

2. Order of Business

21 Including any notices of motion and any other items of business
submitted as urgent for consideration at the meeting.

3. Declaration of Interests

3.1 Members should declare any financial and non-financial interests
they have in the items of business for consideration, identifying
the relevant agenda item and the nature of their interest.

4. Minutes

4.1 Minute of the Local Review Body (Panel 2) — 5 August 2020 — 7-16
submitted for approval as a correct record

5. Local Review Body - Procedure

5.1 Note of the outline procedure for consideration of all Requests for 17 - 20
Review

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2) - 2 Page 2 of 6

September 2020



6. Requests for Review

6.1 Bonnington Farm Bonnington Kirknewton — Erection of steel 21 - 152
portal frame agricultural building - application no. 19/05171/FUL

(@) Decision Notice and Report of Handling
(b) Notice of Review and Supporting Documents
(c) Further Supporting Documents

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only.

6.2 37 Burns Street Edinburgh — Part change of use to form artists 153 - 184
residence within existing studio building - application no.
20/01176/FUL

(@) Decision Notice and Report of Handling
(b) Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only.

6.3 131 Mayfield Road, Edinburgh - Single storey extension and 185 - 220
balcony to rear, replacement external stair and French doors to
front of property - application no. 20/00455/FUL

(@) Decision Notice and Report of Handling
(b) Notice of Review and Supporting Documents

Note: The applicant has requested that the review proceed on the
basis of an assessment of the review documents only.

7. Extracts of Relevant Policies from the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2) - 2 Page 3 of 6
September 2020



71

Extracts of Relevant Policies from the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan for the above review cases

Local Development Plan Online

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 1 (Design Quality
and Context)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 4 (Development
Design - Impact on Setting)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 5 (Development
Design Amenity)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 12 (Alterations
and Extensions)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 (Conservation
Areas - Development)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 10 (Development
in the Green Belt and Countryside)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 11 (Special
Landscape Areas)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 16 (Species
Protection)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Env 21 (Flood
Protection)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy Policy Hou 5
(Conversion to Housing)

8. Non-Statutory Guidance

8.1 9.1 Edinburgh Design Guidance
9.2 Guidance for Householders
9.3 Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas
9.4 Development in the Countryside and Greenbelt
9.5 Guidance for Businesses
9.6  Craigmillar Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal
Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2) - 2 Page 4 of 6

September 2020


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/25264/edinburgh-local-development-plan
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/local-development-plan-guidance/edinburgh-design-guidance?documentId=12559&categoryId=20069
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/27026/for-householders
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/27028/listed-building-and-conservation-areas
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/24491/guidelines-on-development-in-the-countryside-and-green-belt
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/downloads/file/27027/for-businesses
https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/directory-record/1099413/craigmillar-park-conservation-area

Note: The above policy background papers are available to view on the Council’s
website www.edinburgh.gov.uk under Planning and Building Standards/local and
strategic development plans/planning guidelines/conservation areas, or follow the links
as above.

Laurence Rockey

Head of Strategy and Communications

Membership Panel

Councillor Chas Booth, Councillor Maureen Child, Councillor Rob Munn, Councillor Hal
Osler and Councillor Cameron Rose

Information about the Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2)

The City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body (LRB) has been established by the
Council in terms of the Town and Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local
Review Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008. The LRB’s remit is to determine any
request for a review of a decision on a planning application submitted in terms of the
Regulations.

The LRB comprises a panel of five Councillors drawn from the eleven members of the
Planning Committee. The LRB usually meets every two weeks, with the members
rotating in two panels of five Councillors.

It usually meets in the Dean of Guild Court Room in the City Chambers, High Street,
Edinburgh. Meetings are currently being held remotely in order to comply with the
Scottish Government’s recommendation to practice social distancing and the live
webcast can be viewed from the Council’s Webcast Library.

Further information

Members of the LRB may appoint a substitute from the pool of trained members of the
Planning Committee. No other member of the Council may substitute for a substantive
member. Members appointing a substitute are asked to notify Committee Services (as
detailed below) as soon as possible

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2) - 2 Page 5 of 6
September 2020


http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/
https://edinburgh.public-i.tv/core/portal/home

If you have any questions about the agenda or meeting arrangements, please contact
Blair Ritchie, Committee Services, City of Edinburgh Council, Business Centre 2.1,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh EH8 8BG, Tel 0131 529 4085, email
blair.ritchie@edinburgh.gov.uk.

A copy of the agenda and papers for this meeting will be available for inspection prior to
the meeting at the main reception office, City Chambers, High Street, Edinburgh.

The agenda, minutes and public reports for this meeting and all the main Council
committees can be viewed online by going to www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol.

Unless otherwise indicated on the agenda, no elected members of the Council,
applicant, agent or other member of the public may address the meeting.

Webcasting of Council Meetings

Please note this meeting may be filmed for live and subsequent broadcast via the
Council’s internet site — at the start of the meeting the Convener will confirm if all or part
of the meeting is being filmed.

The Council is a Data Controller under the General Data Protection Regulation and
Data Protection Act 2018.

We broadcast Council meetings to fulfil our public task obligation to enable members of
the public to observe the democratic process.

Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the Council’s
published policy including, but not limited to, for the purpose of keeping historical
records and making those records available via the Council’s internet site.

Any information presented by individuals to the Council at a meeting, in a deputation or
otherwise, in addition to forming part of a webcast that will be held as a historical
record, will also be held and used by the Council in connection with the relevant matter
until that matter is decided or otherwise resolved (including any potential appeals and
other connected processes). Thereafter, that information will continue to be held as
part of the historical record in accordance with the paragraphs above.

If you have any queries regarding this, and, in particular, if you believe that use and/or
storage of any particular information would cause, or be likely to cause, substantial
damage or distress to any individual, please contact Committee Services
(committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk).

Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2) - 2 Page 6 of 6
September 2020


http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/cpol
mailto:committee.services@edinburgh.gov.uk

Minutes

The City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review
Body (Panel 2)

10.00am, Wednesday 5 August 2020

Present: Councillors Booth, Child, Osler and Rose.

1. Appointment of Convener

Councillor Child was appointed as Convener.

2. Minutes

To approve the minute of the Local Review Body (LRB Panel 2) of 27 May 2020 as a
correct record.

3. Planning Local Review Body Procedure

Decision
To note the outline procedure for consideration of reviews.

(Reference — Local Review Body Procedure, submitted)

4, Request for Review — 30 Belmont Gardens, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the proposed additional storey to previously approved side extension at 30 Belmont
Gardens, Edinburgh (14/04547/FUL) as varied (14/04547/VARY) at 30 Belmont
Gardens, Edinburgh. Application no 20/00546/FUL.

Assessment

At the meeting on 5 August 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the notice
of review including a request that the review proceed on the basis of an assessment of
the review documents and a site inspection. The LRB had also been provided with
copies of the decision notice and the report of handling.

The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.

The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01, 02, 03, Scheme 1,
being the drawings shown under the application reference number 20/00546/FUL on
the Council’s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.

The Planning Adviser also brought to the LRB’s attention new information regarding the
examples provided by the appellant of other developments with set back upper storeys

Page 7 *€DINBVRGH*

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL




which had been approved. The LRB decided to accept the new information and
considered this as part of their deliberations.

The LRB, having considered these documents, felt that they had sufficient information
before it and agreed to determine the review using the information circulated.

The LRB in their further deliberations on the matter considered the following:

1) The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 12 (Alterations and Extensions)
2) Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.

‘Guidance for Householders’
3) The procedure used to determine the application.

4) The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

The LRB carefully considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed
planning application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:

e Clarification was sought on which part of the Guidance for Householders was
being breached by the proposal. The Planning Adviser advised that the Report
of Handling referred to the extension being visually prominent and not being
subservient to the existing property.

¢ Whether further visualisation could be given to the mock-ups provided which
demonstrated the property with and without the proposed extension. The only
visuals available were those provided in the meeting papers.

e Doubt was expressed that the proposal would not be subservient to the property
or that it would have a significant visual impact.

e That the photograph provided by the appellant was taken from the edge of the
pavement which did not give the same perspective as the officer presentation.

e That there was some confusion regarding the photograph and the drawing
provided which appeared to depict differences in how set back the proposal
would be.

e Whether the balcony area had been removed and confirmation that there had
been plans for a terrace with glass balustrade in a previous application which
had been removed from this application.

e That the grounds for refusal were not sufficient to uphold the decision by the
Chief Planning Officer.

Conclusion

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB determined that the
proposal would not be contrary to LDP Policies Des 12 or the Guidance for
Householders as it would not result in a sufficiently dominant or incongruous addition.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Bodypégtéug 2020 Page 2 of 9



Decision

To not uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer and to grant planning
permission subject to:

The following informatives:

(@) The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the
expiration of three years from the date of this consent.

(b)  No development shall take place on the site until a ‘Notice of Initiation of
Development’ has been submitted to the Council stating the intended
date on which the development is to commence. Failure to do so
constitutes a breach of planning control under section 123(1) of the Town
and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

(c)  As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the
site, as authorised in the associated grant of permission, a Notice of
Completion of Development must be given in writing to the Council.

(References — Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

5. Request for Review — 3 Fingal Place, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
to convert the existing roof to create a decking area with a sun room attached at 3
Fingal Place, Edinburgh. Application no 20/00099/FUL.

Assessment

At the meeting 5 August 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the notice of
review including a request that the review proceed on the basis of an assessment of
the review documents only. The LRB had also been provided with copies of the
decision notice and the report of handling.

The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.

The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01-03, Scheme 1, being
the drawings shown under the application reference number 20/00099/FUL on the
Council’'s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.

The LRB, having considered these documents, felt that they had sufficient information
before it and agreed to determine the review using the information circulated.

The LRB in their further deliberations on the matter considered the following:

1) The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 4 (Listed Buildings - Alterations
and Extensions)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 6 (Conservation Areas -
Development)

2) Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body %@J@ZOZO Page 3 of 9



‘Guidance for Householders’
‘Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas’
3) The procedure used to determine the application.

4) The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

The LRB carefully considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed
planning application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:

e Further information was requested on the appeal which had been submitted to
the Scottish Government through the DPEA. The Planning Adviser confirmed
that the corresponding Listed Building application had been appealed to the
DPEA, and that this appeal was still in progress.

e Whether there would be a uniformity of the roofline across the terrace. It was
confirmed that the roofline would not be consistent as the proposal would
partially raise the rear roofline of the application site.

e Further information was requested on the materials that would be used if the
roofline was altered. Although there were no materials listed on the drawing
itself, it was assumed that slate would be used to match the existing roof.

e It was confirmed that the category listing for the listed building was Category B.

e Confirmation of the orientation of the proposal was requested which was
demonstrated by the Planning Adviser using the drawings.

e Whether there would be a loss of privacy into neighbouring gardens to the rear
as the parapet appeared to be below head height. The report of handling
determined that there would not be any loss of privacy but it was felt that there
were grounds for concern, as had been raised by the objector. The open
decking area at the rear did have a lower wall which could potentially provide
visibility from above.

e Whether there was no Environmental Assessment due to the application being
refused and confirmation that this was the case. The report of handling
determined there would be no issue for residential amenity in this regard.

e Further information was sought on whether it would only be the sun room
section of the roof which would be extended. From the plans it appeared that the
roof remained low in the decking area. The LRB would have to determine
whether they felt there was an infringement on neighbouring privacy.

e Disagreement with the reasons for refusal was expressed as it was felt that the
change was primarily visible from an aerial view and so would not impact the
character or appearance of the listed building. It was felt that the primary issue in
this case was regarding the amenity for the gardens to the rear.

e Another point of view was that the proposal was not consistent with the
character of the listed building and that it would damage the historic structure,
therefore the reasons for refusal should be upheld.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review BO‘Pa@é”gE@‘ 2020 Page 4 of 9



e However, there was sympathy for the applicant as the LRB understood the
desire for outdoor space given the impact of lockdown due to Covid-19 on
wellbeing.

Conclusion

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB was of the opinion that
no material considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would
lead it to overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.

Decision
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
Reasons for Refusal:

1. The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 4 in
respect of Listed Buildings - Alterations and Extensions, as it impacted on the
character and appearance of the existing listed building.

2. The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in
respect of Conservation Areas - Development, as the proposed decking and
sunroom negatively impact on the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

(References — Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)
Dissent

In accordance with Standing Order 19.13, Councillor Rose requested that his dissent to
the above decision be recorded.

6. Request for Review — 20 Regent Terrace, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for a small glass extension at ground level with spa in basement courtyard and
outhouse at 20 Regent Terrace Place, Edinburgh. Application no 18/08379/FUL.

Assessment

At the meeting 5 August 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the notice of
review including a request that the review proceed on the basis of an assessment of
the review documents only. The LRB had also been provided with copies of the
decision notice and the report of handling.

The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.

The plans used to determine the application were numbered 1-6, Scheme 1, being the
drawings shown under the application reference number 18/08379/FUL on the
Council’'s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.

The Planning Adviser also brought to the LRB’s attention new information provided by
the appellant regarding examples of other developments to the rear of the properties on
the street. The LRB decided to accept the new information and considered this as part
of their deliberations.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body %@JS}_&OZO Page 5 of 9



The LRB, having considered these documents, felt that they had sufficient information
before it and agreed to determine the review using the information circulated.

The LRB in their further deliberations on the matter considered the following:

1) The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 12 (Alterations and Extensions)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 3 (Listed Buildings - Setting)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 4 (Listed Buildings - Alterations
and Extensions)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 6 (Conservation Areas -
Development)

2) Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.
‘Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas’
‘The New Town Conservation Area Character Appraisal’
‘Managing Change in the Historic Environment: Extensions’
3) The procedure used to determine the application.

4) The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

The LRB carefully considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed
planning application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:

e Further information on the appeal for Listed Building Consent was requested.
The Planning Adviser advised that the case officer would have written the report
for both applications concurrently. The Listed Building Consent had not been
determined at that point but was refused on 27 February 2020, at the same time
that the application for planning consent was refused. There was no record of an
appeal for Listed Building Consent. Therefore, if the application was not
successful they would still require Listed Building Consent.

e Clarification was requested on the grounds for refusal which were confirmed to
be on LDP Policies Env 3 and Env 4. The report of handling determined that Env
6 would not apply as the proposed extension would be to the rear of the property
and was not public so would impact on the listed building rather than the
conservation area.

e Confirmation was sought on whether part of the original listed building would be
removed and to what extent. An original window and part of the stone work
beneath it would be removed to become a door into the extension.

e It was confirmed that the category listing for the listed building was Category A.

e Whether a mixed decision would be possible in order to allow the spa at the
lower level. It was felt this would not be feasible without granting the rest of the
application.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Bocpa@éuq_uz 2020 Page 6 of 9



e Whether the proposal would also require an alteration to the lower part of the
building for the lower level spa and confirmation that the basement well would be
developed and covered over to create the spa..

e Whether the rear extensions to other properties on the street would have
involved adjustments to the structure of the buildings. The Planning Adviser
could not confirm but felt that minor adjustments were likely. However, these
extensions were added before the buildings had become listed.

Conclusion

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB was of the opinion that
no material considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would
lead it to overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.

Decision
To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.
Reasons for Refusal:

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Env 4 and Env 3 and
HES guidance in respect of Extensions - as the proposals did not have special regard
to the desirability of preserving the building and its setting and would adversely impact
on its special architectural and historic interest.

(References — Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

7. Request for Review — 8 Saughton Road North, Edinburgh

Details were submitted of a request for a review for the refusal of planning permission
for the proposed change of use from Class 4 (business / light industrial) to Class 9
(private residential) with the formation of four new residential flats at 8 Saughton Road
North, Edinburgh. Application no 19/05935/FUL.

Assessment

At the meeting 5 August 2020, the LRB had been provided with copies of the notice of
review including a request that the review proceed on the basis of an assessment of
the review documents only. The LRB had also been provided with copies of the
decision notice and the report of handling.

The LRB heard from the Planning Adviser who summarised the issues raised and
presented the drawings of the development and responded to further questions.

The plans used to determine the application were numbered 01-05, Scheme 1, being
the drawings shown under the application reference number 19/05935/FUL on the
Council’'s Planning and Building Standards Online Services.

The LRB, having considered these documents, felt that they had sufficient information
before it and agreed to determine the review using the information circulated.

The LRB in their further deliberations on the matter considered the following:

1) The development plan, including the relevant policies of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body %1@131%)20 Page 7 of 9



2)

3)
4)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 1 (Design Quality and Context)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 4 (Development Design - Impact
on Setting)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy DES 5 (Development Design -
Amenity)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy ENV 6 (Conservation Areas -
Development)

Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 1 (Housing Development)
Edinburgh Local Development Plan Policy HOU 4 (Housing Density)
Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines.

‘The Corstorphine Conservation Area Character Appraisal’

‘Edinburgh Design Guidance’

‘Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas’

The procedure used to determine the application.

The reasons for refusal and the arguments put forward in the request for a
review.

The LRB carefully considered all the arguments put before it in respect of the proposed
planning application and discussion took place in relation to the following issues:

It was felt that there was a significant discrepancy between the floor plans
indicated by the appellant and those indicated by the presentation and
clarification was sought on this issue. The Planning Adviser advised that she
had contacted the case officer for this application. The case officer explained
that her calculations had removed the non-habitable areas. The Planning
Adviser stated that the Edinburgh Design Guidance gives overall space
standards, but does not require non-habitable spaces to be removed. However,
no further clarification was possible in this instance to explain the discrepancy in
sizes between the appellant’s and the case officer’s floor area calculations.

Clarification was sought on whether the proposal was requesting a change of
use within this application as this had already been granted in a previous
application. It was confirmed that change of use had been granted in 2018 but
had not been implemented and so the change of use was still required.

Confirmation was sought that the application was to be assessed on its own
merits independent of the previous decision. The Planning Adviser confirmed
this was the case.

It was felt that ground 3 under the reasons for refusal as outlined in the report of
handling would not be appropriate given that the LRB did not have enough
information to take a position on this. However, reasons 1, 2 and 4 would be
applicable and there was enough information on the whole to uphold the
decision by the Chief Planning Officer on these three grounds.

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Bocpa@éuqy&t 2020 Page 8 of 9



Conclusion

Having taken all the above matters into consideration, the LRB was of the opinion that
no material considerations had been presented in the request for a review which would
lead it to overturn the determination by the Chief Planning Officer.

Decision

To uphold the decision by the Chief Planning Officer to refuse planning permission.

Reasons for Refusal:

1.

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 1 in
respect of Design Quality and Context, as the proposal failed to draw on the
positive qualities of the area and would be damaging to the character and
appearance of the surrounding area.

The proposal was contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 4 in
respect of Development Design - Impact on Setting, as the proposed scale, form
and design by virtue of being unsympathetic to the neighbouring building which it
would adjoin would not have a positive impact on its surroundings.

The proposal was contrary to Local Development Plan Policy Env 6 in respect of
the detrimental impact on the character and appearance of the conservation
area by introducing an incongruous intervention in the street and to the
conservation area.

(References — Decision Notice, Report of Handling and Notice of Review, submitted)

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body %1@1315)20 Page 9 of 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 5.1

City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body (the LRB)

General

1. Each meeting of the LRB shall appoint a Convener. A quorum of a meeting
of the LRB will be three members.

2. The Clerk will introduce and deal with statutory items (Order of Business
and Declarations of Interest) and will introduce each request for review.

3. The LRB will normally invite the planning adviser to highlight the issues
raised in the review.

4, The LRB will only accept new information where there are exceptional
circumstances as to why it was not available at the time of the planning
application. The LRB will formally decide whether this new information
should be taken into account in the review.

The LRB may at any time ask questions of the planning adviser, the Clerk,
or the legal adviser, if present.

5. Having considered the applicant’s preference for the procedure to be used,
and other information before it, the LRB shall decide how to proceed with
the review.

6. If the LRB decides that it has sufficient information before it, it may proceed
to consider the review using only the information circulated to it. The LRB
may decide it has insufficient information at any stage prior to the formal
decision being taken.

7. If the LRB decides that it does not have sufficient information before it, it
will decide which one of, or combination of, the following procedures will be
used:

« further written submissions;
» the holding of one or more hearing sessions; and/or

* an accompanied or unaccompanied inspection of the land to which the
review relates.

8. Whichever option the LRB selects, it shall comply with legislation set out in
the Town and Country Planning (Schemes of Delegation and Local Review
Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2013 (the Regulations).

The LRB may hold a pre-examination meeting to decide upon the manner
in which the review, or any part of it, is to be conducted.

Page 17



If the LRB decides to seek further information, it will specify what further
information is required in a written notice to be issued to the applicant,
Chief Planning Officer and any interested parties. The content of any
further submissions must be restricted to the matters specified in the written
notice.

In determining the outcome of the review, the LRB will have regard to the
requirements of paragraphs 11 and 12 below.

The LRB may adjourn any meeting to such time and date as it may then or
later decide.

Considering the Request for Review

10.

11.

12.

Unless material considerations indicate otherwise, the LRB’s determination
must be made in accordance with the development plan that is legally in
force. Any un-adopted development plan does not have the same weight
but will be a material consideration. The LRB is making a hew decision on
the application and must take the ‘de novo’ approach.

The LRB will;

. Identify the relevant policies of the Development Plan and interpret
any provisions relating to the proposal, for and against, and decide
whether the proposal accords with the Development Plan;

. identify all other material planning considerations relevant to the
proposal and assess the weight to be given to these, for and against,
and whether there are considerations of such weight as to indicate
that the Development Plan should not be given priority;

. take into account only those issues which are relevant planning
considerations;

. ensure that the relevant provisions of the Planning (Listed Buildings
and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act 1997 are assessed when
the review relates to a listed building and/or conservation area; and

. in coming to a determination, only review the information presented
in the Notice of Review or that from further procedure.

The LRB will then determine the review. It may:

. uphold the officer’'s determination;

. uphold the officer's determination subject to amendments or
additions to the reasons for refusal;

. grant planning permission, in full or in part;

. impose conditions, or vary conditions imposed in the original

determination;

. determine the review in cases of non-determination.

Page 18



Procedure after determination

13.
14.

15.
16.

The Clerk will record the LRB’s decision.

In every case, the LRB must give notice of the decision (“a decision notice”)
to the applicant. Every person who has made, and has not withdrawn,
representations in respect of the review, will be notified of the location
where a copy of the decision notice is available for inspection. Depending
on the decision, the planning adviser may provide assistance with the
framing of conditions of consent or with amended reasons for refusal.

The Decision Notice will comply with the requirements of regulation 22.

The decision of the LRB is final, subject to the right of the applicant to
guestion the validity of the decision by making an application to the Court of
Session. Such application must be made within 6 weeks of the date of the
decision. The applicant will be advised of these and other rights by means
of a Notice as specified in Schedule 2 to the regulations.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



“ F[S1BVICTE -

THECTY OF COCHOURG S COUHCIL

JTS (Construction) Ltd. Robert Robertson & Son.
Station Works FAO: Mr Alistair Robertson
Station Road West Edge Farm
Duns 328 Lasswade Road
TD113EJ Edinburgh

UK

EH17 8SD

Decision date: 9 March 2020

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Erection of steel portal frame Agricultural Building.
At Bonnington Farm Bonnington Kirknewton EH27 8BB

Application No: 19/05171/FUL

DECISION NOTICE

With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 29 October
2019, this has been decided by Local Fast Track Decision. The Council in exercise of
its powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now
determines the application as Granted in accordance with the particulars given in the
application.

Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;

1. Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has
been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of:

- monitoring of any standing water within the site temporary or permanent

- sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) - Such schemes shall comply with
Advice Note 3 'Wildlife

Hazards' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/).

- management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which
may be attractive

to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice
Note 3 'Wildlife

Eo%g&cln%s , Planning Officer, Local 2 Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3422, Email robert.mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG



Hazards.'

- reinstatement of grass areas

- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and
species of plants that

are allowed to grow

- which waste materials can be brought on to the site/what if any exceptions e.g. green
waste

- monitoring of waste imports (although this may be covered by the site licence)

- physical arrangements for the collection (including litter bins) and storage of
putrescible waste,

arrangements for and frequency of the removal of putrescible waste

- signs deterring people from feeding the birds.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion
of the development and

shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the plan
are to take place unless

first submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

2. No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has
secured and implemented a programme of archaeological work (historic building
survey, excavation, analysis & reporting, publication) in accordance with a written
scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by
the Planning Authority.

3. Prior to any work commencing on site a surface water management plan shall
be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority. Details of
the self certification process and guidance can be found in the link below.

CEC Flood Planning Self-Certification Requirements and Guidance:

http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/info/20045/flooding/1584/flood_planning_application

4, Prior to work commencing on site further details of all external materials,
including colours, proposed for the external walls and roof of the development, hereby
approved, shall be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning
Authority.

Reasons:-
1. It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its
attractiveness to birds which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the

operation of Edinburgh Airport.

2. In order to secure and record any archeological artifacts within the site.

Page 22



3. In order to ensure all concerns in relation to surface water management are
addressed.

4, In order to protect the special landscape area.

Informatives:-
It should be noted that:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration
of three years from the date of this consent.

2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of
Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on which
the development is to commence. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of planning
control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as
authorised in the associated grant of permission, a ‘Notice of Completion of
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council.

4. The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be
constructed to allow access to

all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The
owner/occupier must not allow gulls,

to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made weekly or sooner if bird
activity dictates, during the

breeding season. Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and
the roof checked regularly

to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or loafing
must be dispersed by the

owner/occupier when detected or when requested by Edinburgh Airport Airside
Operations staff. In some instances

it may be necessary to contact Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff before bird
dispersal takes place. The

owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier
must obtain the appropriate

licences where applicable from Scottish Natural Heritage before the removal of nests
and eggs.

5. Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be
required during its

construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to the requirement
within the British

Page 23



Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult
the aerodrome before

erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice
Note 4, 'Cranes'

(available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safe

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.

Drawings 01;02;03a;04;05;06,
represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can be found on the
Planning and Building Standards Online Services

The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:

The application complies with adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy. The
proposal is for an acceptable Green Belt use and the size and form do not have an
adverse impact on the rural character or landscape quality of the area. Residential
amenity is unaffected and, subject to conditions, the proposals are acceptable. There
are no material planning considerations to outweigh this conclusion.

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.

Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Robert
Mclintosh directly on 0131 529 3422.

T R Leecdyg )
/
Chief Planning Officer

PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 24


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planning-applications/apply-planning-permission/4?documentId=12565&categoryId=20067
https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

NOTES

1.If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries about the Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordance with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 25



Report of Handling

Application for Planning Permission 19/05171/FUL
At Bonnington Farm, Bonnington, Kirknewton
Erection of steel portal frame Agricultural Building.

Item Local Fast Track Decision
Application number 19/05171/FUL

Wards B02 - Pentland Hills
Summary

The application complies with adopted Edinburgh Local Development Plan policy. The
proposal is for an acceptable Green Belt use and the size and form do not have an
adverse impact on the rural character or landscape quality of the area. Residential
amenity is unaffected and, subject to conditions, the proposals are acceptable. There
are no material planning considerations to outweigh this conclusion.

Links

Policies and quidance for LDESO1, LDPP, LDESO01, LDESO04, LDES05, LEN10,
this application LEN11, LEN16, LEN21, NSG, NSGCGB,

Development Management report of handling — Page 1 of 13 19/05171/FUL

Page 26



Report of handling

Recommendations

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below.

Background

2.1 Site description

The application sites lies on the west side of Edinburgh in a countryside area
surrounded by agricultural uses, just off the B7030, Bonnington Road. There are a
number of large steel portal frame agricultural buildings already within the site as well
as an access road and hardstanding. There are a selection of residential properties to
the east and to the west of the site.

2.2 Site History

There is no relevant planning history for this site.

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal

The application is for planning permission for the erection of a steel portal frame
agricultural building. The proposed building will have a gross floorspace of 1420 square
metres. It will be utilised as a grain store and dryer. A new concrete area within the
farm and retaining walls shall also be formed.

3.2 Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Do the proposals comply with the development plan?

If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?

If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?

3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:

Development Management report of handling — Page 2 of 13 19/05171/FUL

Page 27



a) the principle of the proposal is acceptable;

b) the design, form and mass detract from the landscape quality and/or rural character
of the area;

c) the proposal will have an unacceptable impact in terms of amenity;

d) other material planning matters have been addressed; and

e) any comments have been addressed.

a) Principle of Development

The site lies within a countryside policy area and Policy Env 10 (Development in the
Green Belt and Countryside) states that development will only be permitted where it
meets one of the four criteria and would not detract from the landscape quality and/or
rural character of the area. In this case, criteria a) applies and this states the
development should be:

For the purposes of agriculture, woodland and forestry, horticulture or countryside
recreation, or where a countryside location is essential and provided any buildings,
structures or hard standing areas are of a scale and quality of design appropriate to the
use.

In addition to the statutory policy, the non-statutory Guidance on Development in the
Countryside and Green Belt (February 2019) provides clarity on the definition of
agricultural buildings; it states

For the breeding and keeping of livestock, storage of crops or machinery (excluding for
the storage of goods where this is unconnected with any form of agricultural activity.

In conclusion, the principle of the agricultural building proposed is acceptable provided
it would not detract from the landscape quality and/or rural character of the area.

b) Impact of Landscape Quality/Rural Character

LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) requires new development to be of a
high standard of design, and to create or contribute to a sense of place. In addition,
LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design -Impact on Setting) requires new development
to have a positive impact on its surroundings, including surrounding landscape and
townscape character, and impact on existing views. This includes in terms of height
and form, scale and proportions, positioning of buildings, and materials and detailing.

LDP policy Env 11 (Special Landscape Areas) states that planning permission will not
be granted for development which would have a significant adverse impact upon the
special character or qualities of the Special Landscape Area (SLA).

The application site falls right on the edge of the defined Ratho Hills SLA. The 2010
review of Local Landscape Designations states that the Ratho Hills are a unique
landscape feature within rural Edinburgh. Despite the nearby presence of the M8 and
quarrying activity out with the viewshed, the combination of landform and land cover is
of local scenic value and contributes to Ratho's identity and relatively tranquil setting.

Development Management report of handlinq}age 28Page 30f13 19/05171/FUL



The site lies just off Bonnington Road (B7030). Surrounding the site is largely
agricultural land which is under the ownership of the applicant. However there are a
few residential properties directly to the east and west of the site. The surrounding rural
landscape has an open aspect, with views towards the Forth Bridges and the Lomond
and Ochil hills to the north, and to the Pentland hills to the south.

The site lies on a slight ridge running east to west, and although the surrounding
farmland is undulating, the existing selection of large grey corrugated metal structures
are clearly visible especially from the B7030 heading south. Although the site does lie
within the defined SLA, it is on the boundary, and this specific site cannot be said to
contribute to the landscape integrity of the area.

The landscape quality of the site is therefore already limited. Its rural character exists
only in that these are the type of buildings which must be expected as part of long
established agricultural farming practices within the countryside.

The agricultural building will be constructed from concrete wall panels, steel profile wall
cladding and a pitched fibre cement roof, very similar to the buildings already on the
site. It will measure 61 metres in length by 24.4 metres in width. It will have a maximum
height of approximately 12.5 metres.

If heading north along the B7030 the proposal shall be shielded to a good extent by the
existing structures that will remain on the site. Views from the A71 to the south will also
be largely unaffected as there will still be three large sheds positioned in front of the
proposal with the maximum height of the proposed building extending between 2 and 4
metres (approximately) above the remaining predominant structures.

It is acknowledged that heading south on the B7030 the proposed building will be taller
than existing structures on the site and will be highly visible. However, although the
proposed building is large (1420 square metres) its overall floor space shall be less
than the selection of buildings currently on the site which will be demolished in order to
facilitate the development. There is currently a large farm building which is sited east-
west to the north of the site which will be demolished. The removal of this structure
should mitigate the overall physical impact of the development when viewed travelling
south along the B7030.

The development is of a scale appropriate to its use and given the existing built
environment of the site the development will blend in and will have a minimal impact on
the rural character of the surrounding area.

It must also be acknowledged that this is a long established farm with a functional
cluster of agricultural buildings constructed within this particular site. The applicant has
stated that the existing agricultural buildings are no longer suitable for the storage of
grain and the proposal will help them comply with new regulations while making the
farm more productive and safer.

Overall, given its purpose and the existing surrounding built environment it is
compatible with the rural character of the area in terms of height, form, mass, design
and materials and there will be no adverse impacts on landscape quality.

The proposals comply with polices Des 1, Des 4 and Env 11.

Development Management report of handling ‘Page Zgge 4 0of 13 19/05171/FUL



c) Amenity

LDP policy Des 5 states that planning permission will be granted for development
where it is demonstrated that the amenity of neighbouring developments is not
adversely affected.

It is noted that there is a cottage located to the west of the site, on the other side of the
B7030, approximately 30 metres away from the proposal. Given the separation
distances involved there are no concerns with regards to the potential loss of
sunlight/daylight resulting to this property as a result of the development. Once the
shed has been constructed, it is acknowledged that the immediate outlook of this
cottage shall be of their garden, the road and then the large proposed shed. However,
this cottage already overlooks a large area of agricultural sheds. The applicant could
also construct a smaller shed on this site, which could have a broadly similar impact in
terms of the cottages outlook, under the terms of the agricultural permitted
development rights.

It is also acknowledged that the proposed structure will be sited further away from the
properties which are located to the east of the site.
The proposal complies with LDP policy Des 5.

d) Other Planning Considerations

Access and Road Safety

This is already a long established farm with an existing access road to the grain stores.
No alterations to the accesses are proposed. Indeed the proposal will permit a new
turning area within the site. The Roads Authority was consulted as part of the
assessment of the application and had no objections.

Flooding and Drainage

LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) requires that development does not result in
increased flood risk on or off site. SEPA flood maps do not indicate that the site is in an
area at risk of flooding, either pluvial or fluvial. There is no known risk to flooding on the
site. Much of the site is already covered in concrete/hard landscaping. A new concrete
yard area is also proposed. The consent has been conditioned to ensure that a suitable
surface water management plan must been submitted for the written approval of the
Council as Planning Authority prior to any work commencing on site.

The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 21.

Ecology

Development Management report of handlinq}age 30Page 50f13 19/05171/FUL



LDP policy Env 16 states that planning permission will not be granted for development
that would have an adverse impact on species protected under European or UK law.

The Councils ecologist was consulted as part of the assessment of the application and
confirmed that they had no objections.

The proposal complies with LDP policy Env 16.

d) Public Comments

None received.

It is recommended that this application be Granted subject to the details below.

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives
Conditions:-

1. Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has
been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of:

- monitoring of any standing water within the site temporary or permanent

- sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) - Such schemes shall comply with
Advice Note 3 'Wildlife

Hazards' (available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/).

- management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which
may be attractive

to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice
Note 3 'Wildlife

Hazards.'

- reinstatement of grass areas

- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and
species of plants that

are allowed to grow

- which waste materials can be brought on to the site/what if any exceptions e.g. green
waste

- monitoring of waste imports (although this may be covered by the site licence)

- physical arrangements for the collection (including litter bins) and storage of
putrescible waste,

arrangements for and frequency of the removal of putrescible waste

- signs deterring people from feeding the birds.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion
of the development and

shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the plan
are to take place unless

Development Management report of handling ‘Page SFTge 6 of 13 19/05171/FUL



first submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

2. No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has
secured and implemented a programme of archaeological work (historic building
survey, excavation, analysis & reporting, publication) in accordance with a written
scheme of investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by
the Planning Authority.

3. Prior to any work commencing on site a surface water management plan shall
be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority. Details of the
self certification process and guidance can be found in the link below.

CEC Flood Planning Self-Certification Requirements and Guidance:
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/info/20045/flooding/1584/flood_planning_application

4. Prior to work commencing on site further details of all external materials,
including colours, proposed for the external walls and roof of the development, hereby
approved, shall be submitted for the written approval of the Council as Planning
Authority.

Reasons:-
1. It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its

attractiveness to birds which could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the
operation of Edinburgh Airport.

2. In order to secure and record any archeological artifacts within the site.

3. In order to ensure all concerns in relation to surface water management are
addressed.

4. In order to protect the special landscape area.

Informatives
It should be noted that:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration
of three years from the date of this consent.

2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of
Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on which the
development is to commence. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of planning control,
under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Development Management report of handlingl;}age 32Page 7 0of 13 19/05171/FUL



3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as
authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council.

4. The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be
constructed to allow access to

all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The
owner/occupier must not allow gulls,

to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made weekly or sooner if bird
activity dictates, during the

breeding season. Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and
the roof checked regularly

to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or loafing
must be dispersed by the

owner/occupier when detected or when requested by Edinburgh Airport Airside
Operations staff. In some instances

it may be necessary to contact Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff before bird
dispersal takes place. The

owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier
must obtain the appropriate

licences where applicable from Scottish Natural Heritage before the removal of nests
and eggs.

5. Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be
required during its

construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant's attention to the requirement
within the British

Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult
the aerodrome before

erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice
Note 4, '‘Cranes’

(available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safe

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact

4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact

5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:

The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human
rights.

Development Management report of handling ‘Page 3F39e 8 of 13 19/05171/FUL



Consultation and engagement

6.1 Pre-Application Process
There is no pre-application process history.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments

No representations have been received.

Background reading / external references

e To view details of the application go to

e Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handlingp—age 34Page 90of 13 19/05171/FUL


https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

Statutory Development
Plan Provision

Date registered 29 October 2019
Drawing 01;02;03a;04;05;06,
numbers/Scheme

Scheme 1
David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE

The City of Edinburgh Council

Contact: Robert Mcintosh, Planning Officer
E-mail:robert. mcintosh@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3422

Links - Policies

Relevant Policies:

LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated.

Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan.

LDP Policy Des 1 (Design Quality and Context) sets general criteria for assessing
design quality and requires an overall design concept to be demonstrated.

LDP Policy Des 4 (Development Design - Impact on Setting) sets criteria for assessing
the impact of development design against its setting.

LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.

LDP Policy Env 10 (Development in the Green Belt and Countryside) identifies the
types of development that will be permitted in the Green Belt and Countryside.

LDP Policy Env 11 (Special Landscape Areas) establishes a presumption against
development that would adversely affect Special Landscape Areas.

Development Management report of handling ‘Page SFBge 10 of 13 19/05171/FUL



LDP Policy Env 16 (Species Protection) sets out species protection requirements for
new development.

LDP Policy Env 21 (Flood Protection) sets criteria for assessing the impact of
development on flood protection.

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines
Non-statutory guidelines DEVELOPMENT IN THE COUNTRYSIDE AND GREEN

BELT, provide guidance on development in the Green Belt and Countryside in support
of relevant local plan policies.

Development Management report of handlingl;}age 36Page 11 0of 13 19/05171/FUL



Appendix 1

Consultations

Environmental Protection

The applicant proposes replacing agricultural buildings with a new larger building on
the same area. Environmental Protection would offer no objection however would
recommend that the applicant investigates the installation of photo voltaic panels on the
proposed roof area.

Therefore, Environmental Protection offer no objection to this proposal.

Roads Authority

No objections.

Development Management report of handling ‘Page 3P7|ge 12 of 13 19/05171/FUL



END

Development Management report of handlinq}age 38Page 13 0of 13 19/05171/FUL



Edinburgh Airport

Edinburgh Airport
EH12 9DN
Scotland

Robert McIntosh
City of Edinburgh Council
By email

W: edinburghairport.com

13 December 2019

Dear Robert

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL

Development: Erection of a steel agricultural building at Bonnington Farm, Kirknewton EH27 8BB
Our Ref: EDI2845

The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and could
conflict with safeguarding criteria unless any planning permission granted is subject to the conditions

detailed below:

Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan

Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of:

- monitoring of any standing water within the site temporary or permanent

- sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) — Such schemes shall comply with Advice Note 3 'Wildlife
Hazards’ (available at http.//www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/).

- management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which may be attractive
to nesting, roosting and “loafing” birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice Note 3 ‘Wildlife
Hazards.’

- reinstatement of grass areas

- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and species of plants that
are allowed to grow

- which waste materials can be brought on to the site/what if any exceptions e.g. green waste

- monitoring of waste imports (although this may be covered by the site licence)

- physical arrangements for the collection (including litter bins) and storage of putrescible waste,
arrangements for and frequency of the removal of putrescible waste

- signs deterring people from feeding the birds.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of the development and
shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the plan are to take place unless

first submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason: It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds which could
endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Edinburgh Airport.

Page 39

=]

A



The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be constructed to allow access to
all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The owner/occupier must not allow gulls,
to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the
breeding season. Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked regularly
to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the
owner/occupier when detected or when requested by Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff. In some instances
it may be necessary to contact Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The
owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain the appropriate
licences where applicable from Scottish Natural Heritage before the removal of nests and eggs.

We would also make the following observations:
Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant’s attention to the requirement within the British
Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before
erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes’
(available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/)

It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning approval. Where a
Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice of Edinburgh Airport, or not to attach
conditions which Edinburgh Airport has advised, it shall notify Edinburgh Airport, and the Civil Aviation
Authority and the Scottish Ministers as specified in the Safeguarding of Aerodromes Direction 2003.

Yours sincerely

9

CAave o~

Claire Brown

Edinburgh Airport Limited

0131 344 3359
safeguarding@edinburghairport.com

Page 40


http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/
mailto:safeguarding@edinburghairport.com

*€EDINBVRGH-

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL

Memorandum

To Head of Planning
City of Edinburgh Council
Planning and Transport
Place
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG

F.A.O Robert Mclntosh

From John A Lawson Your 19/05171/FUL
ref
Date 9™ December 2019 Our ref 19/05171/FUL

Dear Robert,
Bonnington Farm Bonnington

Further to your consultation request | would like to make the following comments and recommendations
concerning this application for the erection of a steel portal frame agricultural building.

Historically the site of Bonnington Farm has been associated with farming since at least the 14" century,
occurring at the eastern end of the suspected limits for the medieval fermtoun of the same name. This
settlement was first recorded as Bondington around 1315 and by the end of the medieval period may have
supported up to forty families (Harris, Place Names of Edinburgh). Although much altered with later
additions the core of the present farmhouse would appear to have been constructed during the period of
agricultural improvement of the late-18th and early-19" centuries as they relate to buildings shown on the
1%t Edition OS map of 1852.

This map also depicts a large rectangular steading on the site of the current agricultural buildings. The
eastern range of the modern farm buildings is formed by the outer walls of these earlier 19" century
steading buildings.

The eastern side of the current farm buildings contain the upstanding remains of the farm’s 19" century
steading, considered to be of local archaeological interest, and also occurs within an area of
archaeological potential relating to the medieval ‘fermtoun’ of Bonnington. Accordingly, this application
must be considered under terms Scottish Government’s Our Place in Time (OPIT), Scottish Planning

Lynne Halfpenny, Director of Culture, Cultural Services, Place

City of Edinburgh Council Archaeology Service, Museum of Edinburgh, 142 Canongate, Edinburgh, EH8 8DD
Tel 0131 558 1040

John.lawson@edinburgh.gov.uk

£ ™

i(0)): ¥ ™ INVESTORs
E3.N¢) Y% _J N peopLe | G0l

CUSTOMER

SERVIEE
EXCELLEMNCE

Page 41



Policy (SPP), Historic Environment Scotland’s Policy Statement (HESPS) 2016 and Archaeology
Strategy and CEC’s Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016) Policy ENV9.

The proposed development will require the demolition of the current agricultural buildings occupying the
site, which contain the 19" century remains of the eastern range of the farm’s former steading. It is
essential therefore that a historic building survey (annotated and phased internal and external elevations and
plan, photographic and written survey and analysis) is undertaken of the surviving elements of this historic
steading prior to demolition.

In addition, not only does the current site overly that of the former Bonnington Mains Steading, but it also
occurs on the suspected eastern limits for the medieval fermtoun of Bonnington. Accordingly, any
archaeological remains that may survive in situ below ground within this area could provide important
information regarding the origins and development of not only the farm but possibly also of the earlier
medieval settlement. Therefore, it is essential that a suitable programme of archaeological works is
undertaken during all ground-breaking works (including those relating to demolition activities) in order to
fully record, excavate and analyse any significant surviving buried archaeological remains that may be
disturbed.

It is recommended that the following condition is attached to any granted permission to ensure that this
programme of archaeological works is undertaken;

'‘No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has secured and
implemented a programme of archaeological work (historic building survey, excavation, analysis &
reporting, publication) in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted
by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'

The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either working to a brief
prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation submitted to and agreed by CECAS for
the site. Responsibility for the execution and resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and
for the archiving and appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant.

Please contact me if you require any further information.

Yours faithfully

John A Lawson
Archaeology Officer

Page 42

Edinburgh 2019: Bonnington Mains Farm.05171



To: Robert Mcintosh

From: Andrew Campbell, Environmental Protection

Date: 21/11/2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

19/05171/FUL | Erection of steel portal frame Agricultural Building. | Bonnington
Farm Bonnington Kirknewton

The applicant proposes replacing agricultural buildings with a new larger building on
the same area. Environmental Protection would offer no objection however would
recommend that the applicant investigates the installation of photo voltaic panels on
the proposed roof area.

Therefore, Environmental Protection offer no objection to this proposal.

Page 43



MEMORANDUM

PLACE

To: Robert McIntosh Our Ref: 'T/TP/DC/41944/MS

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL Date: 20 December 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

PLANNING APPLICATION NO: 19/05171/FUL

FOR: ERECTION OF STEEL PORTAL FRAME AGRICULTURAL BUILDING
AT: BONNINGTON FARM, BONNINGTON, KIRKNEWTON, EH27 8BB

ROADS AUTHORITY ISSUES

No objections to the application.

Matthew Simpson
Tel: 3-3426

Page 44

T/TP/4461012-41944 _MS



City of Edinburgh
City of Edinburgh Council X Health and satety
HSE Executive

Edinburgh
Edinburgh
EH8 8BJ

Advice : HSL-200107141327-370 DO NOT ADVISE AGAINST

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL
Development Name: Bonnington
Comments: Agricultural Building

Land Use Planning Consultation with Health and Safety Executive [Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015, Town and Country Planning (Development Management
Procedure) (Wales) Order 2012, or Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(Scotland) Regulations 2013]

The Health and Safety Executive (HSE) is a statutory consultee for certain developments within the
Consultation Distance of Major Hazard Sites/ pipelines. This consultation, which is for such a development and
is within at least one Consultation Distance, has been considered using HSE's planning advice web app,

based on the details input on behalf of City of Edinburgh.

HSE's Advice: Do Not Advise Against, consequently, HSE does not advise, on safety grounds,
against the granting of planning permission in this case.

©; HSL 2020. ©; Crown Copyright and database rights 2020, Ordnanee Sua;@b(?l}ﬂm 1025. A
©
. e‘g
Qe

r t d
o 0.01 002 0.04km

N
9
{}
Bc
L
Bonningtan |
Cottage |

o

™

S

gg Legend

LA Boundary

g Dirawn

7 D Davelopment
= Zone Type

S EI Innar

9 Middle
g} lzl Outer
[3 HSE

-

S o 0005 o001 002 mi ';“E:ESI

3 ' - L = plosive
£ 8 [

Commercial In Confidence

Page 45

HSL-200107141327-370 Date enquiry completed :07 January 2020 (312217,669486)



Breakdown:

Page 46

HSL-200107141327-370 Date enquiry completed :07 January 2020 (312217,669486)



Workplaces DAA
Is it a workplace specifically for people with disabilities, e.g. sheltered workshops? No
Are there 100 or more occupants in any individual workplace building (that lie partly or wholly within a
consultation distance)? No
Are there 3 or more occupied storeys in any workplace building (that lie partly or wholly within a consultation
distance)? No
O
©:; HSL 2020. ©; Crown copyright and database rights 2020, Ordnanee Survey _1(1?3@%25 i
0

\'(_
_fb(]
N

B(
Bonnington
4§ 1 5
yUMAU R [
o
™
o
N
L)
o,
@
O
c
=
)
o)
=
Pipelines

7926_2183 National Grid Gas PLC 7931_2188 Scotland Gas Network Ltd

As the proposed development is within the Consultation Distance of a major hazard pipeline you should
consider contacting the pipeline operator before deciding the case. There are two particular reasons for this

e The operator may have a legal interest (easement, wayleave etc.) in the vicinity of the pipeline. This may

restrict certain developments within a certain proximity of the pipeline.
¢ The standards to which the pipeline is designed and operated may restrict occupied buildings or major

traffic routes within a certain proximity of the pipeline. Consequently there may be a need for the operator to
modify the pipeline, or its operation, if the development proceeds.

HSE's advice is based on the situation as currently exists, our advice in this case will not be altered by the
outcome of any consultation you may have with the pipeline operator.

This advice report has been generated using inforrpag‘ﬁwéu&gied by Elaine Campbell at City of Edinburgh on

07 January 2020.
HSL-200107141327-370 Date enquiry completed :07 January 2020 (312217,669486)



Note that any changes in the information concerning this development would require it to be re-submitted.

Page 48

HSL-200107141327-370 Date enquiry completed :07 January 2020 (312217,669486)



Plant Protection
aden
Block 1; Floor 1
Brick Kiln Street
Your Gas Network Hinckley

LE10 ONA
E-mail: plantprotection@cadentgas.com
Telephone: +44 (0)800 688588

ROBERT MCINTOSH

City of Edinburgh Council National Gas Emergency Number:
Waverley Court 0800 111 939*
National Grid Electricity Emergency Number:
Level G:3 0800 40 40 90*
4 East Market Street * Available 24 hours, 7 days/week.
K Calls may be recorded and monitored.
Edinburgh

EH8 8BG www.cadentgas.com

Date: 02/03/2020

Our Ref: XX_GS1C_3NWP_022838

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL (TC)

RE: Formal Planning Application, EH27 88B BONNINGTON MAINS FARM WILKIESTON KIRKNEWTON

Thank you for your enquiry which was received on 02/03/2020.
Please note this response and any attached map(s) are valid for 28 days.

An assessment has been carried out with respect to Cadent Gas Limited, National Grid Electricity Transmission
plc's and National Grid Gas Transmission plc's apparatus. Please note it does not cover the items listed in the
section "Your Responsibilities and Obligations”, including gas service pipes and related apparatus.

For details of Network areas please see the Cadent website (http://cadentgas.com/Digging-safely/Dial-before-
you-dig) or the enclosed documentation.

Are My Works Affected?

Searches based on your enquiry have identified that there is no record of apparatus in the immediate vicinity of
your enquiry.

Cadent and National Grid therefore have no objection to these proposed activities.

Cadent is a trading name for: Cadent Gas Limited National Grid is a trading name for: National Grid is a trading name for:
Registered Office: Ashbrook Court, Prologis Park, National Gridpﬂ i éraggsion plc National Grid Gas Transmission plc
Central Boulevard, Coventry CV7 8PE Registered Offic aff; “ondon WC2N 5EH Registered Office: 1-3 Strand, London WC2N 5EH

Registered in England and Wales, No 10080864 Registered in England and Wales, No 2366977 Registered in England and Wales, No 2006000


mailto:plantprotection@cadentgas.com
http://www.cadentgas.com/

The contractor should contact Plant Protection before any works are carried out to ensure the apparatus is not
affected by any of the proposed works.

Your Responsibilities and Obligations

The "Assessment" Section below outlines the detailed requirements that must be followed when planning or
undertaking your scheduled activities at this location.

It is your responsibility to ensure that the information you have submitted is accurate and that all relevant
documents including links are provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you near
Cadent and/or National Grid's apparatus, e.g. as contained within the Construction (Design and Management)
Regulations.

This assessment solely relates to Cadent Gas Limited, National Grid Electricity Transmission plc (NGET) and
National Grid Gas Transmission plc (NGGT) and apparatus. This assessment does NOT include:

I Cadent and/or National Grid's legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the land which restricts
activity in proximity to Cadent and/or National Grid's assets in private land. You must obtain details of
any such restrictions from the landowner in the first instance and if in doubt contact Plant Protection.

I Gas service pipes and related apparatus

I Recently installed apparatus

1 Apparatus owned by other organisations, e.g. other gas distribution operators, local electricity
companies, other utilities, etc.

It is YOUR responsibility to take into account whether the items listed above may be present and if they could
be affected by your proposed activities. Further "Essential Guidance" in respect of these items can be found
on either the National Grid or Cadent website.

This communication does not constitute any formal agreement or consent for any proposed development work;
either generally or with regard to Cadent and/or National Grid's easements or wayleaves nor any planning or
building regulations applications.

Cadent Gas Limited, NGGT and NGET or their agents, servants or contractors do not accept any liability for any
losses arising under or in connection with this information. This limit on liability applies to all and any claims in
contract, tort (including negligence), misrepresentation (excluding fraudulent misrepresentation), breach of
statutory duty or otherwise. This limit on liability does not exclude or restrict liability where prohibited by the

law nor does it supersede the express terms of any related agreements.

If you require further assistance please contact the Plant Protection team via e-mail (click here) or via the
contact details at the top of this response.

Yours faithfully

Plant Protection Team

Page 50
Page 2 of 6



ASSESSMENT

Affected Apparatus
The apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of your proposed works is:

I National Gas Transmission Pipelines and associated equipment

Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:

1 Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance documents and maps showing the
location of apparatus.

1 Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land do not infringe Cadent and/or
National Grid's legal rights (i.e. easements or wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the
relevant local authority should be contacted.

1 Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors, working for you on or near Cadent
and/or National Grid's apparatus follow the requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSGA47 -
'‘Avoiding Danger from Underground Services' and GS6 — 'Avoidance of danger from overhead electric
power lines'. This guidance can be downloaded free of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk

1 In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position of mains, pipes, cables,
services and other apparatus on site before any activities are undertaken.

Page 51
Page 3 of 6



GUIDANCE

High Pressure Gas Pipelines Guidance:

If working in the vicinity of a high pressure gas pipeline the following document must be followed:
'Specification for Safe Working in the Vicinity of Cadent and/or National Grid High Pressure Gas Pipelines and
Associated Installations - Requirements for Third Parties' (SSW22). This can be obtained from:
http://www?2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=33968

National High Pressure Gas Pipelines Guidance:
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/9934F173-04D0-48C4-BE4D-
82294822D29C/51893/Above7barGasGuidance.pdf

Dial Before You Dig Pipelines Guidance:
http://www?2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=33969

Standard Guidance

Essential Guidance document:
http://www?2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=8589934982

General Guidance document:
http://www?2.nationalgrid.com/WorkArea/DownloadAsset.aspx?id=35103

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of gas pipes guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/A3D37677-6641-476C-9DDA-
E89949052829/44257/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCard.pdf

Excavating Safely in the vicinity of electricity cables guidance (Credit card):
http://www.nationalgrid.com/NR/rdonlyres/35DDEC6D-D754-4BA5-AF3C-
D607D05A25C2/44858/ExcavatingSafelyCreditCardelectricitycables.pdf

Copies of all the Guidance Documents can also be downloaded from the National Grid and Cadent websites.

Page 52
Page 4 of 6



oG abed

it

ID: XX_GS1C_3NWP_022838

View extent: 2890m, 1570m

National Grid has no objection to this application

Map 1 of 1 (GAS)

USER: toby.cooper

LP MAINS

DATE: 02/03/2020

MP MAINS -—
IP MAINS

DATA DATE: 01/03/2020

LHP MAINS

REF: 19/05171/FUL (TC)

NHP MAINS

MAP REF: NT1269
CENTRE: 312212, 669482

Approximate scale 1:10000
on A4 Colour Landscape

Om 200m

Some examples of Plant items:

Depth of Syphen Diameter Material
Va"’eN Cover \/ P Q Change Change

Out of
Standard
Service

0

This plan shows those pipes owned by Cadent Gas Limited in its role as a Licensed Gas Transporter (GT).

Gas pipes owned by other GTs, or otherwise privately owned, may be present in this area. Information

with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the relevant owners. The information shown on this plan is
given without warranty, the accuracy thereof cannot be guaranteed. Service pipes, valves, syphons, stub connections,
etc., are not shown but their presence should be anticipated. No liability of any kind whatsoever is accepted by

Cadent Gas Limited or their agents, servants or contractors for any error or omission. Safe digging
practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and establish the actual position of mains,

pipes, services and other apparatus on site before any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure
that this information is provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas
apparatus. The information included on this plan should not be referred to beyond a period of 28 days from the date

of issue.

MAPS Plot Server Version 1.11.0

Cadent

Your Gas Network
Requested by: City of Edinburgh Council

This plan is reproduced from or based on the

OS map by Cadent Gas Limited, with the sanction

of the controller of HM Stationery Office.
Crown Copyright Reserved.
Ordnance Survey Licence number 100024886




ENQUIRY SUMMARY

Received Date
02/03/2020

Your Reference
19/05171/FUL (TC)

Location

Centre Point; 312212, 669482

X Extent: 64

Y Extent: 76

Postcode: EH27 8BB

Location Description: EH27 8BB BONNINGTON MAINS FARM WILKIESTON KIRKNEWTON

Map Options
Paper Size: A4

Orientation: LANDSCAPE

Requested Scale: 500

Actual Scale: 1:10000 (GAS)

Real World Extents: 2890m x 1570m (GAS)

Recipients
pprsteam@cadentgas.com

Enquirer Details

Organisation Name: City of Edinburgh Council

Contact Name: ROBERT MCINTOSH

Email Address: Robert.McIntosh@edinburgh.gov.uk

Telephone: 0131 529 3422

Address: Waverley Court, , Level G:3, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG

Description of Works
P/A - Erection of a steel portal frame agricultural building (SP)

Enquiry Type
Formal Planning Application

Development Types
Development Type: Development for use by General Public

Page 54
Page 6 of 6



*€EDINBVRGH

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Email: planning.support@edinburgh.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100262730-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) |:| Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation: Geddes Consulting
Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: * Andrew Building Name: The Quadrant
Last Name: * Marshall Building Number: 7
Telephone Number: * [ ] '(B\Sdt?erzf)s:’j Bernard Street
Extension Number: Address 2: Leith
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Edinburgh
Fax Number: Country: * UK
Postcode: * EH6 6PW
Email Address: * ]

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

|:| Individual Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 55 Page 1 of 5




Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name: Bonnington Farm
First Name: * Building Number:

Last Name: * '(Asdt(rje“;‘ts)sj Bonnington Farm
Company/Organisation Robert Robertson & Son Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * Kirknewton
Extension Number: Country: * UK

Mobile Number: Postcode: * EH278BB

Fax Number:

Email Address: * _

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1:

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement:

Post Code:

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 669462 Easting 312196

Page 56

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Erection of steel portal frame Agricultural Building

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

|:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

D Refusal Notice.
Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Refer to Appeal Statement

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the |:| Yes No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5

Page 57




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

Refer to Appendix 2 of Appeal Statement

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 19/05171/FUL
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 29/10/2019

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 09/03/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * D Yes No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 4 of 5

Page 58




Declare — Notice of Review

I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Mr Stuart Salter

Declaration Date: 03/06/2020

Page 59

Page 50of 5




Proposal Details

Proposal Name

Proposal Description
Address

Local Authority

Application Online Reference

Application Status

Form

Main Details

Checklist

Declaration

Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

Attachment Details

Notice of Review

0_01 Application Form

0_02 Location Plan

0_04 PROPOSED BLOCK_PLAN
0_03 EXISTING BLOCK PLAN
0_05 PROPOSED BLOCK ROOF
PLAN

0_06 EXISTING AND PROPOSED
ELEVATIONS

0_07 PROPOSED ELEVATIONS
AND PLAN

0_08 GRAIN STORE
SPECIFICATION

0_09 ROOF CLADDING
SPECIFICATION

1_01 Edinburgh Airport Consultation
1_02 Archaeology Consultation
1_03 Environmental Protection
Consultation

1_04 Roads Consultation

1_05 HANDLING REPORT

1_06 DECISION NOTICE

2_01 Appeal Statement Bonnington
Mains Farm

2_01 Planning Circular 4_1998 the

100262730

LRB

City of Edinburgh Council
100262730-001

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

System

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

Attached

Page 60

A4
A4
A4
A1
A1
A1

A2
A2
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4

A4



use of conditions in planning
permissions

Notice_of Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Notice of Review-001.xml

Attached
Attached
Attached

Page 61

AO
AO
AO



Bonnington Mains Farm
Appeal Statement

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

This Appeal Statement (the Statement) has been prepared on behalf of Robert Robertson & Son
(the Appellant) in support of an appeal to the Local Review Body against the City of Edinburgh
Council’s decision under delegated powers to grant planning permission subject to conditions for the
...erection of a steel portal frame agricultural building at Bonnington Mains Farm, Kirknewton
(Planning Ref: 19/05171/FUL). Specifically, this Appeal relates to the imposition of planning
conditions 1, 2 and 3 with the grant of planning permission.

Proposal

The proposal seeks to replace approximately 2,600m? floor area of existing agricultural storage
buildings at Bonnington Mains Farm with a single new gain store with a floor area of 1,420m?. The
new store will be located on the footprint of the buildings to be replaced. The reduced floor area will
allow for a safer access arrangement into the farm, with a turning area to be provided.

The replacement store will be of broadly the same design as existing buildings, with concrete panel
walling, sheet metal cladding and concrete clad roofing. The ridge height of the new building will sit
slightly above the existing ridge levels of adjacent buildings. A new concrete retaining wall will be
erected around part of the replacement building to allow for the concrete hard standing to be renewed
and tied into existing levels in the north of the site.

Reason for Appeal

This Appeal seeks to review conditions 1, 2 and 3 and requests that these conditions are deleted as
part of the grant of planning permission. These conditions require the submission and approval of
the following:

¢ Condition 1: Bird Hazard Management Plan;

e Condition 2: Programme of Archaeological Work (historic building survey, excavation,
analysis & reporting, publication); and

e Condition 3: Surface Water Management Plan.

The Appellant was not afforded an opportunity to comment on these conditions prior to determination
of the Application nor invited to provide any additional information on these matters. No consultation
responses were publicly available on the planning portal until after determination of the Application.
As such, there was no indication such conditions would be attached to the consent.

The Report of Handling (Document 1.05) only states that the Council’'s Environmental Protection
(Document 1.03) and Roads (Document 1.04) services were consulted and raised no objections.
However, consultation Responses from Edinburgh Airport and the Council’s Archaeology service
were published online post-determination on the Applicant’s request.

The Appellant considers that the three conditions are not necessary or reasonable in the context of
the development. As such, the imposition of these conditions will result in unnecessary expense for
the agricultural business, which is seeking to improve efficiency through the proposed replacement
grain store. Compliance with these conditions will result in unnecessary financial burdens on the rural
business at a time of great financial uncertainty.

Page 62



1.8

1.9

Planning Circular 4/1998: the use of conditions in planning permissions (Document 2.02) sets out
that ...as a matter of policy, conditions should only be imposed where they are:

necessary

relevant to planning

relevant to the development to be permitted
enforceable

precise, and

reasonable in all other respects

This Statement provides a brief assessment of the three conditions against the tests of Circular

4/1998.

Matters such as the principle of the development, design, roads, and amenity have all been assessed
as acceptable in the Report of Handling (Document 1.05). As such, this Statement only seeks to
address the three conditions and does not revisit matters that have already been found to be
acceptable through the initial grant of planning permission.

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the documents set out in Appendix 2: Appeal
Document List.

Bird Hazard Management Plan
Condition 1 of the Decision Notice (Document 1.06) states that:

1.

Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details

monitoring of any standing water within the site temporary or permanent

sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) - Such schemes shall comply with Advice
Note 3 'Wildlife ~ Hazards'  (available  at  http.//www.aoa.org.uk/policy-
campaigns/operations-safety/).

management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which
may be attractive to nesting, roosting and "loafing" birds. The management plan shall
comply with Advice Note 3 'Wildlife Hazards.'

reinstatement of grass areas

maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and species
of plants that are allowed to grow

which waste materials can be brought on to the site/what if any exceptions e.g. green
waste

monitoring of waste imports (although this may be covered by the site licence)

physical arrangements for the collection (including litter bins) and storage of putrescible
waste, arrangements for and frequency of the removal of putrescible waste

signs deterring people from feeding the birds.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of the
development and shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the
plan are to take place unless first submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Page 63



1.13

1.14

1.20

The imposition of the above condition requiring a Bird Hazard Management Plan is considered
unnecessary and unreasonable for the following reasons:

- There is no current requirement for the agricultural business to implement a Bird Hazard
Management Plan for the existing agricultural operations;

- The proposals will not introduce areas of standing water to the site and no SUDS features
are proposed;

- There are no shallow, flat or green roofs proposed. The proposed roof is the same design
and specification as existing and the total roof area on the site will be reduced significantly;

- There are no proposed soft landscaped or grass areas within the existing or proposed site;
and

- There are no changes proposed to the way that waste materials are treated on the site.

For the above reasons, it is not considered that the submission and implementation of a Bird Hazard
Management Plan is necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms. Paragraph
13 of Circular 4/1998 further clarifies the necessary test of a planning condition:

In considering whether a particular condition is necessary, authorities should ask themselves
whether planning permission would have to be refused if that condition were not to be imposed.
If it would not, then the condition needs special and precise justification. Planning authorities
should also avoid imposing conditions through anxiety to guard against every possible
contingency, however remote. The argument that a condition will do no harm is no justification for
its imposition; as a matter of policy a condition ought not to be imposed unless there is a definite
need for it.

It is not considered it is necessary for planning permission to be refused if this condition is not
attached. The Report of Handling (Document 1.05) makes no reference and provides no assessment

of the requirement for the condition. Consultation with Edinburgh Airport is also not referred to.

The reason for condition 1 makes no reference to planning policy and simply states that:

It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds which
could endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Edinburgh Airport.

There is no reference in the condition to clarify specifically why the replacement building should be
considered any differently to the existing buildings and operations, or any reason why it is materially
different in terms of likely impacts on bird hazard.

It is also not clear how such a condition would be enforced i.e. how the Council would monitor
standing water, vegetation growth or general bird activity. Paragraph 26 of Circular 4/1998 states
that:

Sometimes a condition will be unenforceable because it is in practice impossible to detect an
infringement. More commonly it will merely be difficult to prove a breach of its requirements.

It is therefore considered that the condition fails to meet the test of enforceability.

It is also considered that the condition fails to meet the test of reasonableness, as there are no
restrictions on the existing agricultural operations and the proposals seek to reduce the building area

Page 64



1.21

1.22

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

1.27

on the site. The proposed development will have no material impact on likelihood of bird hazard at
the site compared to the existing situation.

Condition 1 should be deleted from the planning permission on the basis it fails to meet the tests of
necessity, enforceability and reasonableness in Circular 4/1998.

Archaeological Investigation
Condition 2 of the Decision Notice (Document 1.06) states that:

2. No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has secured and
implemented a programme of archaeological work (historic building survey, excavation,
analysis & reporting, publication) in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which
has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.

The Report of Handling (Document 1.05) provides no assessment of the site’s potential for
archaeological remains, the reason for condition 2, nor any reference to a consultation with the
Council's Archaeologist.

The consultation response form the Archaeologist (Document 1.02) was made available on the
planning portal post-determination of the Application on request. The Appellant was therefore
unaware that such a condition would be sought or afforded an opportunity to respond to the request.

The consultation response (Document 1.02) states that a historic building survey should be
undertaken prior to any demolition of existing buildings on the basis that part of the existing farm
buildings comprise of 19" Century agricultural buildings. A programme of investigation and
excavation is also requested during any ground-breaking works due to the general potential for
archaeological remains in the wider area.

The demolition of a non-residential building that does not share an adjoining wall with a
dwellinghouse is permitted development under Class 70 of The Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992. The existing agricultural buildings could therefore
be demolished at any time without requiring planning permission or prior notification. Condition 2 is
therefore unreasonable on the basis that it requires the recording of the buildings.

The requirement for condition 2 also needs to be considered in the context of the existing site and
proposals, including the following matters:

- None of the buildings to be removed are listed, scheduled, or subject to any other statutory
historic designations;

- The replacement buildings will be on the footprint of buildings to be removed;

- The ground has already been disturbed by previous development of the existing steading,
which did not require archaeological investigation;

- The Appellant can confirm that the ground on the site is hard rock;

- There will only be a modest change in part of the site levels, where the concrete hard
standing will be renewed. The overall extent of development will not increase; and

- Only a very small part of a stone building will be removed, which has already been altered.

The remainder of the buildings are concrete sheet construction. The only substantive
remaining stone building will be retained (refer to Appendix 1: Site Pictures).

Page 65



1.28

1.29

1.30

1.31

1.32

1.33

1.34

1.35

1.36

Taking into account the above matters, it is not considered that the planning condition is necessary
to make the proposal acceptable in planning terms. The reason for the condition also makes no
reference to the specifics of the site or LDP policy. It simply states that the condition is required ...In
order to secure and record any archaeological artefacts within the site. The condition therefore fails
to meet the test of necessity.

Given the scale and nature of the proposal, it is also not considered that the condition is reasonable
on the basis it will incur unnecessary expense to the Appellant, which is proposing to improve the
operational efficiency of the existing agricultural building in a viable manner.

Condition 2 should be deleted from the planning permission on the basis it fails to meet the tests of
necessity and reasonableness in Circular 4/1998.

Surface Water Management Plan
Condition 3 of the Decision Notice (Document 1.06) states that:

3. Prior to any work commencing on site a surface water management plan shall be submitted
for the written approval of the Council as Planning Authority. Details of the self certification
process and guidance can be found in the link below.

CEC Flood Planning Self-Certification Requirements and Guidance:
http://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/info/20045/flooding/1584/flood_planning_application

The Report of Handling (Document 1.05) states that:

There is no known risk to flooding on the site. Much of the site is already covered in concrete/hard
landscaping. A new concrete yard area is also proposed. The consent has been conditioned to
ensure that a suitable surface water management plan must been submitted for the written
approval of the Council as Planning Authority prior to any work commencing on site.

The imposition of condition 3 fails to take into account that the entire existing site is either hard
standing concrete or buildings. The proposals will make use of the existing drainage arrangements
on the site. The proposals also do not seek to extend the area of development beyond the existing
site or increase the area of impermeable surfaces, i.e. the whole site is already developed. Condition
3 therefore fails to accord with the reasonableness test of Circular 4/1998.

The reason for the condition simply states that it is required ...In order to ensure all concerns in
relation to surface water management are addressed. There is no consultation response or
assessment in the Report of Handling (Document 1.05) that identifies what the specific concerns in
relation to surface water management are. The proposal will not result in any material impact on
surface water compared to the existing situation. It is therefore not considered that condition 3 is
necessary to make the proposals acceptable in planning terms.

Condition 2 should be deleted from the planning permission on the basis it fails to meet the tests of
necessity and reasonableness in Circular 4/1998.

Conclusions

The Appellant considers that conditions 1, 2 and 3 have been imposed on the grant of planning
permission without due regard for the nature and context of the proposals and whether there are any
material impacts arising. The Appellant notes that it has not been afforded the opportunity to
comment on these conditions until after the determination. Consultation responses were also not
available until post-determination.

Page 66



1.37

1.38

1.39

1.40

A condition should not be attached to the grant of planning permission purely on the basis it has
been requested through consultation, without proper consideration on planning grounds. It is not
considered that sufficient assessment or reasoning has been provided in the Report of Handling
(Document 1.05) or Notice (Document 1.06) to demonstrate that these conditions are justified.

As demonstrated in this Statement, conditions 1, 2 and 3 fail to meet a number of the tests of Circular
4/1998 and should be deleted from the grant of planning permission. None of these conditions are
necessary to make the proposals acceptable in planning terms or reasonable in the context of the
existing development and operations on the site. None of them have been imposed to address
material impacts arising from the proposal.

The imposition of conditions 1, 2 and 3 also places an unnecessary financial burden on the existing
rural agricultural business. The proposals seek to replace buildings that are no longer fit for purpose
and also improve the safety of the access arrangements, in a cost-efficient manner. Compliance with
the three conditions will require instruction of specialist consultants at a cost of several thousands of
pounds to the Applicant.

It is therefore requested that planning permission is granted with conditions 1, 2 and 3 deleted.

Page 67



File: 18003

Appendix 1  Site Pictures

Above: Area of buildings to be removed.

Below: Street view of buildings to be removed visible from road

Bonnington Mains Farm, Kirknewton June 2020

Appeal Statement Page 68 7



Appendix2  Appeal Document List

Reference | Planning Application as Lodged

0.01 Application for Planning Permission (Application Form)

0.02 Location Plan

0.03 Existing Block Plan

0.04 Proposed Block Floor Plan

0.05 Proposed Block Roof Plan

0.06 Existing and Proposed Elevations

0.07 Proposed Elevations and Plan

0.08 Grain Store Specification

0.09 Roof Cladding Specification

Reference | Determination

1.01 Edinburgh Airport Consultation dated 13 December 2019

1.02 Archaeology Consultation dated 9 December 2019

1.03 Environnemental Protection Consultation dated 21 November 2019
1.04 Roads Consultation dated 20 December 2019

1.05 Report of Handling

1.06 Decision Notice

Reference | Additional Appeal Documents

2.01 Appeal Statement

2.02 Planning Circular 4/1998: the use of conditions in planning permissions

Page 69




APPLICATION FOR'PEANNING PERMISSION

Town and EtauniryP*lan 19
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management-Procedufe){Seottand)y-Regulations 2013

Please refer to the accompanying Guidance Notes when completing this application
PLEASE NOTE IT IS FASTER AND SIMPLER TO SUBMIT PLANNING APPLICATIONS

ELECTRONICALLY VIA https://www.eplanning.scot

1. Applicant’s Details 2. Agent’s Details (if any)

Title Ref No.

Forename Forename

Surname | Surname

Company Name  |Robert Robertson & Son Company Name JTS (construction) Ltd
Building No./Name |Bonnington Farm Building No./Name

Address Line 1 Kirknewton Address Line 1 Station Works
Address Line 2 Edinburgh Address Line 2 Station Road
Town/City Town/City Duns
Postcode EH278BB Postcode TD113EJ
Telephone Telephone 01361883245
Mobile i Mobile

Fax Fax

Email Email

3. Postal Address or Location of Proposed Development (please include postcode)

Bonnington Farm
Kirknewton
Edinburgh
EH278BB

NB. If you do not have a full site address please identify the location of the site(s) in your accompanying
documentation.

4. Type of Application
What is the application for? Please select one of the following:

Planning Permission

Planning Permission in Principle

Further Application®

Application for Approval of Matters Specified in Conditions™

OO0 X

Application for Mineral Works™**

NB. A ‘further application’ may be e.g. development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit has been
imposed a renewal of planning permission or a maodification, variation or removal of a planning condition.

*Please provide a reference number of the previous application and date when permission was granted:

Reference No: Date:

**Please note that if you are applying for planning permission for mineral works your planning authority may have a
separate form or require additional information.

Page 70




5. Description of the Proposal

Please describe the proposal including any change of use:

Erection of steel portal frame agricultural building

Is this a temporary permission?

If yes, please state how long permission is required for and why:

Have the works already been started or completed?

If yes, please state date of completion, or if not completed, the start date:

Date started: Date completed:

If yes, please explain why work has already taken place in advance of making this application

6. Pre-Application Discussion

Have you received any advice from the planning authority in relation to this proposal? YESBNG

If yes, please provide details about the advice below:

In what format was the advice given? Meeting Telephone call Letter Email

Have you agreed or are you discussing a Processing Agreement with the planning authority? Yes[ |No [ |

Please provide a description of the advice you were given and who you received the advice from:

Name: Date: Ref No.:

7. Site Area

Please state the site area in either hectares or square metres:

Hectares (ha): |0.368 Square Metre (sq.m.)

8. Existing Use

Page 71




Please describe the current or most recent use:

Steading

9. Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road?

Yes[_]No[X]

If yes, please show in your drawings the position of an y existing, altered or new access and explain the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there wilf be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any changes to public paths, public rights of Weay or
affecting any public rights of access?

Yes D No

If yes, please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas and explain the changes you propose to

make, including arrangements for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently
exist on the application site?

How many vehicle parking Spaces (garaging and open parking) do you

propose on the site? (i.e. the total number of existing spaces plus any
new spaces)

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces

and specify if these are to be

allocated for particular types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, etc.)

10. Water Supply and Drainage Arrangements

Will your proposals require new or altered water supply
or drainage arrangements?

Yes Nn

Are you proposing to connect to the public drainage network (€.g. to an existing sewer?)

Yes, connecting to a public drainage network

No, proposing to make private drainage arrangements

Not applicable — only arrangement for water supply required

What private arrangements are you proposing for the new/altered septic tank?
Discharge to land via soakaway

Discharge to watercourse(s) (including partial soakaway)

Discharge to coastal waters

Please show more detaijls on your plans and supporting information

What private arrangements are you proposing?

Treatment/Additional treatment (relates to package sewer treatment plants, or passive

Sewage treatment such as a reed bed)
Other private drainage arrangement (such as a chemical toilets or composting toilets)

Please show more details on your plans and supporting information.

Da VY8Ur proposals make provision for sustainable drainage of surface water?

L[]

Yes [ ] No

Page 72




Note:- Please include details of SUDS arrangements on your plans

Are you proposing to connect to the public water supply network? Yes D No

If no, using a pnvate water supply, please show o plans the supply and all works needed lo provide it (on or off
site)

11. Assessment of Flood Risk

e

Is the site within an area of known risk of flooding? Yes[|No

If the site is within an area of known risk of flooding you may need to submit a Flood Risk Assessment before your
application can be determined. You may wish to contact your planning authority or SEPA for advice on what
information may be required.

Do you think your proposal may increase the flood risk elsewhere? Yes[ | No[ | Don’'t Know [X]

if yes, briefly describe how the risk of flooding might be increased elsewhere.

12. Trees

Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? Yes D ND

If yes, please show on drawings arny trees (including known protected frees) and their canopy spread as they relate
to the proposed site and indicate if any are fo be cut back or fefled.

13. Waste Storage and Collection

Do the plans incorporate areas to store and aid the collection YESD No
of waste? (including recycling) |

If yes, please provide details and ilfustrate on plans.
If no, please provide details as to why no provision for refuse/recycling storage is being made:

14. Residential Units Including Conversion

Does your proposal include new or additional houses and/or flats? Yes No _

If yes how many units do you propose in total?

Please provide full details of the number and types of units on the plan. Additional information may be provided in a
supporting statement,

Page 73




15. For all types of non housing development — new floorspace proposed

Does you proposal alter or create non-residential floorspace? Yes No D
If yes, please provide details below:

Use type: Agricultue

If you are extending a building, please provide
details of existing gross floorspace (sq.m):

Proposed gross floorspace (sq.m.): 1420sgm

Please provide details of internal floorspace(sq.m)

Net trading space:

Non-trading space:

Total net floorspace:

16. Schedule 3 Development

Does the proposal involve a class of development listed in Schedule 3 of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 20087

Yes [ | No D Don’'t Know

If yes, your proposal will additionally have to be advertised in a newspaper circulating in your area. Your planning
authority will do this on your behalf but may charge a fee. Please contact your planning authority for advice on
planning fees.

17. Planning Service Employee/Elected Member Interest

Are you / the applicant / the applicant’'s spouse or partner, a member of staff within the planning service or an
elected member of the planning authority? Yes D No

Or, are you / the applicant / the applicant’'s spouse or partner a close relative of a member of staff in the planning
service or elected member of the planning authority? Yes [ |No

If you have answered yes please provide details:

DECLARATION

|, the apphesant/agent certify that this is an application for planning permission The accompanying plans/drawings
and additional information are provided as part of this application. | hereby confirm that the information given in this
form is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

|, the appheaat/agent hereby certify that the attached Land Ownership Certificate has been completed  [X

I, the notice has been given to other land owners and /or agricultural
tenants Yes [_|No [IN/A

Signature: WS Thorburn Date: | 23/10/2019

Any personal data that you have been asked to provide on this from will be held and processed in accordance with
Data Protection Legislation. |

5

Page 74

S EEEEEEBEEBEBEREBRERRREE






| 10/ 0517| /FoL-

LAND OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATES

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997
Regulation 15 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

CERTIFICATE A, B, C, D OR CERTIFICATE E
MUST BE COMPLETED BY ALL APPLICANTS

CERTIFICATE A
Certificate A is for use where the applicant is the only owner of the land to which the application
relates and none of the land is agricultural land.

| hereby certify that -

(1) No person other than the applicant was owner of any part of the land to
which the application relates at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the ><
date of the application.

(2)  None of the land to which t! icati constitutes or forms part of

Signed:

On behalf of W 'S Thorburn

Date: 23/10/2019

CERTIFICATE B
Certificate B is for use where the applicant is not the owner or sole owner of the land to whickrthe
application relates and/or where the land is agricultural land and where al| owners/agricultupdl tenants
have been identified.

I hereby certify that -

(1) The applicant has served notice on every person other than the applicant who,
at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the date of the application was
owner of any part of the land to which the application relates. Thege’persons are:

Date of Service of

Name Address Notice

(2) None of the land to whith the application relates constitutes or forms part of
agricultural land

or

(3) The land or parAf the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
agricultural Jafid and | have served notice on every person other
than mysg who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with

the daje of the application was an agricultural tenant. These persons are:




Date of Bervice of
Name Address g‘;{c o

Signed. /

On behalf of:

Date:

CERTIFICATE G ,
Certificate C is for use where the applicant is not the owfier or sole owner of the land to which the
application relates and/or where the land is agriculturalland and where it has not been possible to
identify ALL or ANY owners/Aagricultural tenants.

(1) Ihave been unable to sgrve notice on every person other than
myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the
date of the application was owner of any/part of the land to which the application
relates.

or

(2) |have been upable to serve notice on any person other than

myself who, at the eginning of the period of 21 days ending with the

date of the accompanying applicafion, was owner of any part of the land to which the
application relates.

(3) None of the land to which $he application relates constitutes or forms part of an
agricultural holding.

or

(4) The land or part of the lgnd to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
an agricultural holding &nd | have been unable to serve notice on
any person other thay myself who, at the beginning of the period of 21

days ending with thg/date of the accompanying application was an agricultural tenant.

or

(5) The land or papt of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of

an agriculturgl holding | have served notice on each of the
following pepsons other than myself who, at the beginning of the period
of 21 days/ending with the date of the application was an agricultural tenant. These
persons gfe:

Nathe Address Date of Service of

Notice

Page 77




(6) | have taken reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain tb€ names
and addresses of all other owners or agricultural tenants and have been unablg/to do so.

Steps taken:

/

Signed:

On behalf of:

/
Date:
CERTIFICATE D
Certificate D is for use where the application is for mineral development.
(1) No person other than myself was af owner of any part of the land to

which the application relates at the beginning of thé period of 21 days ending with the

date of the accompanying application.

(2) | have served notice ory'each of the following persons other than
myself who, at the beginnifig of the period of 21 days ending with the
date of the accompanying application, waé to the applicant’'s knowledge, the owner, of
any part of the land to which the applicatjbn relates. These persons are:

Date of Service of

Address Notice

Name

(3) None of the land to
agricultural holding.

hich the application relates constitutes or forms part of an

or

(4) The land or part gf the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of
an agricultural hblding and | have served notice on each of the
following persofis other than myself who, at the beginning of the period

of 21 days ending with the date of the application, was an agricultural tenant.

(5) Notice of tfe application as set out below has been published and displayed by public
notice

Signed:

On behalf of:

Date:

Page 78




CERTIFICATE E
Certificate E is required where the applicant is the sole owner of all the land and the land to whi€h the
application relates is agricultural land and there are or are not agricultural tenants.

| hereby certify that -

(1) No person other than myself was the owner of any part of theAand to
which the application relates at the beginning of the period 21 days ending’ with the
date of the application.

(2) The land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of An agricultural
holding and there are no agricultural tenants.

or

(1) No person other than myself was the owner offany part of the land to
which the application relates at the beginning of the period 21 days ending with the
date of the application.

(2) The land to which the application relates constitutes forms part of an agricultural
holding and there are agricultural tenants. These peop)e are:
Name Address Date of Sg-rvlce of
Notice
(3) | have takef reasonable steps, as listed below, to ascertain the
names and addresses of the gfher agricultural tenants and have been unable to
do so.
Steps taken:
Signed:
On behalf

Any personal data that you have been asked to provide on this from will be held and processed in
accordance with Data Protection Legislation.

Page 79




Memorandum

To Head of Planning
City of Edinburgh Council
Planning and Transport
Place
Waverley Court
4 East Market Street
Edinburgh
EH8 8BG

F.A.O Robert Mclntosh

From John A Lawson Your 19/05171/FUL
ref
Date 9™ December 2019 Our ref 19/05171/FUL

Dear Robert,
Bonnington Farm Bonnington

Further to your consultation request | would like to make the following comments and recommendations
concerning this application for the erection of a steel portal frame agricultural building.

Historically the site of Bonnington Farm has been associated with farming since at least the 14" century,
occurring at the eastern end of the suspected limits for the medieval fermtoun of the same name. This
settlement was first recorded as Bondington around 1315 and by the end of the medieval period may have
supported up to forty families (Harris, Place Names of Edinburgh). Although much altered with later
additions the core of the present farmhouse would appear to have been constructed during the period of
agricultural improvement of the late-18th and early-19" centuries as they relate to buildings shown on the
1%t Edition OS map of 1852.

This map also depicts a large rectangular steading on the site of the current agricultural buildings. The
eastern range of the modern farm buildings is formed by the outer walls of these earlier 19" century
steading buildings.

The eastern side of the current farm buildings contain the upstanding remains of the farm’s 19" century
steading, considered to be of local archaeological interest, and also occurs within an area of
archaeological potential relating to the medieval ‘fermtoun’ of Bonnington. Accordingly, this application
must be considered under terms Scottish Government’s Our Place in Time (OPIT), Scottish Planning

Lynne Halfpenny, Director of Culture, Cultural Services, Place

City of Edinburgh Council Archaeology Service, Museum of Edinburgh, 142 Canongate, Edinburgh, EH8 8DD
Tel 0131 558 1040
John.lawson@edinburgh.gov.uk

Page 80 %%,M:



Policy (SPP), Historic Environment Scotland’s Policy Statement (HESPS) 2016 and Archaeology
Strategy and CEC’s Edinburgh Local Development Plan (2016) Policy ENV9.

The proposed development will require the demolition of the current agricultural buildings occupying the
site, which contain the 19" century remains of the eastern range of the farm’s former steading. It is
essential therefore that a historic building survey (annotated and phased internal and external elevations and
plan, photographic and written survey and analysis) is undertaken of the surviving elements of this historic
steading prior to demolition.

In addition, not only does the current site overly that of the former Bonnington Mains Steading, but it also
occurs on the suspected eastern limits for the medieval fermtoun of Bonnington. Accordingly, any
archaeological remains that may survive in situ below ground within this area could provide important
information regarding the origins and development of not only the farm but possibly also of the earlier
medieval settlement. Therefore, it is essential that a suitable programme of archaeological works is
undertaken during all ground-breaking works (including those relating to demolition activities) in order to
fully record, excavate and analyse any significant surviving buried archaeological remains that may be
disturbed.

It is recommended that the following condition is attached to any granted permission to ensure that this
programme of archaeological works is undertaken;

'‘No demolition/development shall take place on the site until the applicant has secured and
implemented a programme of archaeological work (historic building survey, excavation, analysis &
reporting, publication) in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been submitted
by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority.'

The work must be carried out by a professional archaeological organisation, either working to a brief
prepared by CECAS or through a written scheme of investigation submitted to and agreed by CECAS for
the site. Responsibility for the execution and resourcing of the programme of archaeological works and
for the archiving and appropriate level of publication of the results lies with the applicant.

Please contact me if you require any further information.

Yours faithfully

John A Lawson
Archaeology Officer

Page 81

Edinburgh 2019: Bonnington Mains Farm.05171



Edinburgh Airport
EH12 9DN
Scotland

Robert McIntosh
City of Edinburgh Council
By email

W: edinburghairport.com

13 December 2019

Dear Robert

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL

Development: Erection of a steel agricultural building at Bonnington Farm, Kirknewton EH27 8BB
Our Ref: EDI2845

The proposed development has been examined from an aerodrome safeguarding perspective and could
conflict with safeguarding criteria unless any planning permission granted is subject to the conditions

detailed below:

Submission of a Bird Hazard Management Plan

Development shall not commence until a Bird Hazard Management Plan has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Planning Authority. The submitted plan shall include details of:

- monitoring of any standing water within the site temporary or permanent

- sustainable urban drainage schemes (SUDS) — Such schemes shall comply with Advice Note 3 'Wildlife
Hazards’ (available at http.//www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/).

- management of any flat/shallow pitched/green roofs on buildings within the site which may be attractive
to nesting, roosting and “loafing” birds. The management plan shall comply with Advice Note 3 ‘Wildlife
Hazards.’

- reinstatement of grass areas

- maintenance of planted and landscaped areas, particularly in terms of height and species of plants that
are allowed to grow

- which waste materials can be brought on to the site/what if any exceptions e.g. green waste

- monitoring of waste imports (although this may be covered by the site licence)

- physical arrangements for the collection (including litter bins) and storage of putrescible waste,
arrangements for and frequency of the removal of putrescible waste

- signs deterring people from feeding the birds.

The Bird Hazard Management Plan shall be implemented as approved, on completion of the development and
shall remain in force for the life of the building. No subsequent alterations to the plan are to take place unless

first submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority.

Reason: It is necessary to manage the development in order to minimise its attractiveness to birds which could
endanger the safe movement of aircraft and the operation of Edinburgh Airport.

Page 82



The Bird Hazard Management Plan must ensure that flat/shallow pitched roofs be constructed to allow access to
all areas by foot using permanent fixed access stairs ladders or similar. The owner/occupier must not allow gulls,
to nest, roost or loaf on the building. Checks must be made weekly or sooner if bird activity dictates, during the
breeding season. Outside of the breeding season gull activity must be monitored and the roof checked regularly
to ensure that gulls do not utilise the roof. Any gulls found nesting, roosting or loafing must be dispersed by the
owner/occupier when detected or when requested by Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff. In some instances
it may be necessary to contact Edinburgh Airport Airside Operations staff before bird dispersal takes place. The
owner/occupier must remove any nests or eggs found on the roof.

The breeding season for gulls typically runs from March to June. The owner/occupier must obtain the appropriate
licences where applicable from Scottish Natural Heritage before the removal of nests and eggs.

We would also make the following observations:
Cranes

Given the nature of the proposed development it is possible that a crane may be required during its
construction. We would, therefore, draw the applicant’s attention to the requirement within the British
Standard Code of Practice for the safe use of Cranes, for crane operators to consult the aerodrome before
erecting a crane in close proximity to an aerodrome. This is explained further in Advice Note 4, ‘Cranes’
(available at http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/)

It is important that any conditions requested in this response are applied to a planning approval. Where a
Planning Authority proposes to grant permission against the advice of Edinburgh Airport, or not to attach
conditions which Edinburgh Airport has advised, it shall notify Edinburgh Airport, and the Civil Aviation
Authority and the Scottish Ministers as specified in the Safeguarding of Aerodromes Direction 2003.

Yours sincerely

Claire Brown

Edinburgh Airport Limited

0131 344 3359
safeguarding@edinburghairport.com

Page 83


http://www.aoa.org.uk/policy-campaigns/operations-safety/
mailto:safeguarding@edinburghairport.com

To: Robert Mcintosh

From: Andrew Campbell, Environmental Protection

Date: 21/11/2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

19/05171/FUL | Erection of steel portal frame Agricultural Building. | Bonnington
Farm Bonnington Kirknewton

The applicant proposes replacing agricultural buildings with a new larger building on
the same area. Environmental Protection would offer no objection however would
recommend that the applicant investigates the installation of photo voltaic panels on
the proposed roof area.

Therefore, Environmental Protection offer no objection to this proposal.

Page 84



MEMORANDUM

PLACE

To: Robert McIntosh Our Ref: 'T/TP/DC/41944/MS

Your Ref: 19/05171/FUL Date: 20 December 2019

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACT 1997

PLANNING APPLICATION NO: 19/05171/FUL

FOR: ERECTION OF STEEL PORTAL FRAME AGRICULTURAL BUILDING
AT: BONNINGTON FARM, BONNINGTON, KIRKNEWTON, EH27 8BB

ROADS AUTHORITY ISSUES

No objections to the application.

Matthew Simpson
Tel: 3-3426

Page 85

T/TP/1_04 Roads Consultation



Gov.scot uses cookies which are essential for the site to work. We X
also use non-essential cookies to help us improve our websites.
Any data collected is anonymised. By continuing to use this site,

you agree to our use of cookies. Find out more about cookies

o Coronavirus (COVID-19): what you need to know

Scottish Government
Riaghaltas na h-Alba Menu
gov.scot

>

Home > Publications ?

PUBLICATION - ADVICE AND GUIDANCE

Planning Circular 4/1998: the use
of conditions in planning
DErMIsSsIoNs

Published: 27 Feb 1998

Directorate: Local Government and Communities Directorate @

Planning Circular 4/1998: the use of conditions in planning
permissions. This circular supersedes SDD No. 18/1986 (except
Appendices A and B).

o _ . . .
"_] This document is part of a collection

Circular 4/1998
Page 86

The use of conditions in plannina nermiss<ions.


https://www.gov.scot/
https://www.gov.scot/
https://www.gov.scot/publications/
https://www.gov.scot/about/how-government-is-run/directorates/local-government-and-communities/
https://www.gov.scot/building-planning-and-design/
https://www.gov.scot/cookies/
https://www.gov.scot/coronavirus-covid-19/

LIS . -~ 1

This Circular supersedes SDD No. 18/1986 (except Appendices A and B)

The Chief Executive Local Authorities Copy to: The Director of Planning Our
ref: PGC/3/13 27 February 1998

Contents

Circular

Introduction

1. This Circular and the accompanying Annex sets out Government policy
on the use of conditions in planning permissions. It updates and revises
the guidance in SDD Circular 18/1986, which (except for Appendices A and
B - see paragraph 11 below) is now cancelled, to take account of:

e new legislation, in particular the consolidation of the Planning Acts;

e Court decisions, which are referred to at relevant sections of the
Annex;

e additional topics, such as Environmental Assessment and Nature
Conservation; and

e good planning practice in the use of conditions.

General policy

2. Conditions imposed on a grant of planning permission can enable many
development proposals to proceed where it would otherwise have been
necessary to refuse planning permission. While the power to impose
planning conditions is very wide, it needs to be exercised in a manner
which is fair, reasonable and practicable. Planning conditions should only
be imposed where they are:

e necessary Page 87

e relevant to plannina



e

relevant to the development to be permitted

enforceable

® precise

reasonable in all other respects.

The Secretary of State attaches great importance to these criteria being
met so that there is an effective basis for the control and regulation of
development which does not place unreasonable or unjustified burdens on
applicants and their successors in title.

3. Planning conditions must not, however, be applied slavishly or
unthinkingly; a clear and precise reason for a condition must be given.
While the use of standard conditions can be important to the efficient
operation of the development control process, such conditions should not
be applied simply as a matter of routine. Conditions should be used to
achieve a specific end, not to cover every eventuality.

4. It is essential that the operation of the planning system should
command public confidence. The sensitive use of conditions can improve
the effectiveness of development control and enhance that confidence.
Conditions imposed in an unreasonable way, so that it proves
impracticable or inexpedient to enforce them, will damage such confidence
and should be avoided.

5. The Annex to the Circular sets out the policy in greater detail.

Development plans

6. Where appropriate, development plans should specify the policies which
the authority propose to implement regularly by means of planning
conditions. Where applicants for planning permission are aware of such
policies, they are more likely to incorporate appropriate details in their
submissions, thus reducing the risk of delay in determining the

applications and possibly avoiding the need to impose a specific condition.
Page 88

Apbeals



7. Paragraph 19 of AnnexA to SODD Circular 13/1997 states that, in the
case of planning inquiries, the statement submitted by the planning
authority should include a list of conditions that it would wish to see
imposed on any approval which may be given. A similar practice, which
some authorities already follow, is also appropriate to cases proceeding by
way of written submissions. The Secretary of State expects Reporters will
be vigilant in ensuring that conditions imposed meet the criteria in
paragraph 2 above and the detailed policy set out in the Annex.

Breach of condition notices

8. Since July 1992, planning authorities have been able to ensure
compliance with many planning conditions by serving a breach of
condition notice. Guidance about this type of notice is given in SOEnD
Circular 36/1992. If a valid breach of condition notice is contravened, the
resulting offence is open to summary prosecution. But the prosecution's
case must always be proved on the criminal standard of proof ("beyond
reasonable doubt"). Consequently, if the breach of condition notice
procedure is to operate effectively, planning conditions must be formulated
precisely. In the event of prosecution, Courts will then have no doubt about
exactly what is required in order to comply with the terms of a planning
condition.

Specialist subjects

9. This Circular does not include specific advice on the use of planning
conditions for specialist subjects such as minerals workings or for
developments relating to waste management.

Manpower and financial considerations

10. This Circular brings up to date existing advice, and should therefore
have no effect on local government manpower or expenditure.

Model conditions

11. The Secretary of State is of theprigju that detailed guidance on model
conditions should be provided. Further work with local authority
representatives in this area will be undertaken and a list of model



conditions will be issued in due course. This Circular should be read with
the forthcoming guidance on model conditions. Until the new list of model
conditions is published, authorities should continue to refer to these in
AppendicesA and B of SDD Circular 18/1986.

Enquiries and further copies

12. Enquiries about the content of this Circular should be addressed to Mr
Stephen Bruce (Telephone 0131 244 7065). Further copies of the Circular
and a list of current planning circulars may be obtained from The Scottish
Office Development Department, Planning Division, 2-H, Victoria Quay,
Edinburgh, EH66QQ (Telephone 0131 244 7066 or 7825).

Annex A: The use of conditions in planning
permissions

Powers

Summary of powers

1. Conditions on planning permissions may be imposed only within the
statutory powers available. Advice on these powers is given below. This
advice is intended to be a guide, and it must be stressed that it is not
definitive. An authoritative statement of the law can only be made by the
Courts. The principal powers are in sections 37 and 41 of the Town and
Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (referred to below as "the Act").
Sections 58 and 59 of the Act require the imposition of time-limiting
conditions on most grants of planning permission (see paragraphs 45 to
52 below). Powers to impose conditions are also conferred on the
Secretary of State or Reporters by sections 46, 48 and 133 and Schedule 4
of the Act. Unless the permission otherwise provides, planning permission
runs with the land and conditions imposed on the grant of planning

permission will bind successors in title.
Page 90

General nower



2. Section 37(1) of the Act enables the planning authority to grant planning
permission "either unconditionally or subject to such conditions as they
think fit". The power to impose conditions is not, however, as wide as it
appears, and must be interpreted in the light of Court decisions.

Powers for conditions on land outside application site and
temporary permissions

3. Section 41(1) amplifies the general power in section 37(1) in two ways. It
makes clear that the planning authority may impose conditions regulating
the development or use of land under the control of the applicant even if it
is outside the site which is the subject of the application. (The Courts have
held that the question whether land is under the control of an applicant is a
matter to be determined according to the facts of the particular case. It is
only necessary to have such control over the land as is required to enable
the developer to comply with the condition.) The section also makes clear
that the planning authority may grant planning permission for a specified
period only.

Power to vary or remove the effect of conditions

4. Section 33 of the Act provides, among other things, for planning
applications to be made in respect of development which has been carried
out without planning permission and for applications for planning
permission to authorise development which has been carried out without
complying with some planning condition to which it was subject. Special
consideration may need to be given to conditions imposed on planning
permissions granted under section 33. For example, the standard time-
limiting condition will not be appropriate where development has begun
before planning permission has been granted.

5. Section 42 of the Act provides for applications for planning permission
to develop land without complying with conditions previously imposed on a
planning permission. The planning authority can grant such permission
unconditionally or subject to different conditions, or they can refuse the
application if they decide that the original condition(s) should continue.
The original planning permission wilhganginue to subsist whatever the
outcome of the application under section 42. This section will not apply if
the period within which the development could beain. as specified in the



previous condition, has expired without the development having begun.*

Other considerations

Policy and other considerations

6. The limits of the enabling powers are not the only constraints on the use
of conditions. Conditions should normally be consistent with national
planning policies, as expressed in Government Circulars, National Planning
Policy Guidelines (NPPGs) and other published material. They should also
normally be consistent with the provisions of development plans and other
policies of planning authorities. However, where a certain kind of condition
is specifically endorsed by a development plan policy it is still necessary to
consider whether it is justified in the particular circumstances of the
proposed development. In general, conditions which duplicate the effect of
other legislation should not be imposed (see paragraphs 19-22).

Practice

Role of pre-application discussions

7. Even before an application is made, informal discussions between the
applicant and the planning authority can be very helpful. They can allow the
applicant to formulate the details of a project so as to take full account of
the requirements of the authority and assist the authority in making sure
that those requirements are reasonable in the light of the development
proposed. Discussion can also reduce the need for conditions, enable the
authority to explore the possible terms of conditions which remain
necessary and ensure that these are tailored to the circumstances of the
case.

"Standard Conditions”

8. Lists of standard or model corgliiangpcan be of great benefit. They can
improve consistency of decisions, make effective use of staff resources
and increase the speed of processina of plannina applications. Thev mav



L4

also, however, encourage the use of conditions as a matter of routine,
without the careful assessment of the need for a condition which every
applicant should be able to expect. Slavish or uncritical application of
conditions is wholly inappropriate. Lists of standard conditions can
usefully be made available locally, so that developers can take account of
possible conditions at an early stage in drawing up their proposals. Such
lists should contain a warning that they are not comprehensive and that
conditions will always be devised or adapted where appropriate to suite the
particular circumstances of a case.

Reasons

9. It is for the planning authority, in the first instance, to judge on the facts
of the case whether a particular development proposal should be approved
subject to planning conditions. By virtue of Article 22(1)(a) of The Town
and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) (Scotland) Order
1992, an authority deciding to grant permission subject to conditions must
state the reasons for their decision. Where a planning authority, by virtue of
Article 15 of the General Development Procedure Order, has consulted
other bodies in respect of a planning application and is disposed to grant
planning permission subject to a condition suggested to them by another
body, the authority should ensure that the body has provided clear reasons
for suggesting the imposition of the condition. Such conditions should only
be imposed where they will meet clear land use planning objectives; as
stated in paragraph 6 above conditions should not be used to duplicate
controls available under other legislation. Reasons must be given for the
imposition of every condition. It may be that more than one condition will
be justified on the same basis, in which case it will be acceptable that such
conditions be grouped together and justified by one reason. Reasons such
as "to comply with the policies of the Council®, "to secure the proper
planning of the area" or "to maintain control over the development” are
vague, and can suggest that the condition in question has no proper
justification. The phrase "to protect amenity" can also be obscure and will
often need amplification. If the reasons for the imposition of conditions are
clearly explained, developers will be better able to understand the need for
them and to comply with them in spirit as well as in letter. The likelihood of
proper and acceptable conditions tl1_)ein %I}‘allenged on appeal, so that
development proposals are held up, %ﬂ%also be diminished.



Notes for information

10. Sometimes planning authorities will wish to give guidance to an
applicant for outline planning permission as to the kind of details of
reserved matters which they would find acceptable. A planning authority
may also wish to draw the attention of an applicant to other statutory
consents (eg listed building or road construction consent) which must be
obtained before development can commence. This should not be done by
imposing a condition: instead a note may be appended to the planning
permission. A note may also be desirable to draw the attention of the
applicant to his or her right to make an application to vary or remove a
condition under section 42 of the Act, or indeed for other purposes.

Planning agreements

11. Problems posed by a development proposal may be solved either by
imposing a condition on the planning permission or by concluding a
planning agreement under section75 of the Act or under other powers. The
Secretary of State's policy on planning agreements is set out in SODD
Circular 12/1996. This makes it clear that the planning authority should
normally seek to regulate a development by a condition rather than through
an agreement, since the imposition of restrictions by means of an
agreement deprives the developer of the opportunity of seeking to have the
restrictions varied or removed by an application or appeal under Part Il of
the Act if they are subsequently seen as being inappropriate or too
onerous. Planning authorities should note that if a certain restriction is
contrary to the advice contained in this Circular it is likely to be
objectionable regardless of whether it is suggested that it should be
implemented by a condition or an agreement. It is ultra vires to impose a
condition in a planning permission requiring an applicant to enter into an
agreement. Nor should conditions imposed on a grant of planning
permission be duplicated in a planning agreement.

Test

. - P 4
Six tests for conditions age 9

12. On a number of occasions the Courts have laid down the aeneral



criteria for the validity of planning conditions. In addition to satisfying the
Courts' criteria for validity, conditions should not be imposed unless they
are both necessary and effective, and do not place unjustifiable burdens on
applicants. As a matter of policy, conditions should only be imposed where
they are:

® necessary

¢ relevant to planning

¢ relevant to the development to be permitted
e enforceable

e precise, and

e reasonable in all other respects

Test: need for a condition

13. In considering whether a particular condition is necessary, authorities
should ask themselves whether planning permission would have to be
refused if that condition were not to be imposed. If it would not, then the
condition needs special and precise justification. Planning authorities
should also avoid imposing conditions through anxiety to guard against
every possible contingency, however remote. The argument that a
condition will do no harm is no justification for its imposition; as a matter
of policy a condition ought not to be imposed unless there is a definite
need for it. The same principles, of course, must be applied in dealing with
applications for the removal of a condition under section 33 or 42 of the
Act; a condition should not be retained unless there are sound and clear-
cut reasons for doing so.

14. In some cases a condition will clearly be unnecessary, such as where it
would repeat provisions in another condition imposed on the same
permission. In other cases the lack of need may be less obvious and it may
help to ask whether it would be considered expedient to enforce against a
breach- if not, then the condition may well be unnecessary.

15. Conditions should be tailored top?gcek?eSSpeciﬂc problems, rather than
impose unjustified controls. In so far as a condition is wider in its scope



than is necessary to achieve the desired objective, it will fail the test of
need. For example, where an extension to a dwellinghouse in a particular
direction would be unacceptable, a condition on the permission for its
erection should specify that, and not simply remove all rights to extend the
building. Permissions should not, however, be overloaded with conditions.
It might be appropriate, for example, to impose on a permission in a
conservation or other sensitive area a requirement that all external details
and materials should be in complete accordance with the approved plans
and specifications, rather than recite a long list of architectural details one
by one.

Completion of development

16. Conditions requiring development to be carried out in its entirety, or in
complete accordance with the approved plans, often fail the test of need by
requiring more than is needed to deal with the problem they are designed
to solve. If what is really wanted is simply to ensure that some particular
feature or features of the development are actually provided or are finished
in a certain way, specific conditions to this end are far preferable to a
general requirement.

17. The absence of a specific condition does not prevent enforcement
action being taken against development which differs materially from the
approved design. However, it may well be easier for planning authorities to
enforce compliance with a condition that has been breached, than to
enforce on the basis of a material variation from the approved plans or
description of development. Where an application includes information, for
example on likely hours of working, which significantly influence the
planning decision, it may be appropriate to include a specific condition to
ensure compliance with the restrictions.

Test: Relevance to planning

18. A condition which has no relevance to planning is ultra vires. A
condition that the first occupants of dwellings must be drawn from the
local authority's housing waiting list, for example, would be improper
because it was meant to meet the ends of the local authority as housing
authority and was not imposed fB@8R®8ing reasons. Although a condition
can quite properly require the provision of open space to serve the

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ P N Y [P T A T < PR I T TR o [P W TR [ |



dppiuvoUu UCvCIUMPITITHIL \do pPdl Lt Ul d 11UUOSlTTy ToldlT, Ul TAAITIPIT) 1L VWUUIU
be ultra vires if it required the open space to be dedicated to the public.
Other conditions affecting land ownership (requiring, for example, that the
land shall not be disposed of except as a whole) where there was no
planning justification for such a constraint would similarly be ultra vires.

Other planning controls

19. Some matters are the subject of specific control elsewhere in planning
legislation, for example advertisement control, listed building consent or
tree preservation. If these controls are relevant to the development the
planning authority should normally rely on them and not impose conditions
on a grant of planning permission to achieve the purposes of a separate
system of control (but on Trees note paragraphs 77 and 78 below).

Non-planning controls

20. Other matters are subject to control under separate legislation, yet are
also of concern to the planning system. A condition which duplicates the
effect of other controls will normally be unnecessary and one whose
requirements conflict with those of other controls will be ultra vires
because it is unreasonable. For example, a planning condition would not
normally be appropriate to control the level of emissions from a proposed
development where they are subject to pollution control legislation.
However, such a condition may be needed to address the impact of the
emissions to the extent that they might have land-use implications and/or
are not controlled by the appropriate pollution control authority. (For further
advice on this subject, see Planning Advice Note51 Planning and
Environmental Protection.) A condition cannot be justified on the grounds
that the planning authority is not the body responsible for exercising a
concurrent control and, therefore, cannot ensure it will be exercised
properly. Nor can a condition be justified on the grounds that a concurrent
control is not permanent but is subject to expiry and renewal (as, for
example, with certain licences). Even where a condition does not actually
duplicate or conflict with another control, differences in requirements can
cause confusion and it will be desirable as far as possible to avoid solving
problems by the use of conditions instead of, or as well as, by another
more specific control. Page 97

21. Where other controls are also available. a condition mav. however be



needed when the considerations material to the exercise of the two
systems of control are substantially different, since it might be unwise in
these circumstances to rely on the alternative control being exercised in
the manner or to the degree needed to secure planning objectives.
Conditions may also be needed to deal with circumstances for which a
concurrent control is unavailable. A further case where conditions may be
justified will be where they can prevent development being carried out in a
manner which would be likely to give rise to onerous requirements under
other powers at a later stage (eg to ensure adequate arrangements for the
disposal of sewage and thus avoid subsequent intervention under the
Sewerage (Scotland) Act 1968).

22. As a matter of policy, conditions should not be imposed in order to
avoid compensation payments under other legislation (although such a
condition would not be ultra vires if it could be justified on planning
grounds). Although conditions which have the effect of restricting for
planning purposes the activities in respect of which planning permission is
granted may reasonably be imposed without any liability for compensation
arising under planning legislation, great care should be taken with
conditions which would have the effect of removing future liability for
compensation which might arise under other legislation. For example, a
condition requiring sound-proofing measures may be appropriate to a
permission for residential development near a major road where noise
levels are high. But it will be inappropriate to impose such a condition with
the aim of removing the roads authority's liability to install soundproofing
when proposals for major road improvement are implemented. A condition
of this sort is not relevant to the existing planning circumstances, but looks
to future circumstances in respect of which other legislation provides
compensation for those affected.

Test: relevance to the development to be permitted

23. Unless a condition fairly and reasonably relates to the development to
be permitted, it will be ultra vires.

24. It is not, therefore, sufficient that a condition is related to planning
objectives: it must also be justiﬂﬁ%bg g*ée nature of the development
permitted or its effect on the surrou%dlngs. For example, if planning
permission is being granted for the alteration of a factory building, it would



be wrong to impose conditions requiring additional parking facilities to be
provided for an existing factory simply to meet a need that already exists. It
would similarly be wrong to require the improvement of the appearance or
layout of an adjoining site simply because it is untidy or congested. Despite
the desirability of these objectives in planning terms, the need for the
action would not be created by the new development. On the other hand, it
is proper for conditions to secure satisfactory access or parking facilities,
for example, which are genuinely required by the users of a proposed
development. Conditions can also be proper where the need for them
arises out of the effects of the development rather than its own features;
for example, where a permission will result in intensification of industrial
use of a site, a condition may be necessary requiring additional sound-
insulation in the existing factory buildings. It may even be justifiable to
require by condition that an existing building be demolished- perhaps
where to have both would result in the site being over-intensively
developed.

Test: ability to enforce

25. A condition should not be imposed if it cannot be enforced. It is often
useful to consider what means are available to secure compliance with a
proposed condition. There are two provisions which authorities may use to
enforce conditions; an enforcement notice under section 127 of the Act or
a breach of condition notice under section 145. Precision in the wording of
conditions is crucial when it comes to enforcement.

Practicality of enforcement

26. Sometimes a condition will be unenforceable because it is in practice
impossible to detect an infringement. More commonly it will merely be
difficult to prove a breach of its requirements. For example, a condition
imposed for traffic reasons restricting the number of persons resident at
any one time in a block of flats would be impracticable to monitor and pose
severe difficulties in proving an infringement. However, where a condition is
intended to prevent harm to the amenity of an area which is clearly likely to
result from the development (for example, a condition requiring an
amusement centre to close at a certain time in the evening), it will not
usually be difficult to monitor compiR@REOVith the condition. Those
affected by contraventions of its requirements are likely to be able to

L Y L [ S R P



MIVVIUC LiTdal TVIUCIILT Ul dily bicdaduliTo.

Whether compliance is reasonable

27. A condition may raise doubt about whether the person carrying out the
development to which it relates can reasonably be expected to comply with
it. If not, subsequent enforcement action is likely to fail on the ground that
what is required cannot reasonably be enforced. One type of case where
this might happen is where a condition is imposed requiring the carrying
out of works (eg the construction of a means of access) on land within the
application site but not, at the time of the grant of planning permission,
under the control of the applicant. If the applicant failed to acquire an
interest in that land and carried out the development without complying
with the condition, the planning authority could enforce the condition only
by taking action against the third party who owned the land to which the
condition applied and who had gained no benefit from the development.
Such difficulties can usually be avoided by framing the condition so as to
require that the development authorised by the permission should not
commence until the access has been constructed.

Enforcing conditions imposed on permission for operational
development

28. An otherwise legally sound condition may prove unenforceable
because it is imposed on a grant of planning permission for the carrying
out of operations which have not been carried out in accordance with the
approved plans. Authorities should take into account the Court of Appeal's
judgement in the case of Handoll and Othersv Warner Goodman and Streat
(A firm) and Others, (1995) 25EG157, which held that the judgement of the
Divisional Court in KerrierDCv Secretary of State for the Environment and
Brewer (1980) 41P&CR284, had been wrongly decided. Both cases
concerned a planning permission for the erection of a dwelling subject to
an agricultural occupancy condition.**

Test: precision

29. The framing of conditions requires great care, not least to ensure that a
condition is enforceable. A congitiga,fon example, requiring only that "a
landscaping scheme shall be submitted for the approval of the planning
authoritv" is incomplete since. if the applicant were to submit the scheme



and even obtain approval for it, but neglect to carry it out, it is unlikely that
the planning authority could actually require the scheme to be
implemented. In such a case, a requirement should be imposed that
landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with a scheme to be
approved in writing by the planning authority; and the wording of the
condition must clearly require this. A condition of this kind also sets no
requirement as to the time or the stage of development by which the
landscaping must be done, which can similarly lead to enforcement
difficulties. Conditions which require specific works to be carried out at a
certain 'time' or stage should state clearly when this must be done.

Vague conditions

30. A condition which is not sufficiently precise for the applicant to be able
to ascertain what he must do to comply with it is ultra vires and must not
be imposed. Vague expressions which sometimes appear in conditions, for
example "keep the buildings in a tidy state" or "so as not to cause
annoyance to nearby residents”, give occupants little idea of what is
expected of them. Furthermore, conditions should not be made subject to
qualifications, such as "if called upon to do so" or "if the growth of traffic
makes it desirable”, because these do not provide any objective and certain
criterion by which the applicant can ascertain what is required.

Discretionary or vetting conditions

31. Conditions which attempt to provide for an arbiter to interpret such
expressions or qualifications do not avoid this difficulty. Conditions
requiring that tidiness, for example, shall be "to the satisfaction of the
planning authority" make the applicant no more certain of what is required.
Conditions which are imprecise or unreasonable cannot be made
acceptable by phrases such as "except with the prior approval of the
planning authority" which purport to provide an informal procedure to
waive or modify their effect. Similarly, conditions restricting the occupation
of a building should not set up a vetting procedure for prospective
occupiers. Conditions which raise these difficulties, however, are not to be
confused with conditions which require the submission of a scheme or
details for approval which will, whelgaggrgTsf, provide the precise guidelines
to be followed by the developer.



Clarity

32. Conditions should be not only precise but clear. Where the wording of a
condition may be difficult to follow, it may be helpful to attach to the
permission an illustrative plan (eg describing sight lines required at the
entrance to an access road).

Test: reasonableness

33. A condition can be ultra vires on the grounds of unreasonableness,
even though it may be precisely worded and apparently within the powers
available.

Conditions invalid on grounds of unreasonableness

34. A condition may be unreasonable because it is unduly restrictive.
Although a condition may in principle impose a continuing restriction on
the use of land (provided that there are good planning reasons for that
restriction), such a condition should not be imposed if the restriction
effectively nullifies the benefit of the permission. For example, it would
normally be reasonable to restrict the hours during which an industrial use
may be carried on if the use of the premises outside these hours would
affect the amenity of the neighbourhood. However, it would be
unreasonable to do so to such an extent as to make it impossible for the
occupier to run his business properly. If it appears that a permission could
be given only subject to conditions that would be likely to be held
unreasonable by the Courts, then planning permission should be refused
altogether.

Avoidance of onerous requirements

35. Even where a condition would not be so unreasonably restrictive as to
be ultra vires, it may still be so onerous that as a matter of policy it should
be avoided. For example, a condition which would put a severe limitation
on the freedom of an owner to dispose of his property, or which would
obviously make it difficult to finance the erection of the permitted building
by borrowing on mortgage, should be avoided on these grounds. An unduly
restrictive condition can never la8fad84cceptable by offering the
prospect of informal relaxation of its effect.



Control over land

36. Particular care needs to be taken over conditions which require works
to be carried out on land in which the applicant has no interest at the time
when planning permission is granted. If the land is included in the site in
respect of which the application is made, such conditions can in principle
be imposed, but the authority should have regard to the points discussed in
paragraph 3 above. If the land is outside that site, a condition requiring the
carrying out of works on the land cannot be imposed unless the authority
are satisfied that the applicant has sufficient control over the land to enable
those works to be carried out.

Conditions depending on others' actions

37. It is unreasonable to impose a condition worded in a positive form
which developers would be unable to comply with themselves, or which
they could comply with only with the consent or authorisation of a third
party Similarly, conditions which require the applicant to obtain an
authorisation from another body, such as the Scottish Environment
Protection Agency, should not be imposed.

38. Although it would be ultravires to require works which the developer
has no powers to carry out, or which would need the consent or
authorisation of a third party, it may be possible to achieve a similar result
by a condition worded in a negative form, prohibiting development until a
specified action has been taken. Whereas previously it had been
understood that the test of whether such a condition was reasonable, was
strict; to the effect that there were at least reasonable prospects of the
action in question being performed, the House of Lords (in the British
Railways Boardv the Secretary of State for the Environment and Hounslow
LBC [1994] JPL32;[1993] 3 PLR 125) established that the mere fact that a
desirable condition, worded in a negative form appears to have no
reasonable prospects of fulfilment does not mean that planning
permission need necessarily be refused as a matter of law. Thus, while an
authority will continue to have regard to all relevant factors affecting a
planning application and whether it should be granted with or without
conditions, there is no longer a legalggguirgment to satisfy a reasonable
prospects test in respect of any negative condition they may decide to
imbose. For example. if it could be shown that improvements to sewerage



e

facilities for a new housing development were planned but there was no
clear indication that they would be built within the time limits imposed by
the permission, it might still be possible to grant consent subject to a
condition that the houses should not be occupied until the relevant
sewerage works were completed. It might also be reasonable to use a
condition requiring that a development should not commence until a
particular road had been stopped up or diverted, even if the timing
remained uncertain. Planning authorities should therefore note this recent
House of Lords ruling and its implications for a less restrictive view in the
use of negative conditions.

Consent of applicant to unreasonable conditions

39. An unreasonable condition does not become reasonable because an
applicant suggests it or consents to its terms. The condition will normally
run with the land and may, therefore, still be operative long after the
applicant has moved on. It must always be justified on its planning merits.

Regulation of development

Outline permissions

40. An applicant who proposes to carry out building or other operations
may choose to apply either for full planning permission, or for outline
permission with one or more of the following matters reserved by condition
for the subsequent approval of the planning authority: the siting, design or
the external appearance of the building, the means of access, or the
landscaping of the site ("reserved matters"). An applicant cannot seek an
outline planning permission for a change of use alone.

Details supplied in outline applications

41. An applicant can, however, choose to submit as part of an outline
application details of any of these "reserved matters". Unless he has
indicated that those details are submitted "for illustrative purposes only"
(or has otherwise indicated thaP8@§ 384 not formally part of the
application), the planning authority must treat them as part of the

PN Y [ T T AR L R T PR [ T L [ m PR



UTVCIVUMITICTTHIL T TCopCULL UL ViUl UIC dpplivdllull 1o UTIHHTy Thidutc. 111C
authority cannot reserve that matter by condition for subsequent approval,
unless the applicant is willing to amend the application by withdrawing the
details.

Conditions relating to outline permissions

42. Once outline planning permission has been granted, it cannot be
withdrawn except by a revocation order under section65 of the Act, and any
subsequent approval of reserved matters does not constitute the granting
of a further planning permission. Any conditions relating to anything other
than the reserved matters should be imposed when outline permission is
granted. The only conditions which can be imposed when the reserved
matters are approved are conditions which directly relate to those matters.
So, where certain aspects of the development are crucial to the decision,
planning authorities will wish to consider imposing relevant conditions
when outline permission is granted. For example, it may be considered
necessary to require a building to be constructed within a specified
"footprint” or to retain important landscape features which would affect the
setting of the building and its neighbours.

43. If the planning authority consider that, whatever the precise form the
development is to take, access to the buildings should be from a particular
road (or, alternatively, that there should be no means of access from a
particular road), then a condition to this effect must be imposed on the
outline permission. Approval of the details of the means of access to the
permitted buildings can be refused on the grounds that there should not be
access to the site from a particular road only if the need for such a
restriction arises from the details of the development which have been
submitted for approval (eg from the density which is indicated by
submitted details of the design and siting of the buildings). It is desirable
that, wherever possible, notes should be appended to an outline
permission to give the developer guidance as to what precise form of
development will be acceptable to the planning authority.

Conditions reserving other matters

44. Authorities should seek to ensysggahgys possible, that conditions other
than those relating to reserved matters, are self-contained and do not
require further anprovals to be obtained before develoboment can beadin.



Where necessary, however, a planning authority may also, when granting a
full or outline planning permission, impose a condition requiring that
details of a specified aspect of the development which was not fully
described in the application (eg the provision of car parking spaces) be
submitted for approval before the development is begun. In the case of full
permission such a condition can relate to details (such as landscaping)
which might have been reserved matters had the application been made in
outline. The applicant has the same right of appeal to the Secretary of
State under section 47 of the Act if he cannot get the authority's approval,
agreement or consent to matters reserved under such a condition as he
has in respect of applications for approval of reserved matters.

Time-limits on the commencement of development

Statutory time-limits

45. The imposition of time-limits on the commencement of development is,
by virtue of section 58 of the Act, not required for temporary permissions
(see paragraphs 104-109), for permissions for any development carried out
before the grant of planning permission, or for permissions granted by a
development order, an enterprise zone or simplified planning zone scheme.

Time-limits on full permissions

46. Other grants of planning permission (apart from outline permissions)
should, under section58 of the Act, be made subject to a condition
imposing a time-limit within which the development authorised must be
started. The section specifies a period of five years from the date of the
permission. Where planning permission is granted without a condition
limiting the duration of the planning permission, it is deemed to be granted
subject to the condition that the development to which it relates must be
begun not later than the expiration of 5 years beginning with the grant of
permission.

Time-limits on outline permiggionss
47. Grants of outline planning permission must, under section 59 of the

Y U T R [ L T N [ N . S TR T Al NI [ T



AL UT 1HTIdUT oUbJCULLl LU LUTIUILIVITO TTTTIPUOSITHTy LWU LypJTo UL LHTITTHTTHE, UITIT
within which applications must be made for the approval of reserved
matters and a second within which the development itself must be started.
The periods specified for the submission of applications for approval of
reserved matters are: the latest of three years from the grant of outline
permission; 6months from the date of refusal of an earlier application; and
6months from the date on which an appeal against such a refusal was
dismissed. The periods specified for starting the development are either
five years from the grant of permission or two years from the final approval
of the last of the reserved matters, whichever is the longer.

Variation from standard time-limits

48. If the authority consider it appropriate on planning grounds, they may
specify longer or shorter periods than those specified in the Act, and must
give their reasons for so doing. In the absence of specific time-limiting
conditions, permission is deemed to have been granted subject to
conditions imposing the periods referred to in paragraphs 46 and 47. It
may be particularly desirable to adopt a flexible approach to the fixing of
time-limits where development is to be carried out in distinct parts or
phases; section 59(6) of the Act provides that outline permissions may be
granted subject to a series of time-limits, each relating to a separate part of
the development. Such a condition must be imposed at the time outline
planning permission is granted.

49. A condition requiring the developer to obtain approval of reserved
matters within a stated period should not be used, since the timing of an
approval is not within the developer's control. A condition, therefore, should
set time-limits only on the submission of applications for approval of
reserved matters.

Separate submission of different reserved matters

50. Applications for approval under an outline permission may be made
either for all reserved matters at once, or for one at one time and others at
another. Even after details relating to a particular reserved matter have
been approved, one or more fresh applications may be made for approval
of alternative details in relation to thggamgrreserved matter. Once the
time-limit for applications for approval of reserved matters has expired,
however no aopplications for such an approval can be made.



Effect of time-limit

51. After the expiry of the time-limit for commencement of development it
would be ultra vires for development to be begun under that permission; a
further application for planning permission must be made.

Renewal of permissions before expiry of time-limits

52. Developers who delay the start of development are likely to want their
permission renewed, as the time-limit for implementation approaches.
Under Article 5 of The Town and Country Planning (General Development
Procedure) (Scotland) Order 1992 applications for such renewals may be
made simply by letter, referring to the existing planning permission,
although the planning authority have power subsequently to require further
information, if needed. As a general rule, such applications should be
refused only where:

a. there has been some material change in planning circumstances since
the original permission was granted (eg a change in some relevant
planning policy for the area, or in relevant road considerations or the issue
by the Government of a new planning policy which is material to the
renewal application);

b. there is likely to be continued failure to begin the development and this
will contribute unacceptably to uncertainty about the future pattern of
development in the area; or

c. the application is premature because the permission still has a
reasonable time to run.

Completion of development

Completion of whole development

53. A condition requiring that tH3agRol®Sf the development permitted be
completed is likely to be difficult to enforce. If a development forming a

P RN LN I PR S R . [ F [ R SR I [ of R R I Y N SR |



SITYIT ITIUIVIOIVIT WIUIC, oULIll do d olllylT UVVTIHITIITYIIvUuoC, 1o ITit iall~iiolicuy,
it may be possible to secure completion by a completion notice under
section 61 of the Act. If, however, the reason for failure to complete is
financial difficulties experienced by the developer, neither a completion
notice nor the enforcement of conditions would be likely to succeed. In
such circumstances, the only practical step open to the planning authority,
if they wish to secure the completion of the development, would be to carry
it out themselves following acquisition of the land. If a large development,
such as an estate of houses is left half-complete, this may be due to
market changes (for example, a shift in demand from four-bedroom to two-
bedroom houses) and it would clearly not be desirable to compel the
erection of houses of a type for which there was no demand. Conditions
requiring the completion of the whole of a development should, therefore,
not normally be imposed.

Completion of elements of a development

54. Conditions may be needed, however, to secure that a particular element
in a scheme is provided by a particular stage or before the scheme is
brought into use, or to secure the provision of an element of a kind a
developer might otherwise be tempted to defer or omit. Thus it may be
desirable to require that a new access to the site should be constructed
before any other development is carried out; or, where an office scheme
includes a car park, that the car park is completed before the offices are
occupied; or, where the scheme includes both offices and housing, that the
offices should not be occupied before the houses are complete. The
approach adopted must, of course, be reasonable. Taking the last example,
it could well be unacceptable to require that the houses should be
completed before the offices are begun; this would be likely to be an
unjustifiable interference with the way the development is carried out. Or, to
take another example, it could well be unacceptable to demand that all the
requirements of a landscape condition should be complied with before a
building is occupied; this could involve the building lying empty for many
months, since such a condition will often provide for a considerable
maintenance period so that trees can become established.

Phasing Page 109

55. Conditions may also be imposed to ensure that development proceeds
in a certain seauence where some circumstances of the proposal. for



example the manner of infrastructure provision, makes this necessary. A
condition delaying development over a substantial period is a severe
restriction on the benefit of the permission granted. If land is available for a
particular purpose, its commencement should not be delayed by condition
because the authority have adopted a system of rationing the release of
land for development.

Traffic and transport

56. The Government is planning to publish a White Paper in 1998 setting
out its new integrated transport policy. This will aim, for example, to offer
genuine choice to the travelling public by promoting more integrated public
transport systems and to address the problems of congestion and
transport related pollution. New planning guidance and advice flowing from
the new policy will be issued in due course and it is likely that this will have
implications for the level of parking provision which it would be appropriate
to prescribe in planning conditions. Subsequent paragraphs need to be
read against this general background.

Parking, public transport, walking and cycling

57. Developments often generate extra traffic, usually in the form of
haulage or delivery vehicles or cars of residents, visitors or employees.
Unless this demand is minimal (as it might be, for example, in the case of
some very small firms) and unlikely to cause obstruction, space may need
to be provided for off-street parking. Any conditions specifying the number
of parking spaces should be consistent with the development plan as well
as transport policies for the area. They also need to be reasonable in
relation to the size and nature of the development and to satisfy the tests
referred to in paragraph 12.

58. Normally a parking site separate from the road will be needed. In this
case, conditions should ensure, where necessary, that space is provided for
the turning of vehicles so that they do not have to reverse on to the road.
Where the authority decides that it is appropriate to require the provision of
car parking spaces on other land under the control of the applicant, the
development must be readily aﬁ;_g:ael:gsgiﬁeofrom the car park.

59. In certain circumstances, developers may enter into a planning



agreement with the planning authority to provide off-site parking or to
contribute to other transport measures directly related to the development,
for example to assist public transport or walking and cycling. The
provisions of such agreements should reflect Government policy as set out
in SODD Circular 12/1996.

Access

60. Where a service road is needed as part of a large development for
which outline permission is to be granted, it may be necessary to impose a
condition requiring all access to the main road to be by means of the
service road. If such a condition is not imposed at outline stage it may not
be possible to secure the objective at a later stage (see paragraph 42).
Similarly, if it is desired that there should be no direct access on to a main
road, or that access must be taken from a particular side road, a condition
to that effect should be imposed on the outline permission, as without
such a condition these restrictions could not normally be introduced when
details are being considered.

61. A condition may require the provision or improvement of a service road
or means of access even if such works are not included in the application,
provided that they can be undertaken on the site in respect of which the
application is made, or on other land which is under the control of the
applicant, and relates to the proposed development. The condition should
be framed so as to require the laying out or improvement of the means of
access on the relevant section of the service road on defined land before
the relevant buildings are occupied.

62. In considering the imposition of conditions concerning "access’,
planning authorities should bear in mind the definition of "road" in section
277 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 which refers to
the definition in section 151 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984:

"any way (other than a waterway) over which there is a public right of
passage (by whatever means) and whether subject to a toll or not and
includes the road's verge, and any bridge (whether permanent or
temporary) over which, or tunnel through which, the road passes and any
reference to a road includes a part bia@@dfl

[ Y [P o || T R o Y S [ . S [ Sy MR [ | B I | IR A R [ | |



nUdauJo 1dil 11itv £ pdaltivuldl Ldlcyvlico™ puvliv 1vduos dlliu plivdadlt 1vdaddo ,
defined in section 151 of the Roads (Scotland) Act 1984. The former are
those included in a list of public roads kept by the roads authority and such
roads are managed and maintained by the authority. Private roads are
those over which the public has a right of passage but whose maintenance
is not the responsibility of a roads authority. Such roads are maintainable
privately but they are not private in any other way. They are not included in
the list of public roads but there is provision in the 1984 Act under which
they can be added to the roads authority's list provided they are of
adoptable standard. There is sometimes confusion as to what is a private
road and that term is often associated in the public mind with, for example,
driveways up to private houses. These are not "roads" in terms of the
Roads (Scotland) Act as there is no public right of passage over them
(anyone using them does so on the sufferance of the owner) and they are,
in fact, private accesses. Planning authorities should ensure that
prospective developers are fully aware of the significant difference
between a private access and a private road. "Private road" marked on a
plan indicates that the public will have a right of passage over the land
comprising the road: the developer will be required to seek from the roads
authority a separate written consent to build such a road and it must be
constructed to the standard required by that authority.

Lorry routing

63. Planning conditions are not an appropriate means of controlling the
right of passage over public roads. Although negatively worded conditions
which control such matters might sometimes be capable of being validly
imposed on planning permissions, such conditions are likely to be very
difficult to enforce effectively. It may be possible to encourage drivers to
follow preferred routes by posting site notices to that effect, or by requiring
them to use a particular entrance to (or exit from) the site. But where it is
judged essential to prevent traffic from using particular routes, the
appropriate mechanism for doing so is by means of an Order under
section1 of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.

Cession of land

64. Conditions may not require thgygession of land to other parties, such as
the roads authority.



Development of contaminated sites

Contaminated land

65. Land formerly used for many purposes, including industry and waste
disposal can be contaminated by substances that pose immediate or long-
term hazards to the environment or to health, or which may damage
buildings erected on such sites. Contaminants may also escape from the
site to cause air and surface or groundwater pollution and pollution of
nearby land. The emission of gas or leachate from a landfill site may be
particularly hazardous. In these circumstances, appropriate conditions may
be imposed in order to ensure that the development proposed for the site
will not expose future users or occupiers of the site, buildings and services,
or the wider environment to risks associated with the contaminants
present. Planning authorities should, however, base any such conditions on
a site-specific assessment of the environmental risks which might affect,
or be affected by, the particular proposed development. Conditions should
not duplicate the effect of other legislative controls. The contaminated
land should be remediated to a standard which is suitable for the proposed
use.

66. If it is known or strongly suspected that a site is contaminated to an
extent which would adversely affect the proposed development or infringe
statutory requirements, an investigation of the hazards by the developer
and proposals for remedial action will normally be required before the
application can be determined by the planning authority. Any subsequent
planning permission may need to include planning conditions requiring
certain remedial measures to be carried out.

67. In cases where there is only a suspicion that the site might be
contaminated, or where the evidence suggests that there may be only
slight contamination, planning permission may be granted subject to
conditions that development will not be permitted to start until a site
investigation and assessment have been carried out and that the
development itself will incorporate any remedial measures shown to be
necessary. Page 113

CO NaAamAtrtiamAa smmim~md: AlaAa LA Simmm mcammaAd oA~y ttm~m tle A A A Al A~ A AN AeAvas A



LO. UUIIUIUULNIO TTTTTylit dioU UT HHTTPJUOTU 1TUUIllITYy UIT UTVEIVUPTIE LU UldVvy LU
the attention of the planning authority the presence of significant
unsuspected contamination encountered during redevelopment. The
planning authority may then require the developer to take further
remediation action under public health duties. Further guidance on
contaminated land is contained in NPPG10- Planning and Waste
Management. PAN33- Development of Contaminated Land and PAN51-
Planning and Environment Protection. A new regime for identifying and
remediating contaminated land is being introduced through the provision
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990, as amended by the Environment
Act 1995. This uses a risk-based approach in identifying contaminated land
and applies the polluter pays and 'suitable for use' principles. The role of
the planning system in addressing contamination will continue alongside
the new regime.

Environmental assessment

69. For projects subject to environmental assessment, conditions attached
to a grant of planning permission may incorporate monitoring and
mitigation measures proposed in an environmental statement where such
conditions meet the criteria summarised in paragraph 12. It may be
appropriate to impose conditions on the grant of planning permission and
in the light of the environmental assessment, to require a scheme of
mitigation covering matters of planning concern to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the planning authority before any development is
undertaken. Again conditions should not duplicate the effect of other
legislative controls. In particular, planning authorities should not seek to
substitute their own judgement on pollution control issues for that of the
bodies with the relevant expertise and the statutory responsibility for that
control.

Noise

70. Noise can have a significant effect on the environment and on the
quality of life enjoyed by individuals and communities. The planning
system should ensure that, wherever practicable, noise-sensitive
developments are separated from major sources of noise and that new
development involving noisy actiyieq should, if possible, be sited away
from noise-sensitive land uses. Where it is not possible to achieve such a
separation of land uses. plannina authorities should consider whether it is



practicable to control or reduce noise levels, or to mitigate the impact of
noise, through the use of conditions or planning agreements. (See SDD
Circular 16/1973.)

Nature conservation and landscape

71. Nature conservation and landscape quality can be important material
considerations in determining many planning applications. Planning
authorities should not, however, refuse permission if development can be
permitted subject to conditions that will prevent damaging impacts on
particular species, wildlife habitats or important physical features.
Moreover, for some types of development, such as mineral workings,
conditions can be used to provide, on completion of operations, a natural
heritage asset. Conditions can also be used, for example, to require areas
to be fenced or bunded off to protect them, to restrict operations or uses at
or to particular times of the year, to safeguard particular views or to
reinforce particular landscape features. The views of Scottish Natural
Heritage (SNH) will be particularly important in assessing the impact of
development on the natural heritage of an area and in framing appropriate
conditions.

72. Planning authorities should bear in mind that a number of areas valued
for their landscape quality or nature conservation interest are afforded
statutory protection. National Scenic Areas provide the national
designation for landscape. For habitats, as well as national designations
(primarily Sites of Special Scientific Interest), European Community
Directives on nature conservation, most notably through Special Areas of
Conservation under the Habitats Directive and Special Protection Areas
under the Wild Birds Directive, are being implemented. A number of sites
have also been designated under the Ramsar Convention on Wetlands of
International Importance. Conditions affecting such areas will need to be
consistent with the provisions applicable for their protection. Scottish
Office Environment Department Circulars 13/1991 and 6/1995 are
particularly important sources of information and guidance.

73. Where the primary concern relates to land management or access to
natural heritage resources, planning authoi?ies should consider whether
mechanisms other than those providﬁjl under planning legislation might
provide the best means of securing their objectives. Countryside



Management Agreements under the Countryside (Scotland) Act 1967 as
amended by the Natural Heritage (Scotland) Act 1991 provide a
mechanism for securing appropriate management of natural heritage
assets. Access or Public Path Creation Agreements under the 1967 Act
can be used to secure appropriate access for enjoyment of the natural
heritage.

Design and landscape

74. The appearance of a proposed development and its relationship to its
surroundings are material considerations in planning decisions. While
planning authorities should not attempt to use conditions simply to impose
matters of taste, there will be circumstances where it is important to
secure a high quality of design in a proposal if this is to make a positive
contribution to a site and its surroundings and show consideration for its
local context. This could involve, for example, specifying in conditions the
use of particular design features such as materials or finishes. The
appearance and treatment of the spaces between and around buildings is
also of great importance. Similarly, planning authorities may wish to use
conditions to ensure that important vistas are preserved or that landscape
features are provided to improve the overall setting of a development.

75. Landscape design may raise special considerations. The treatment of
open space can vary greatly and the objective should be to ensure that the
intended design quality is achieved in practice. It is, therefore, especially
important for the authority to give some advance indication of the essential
characteristics of an acceptable landscape scheme- always bearing in
mind that such requirements should not be unreasonable. It is of equal
importance to ensure that the design proposals are reflected in the quality
of works and materials in the final product. The design and implementation
stages of landscape treatment may, therefore, be addressed more
successfully by separate conditions, occurring as they do at different
stages and under variable circumstances. The visual impact of a
development will often need to be assessed as a whole and this may well
involve considering details of landscape design together with other
reserved matters.

Page 116
Enforcement of landscaping requirements

7 r b o 1 R T [ R (. . PR R [ T



/0. 11U CHIoUlIT Uldl d IalluoLdptT UTOlIYyll oLIITITIT 1o PICpyditTU, LULIUILIVITO TTidy
require that no development should take place until the scheme is
approved, so long as this requirement is reasonable. Enforcing compliance
with landscape schemes can pose problems, since work on landscaping
can rarely proceed until building operations are nearing completion. Only
on permissions for a change of use would it be acceptable to provide that
the development permitted should not proceed until the landscaping had
been substantially completed. Where permission is being granted for a
substantial estate of houses, it might be appropriate to frame the relevant
condition to allow for landscape works to be phased in accordance with a
programme or timetable to be agreed between the developer and the
planning authority and submitted for approval as part of the landscape
design proposals. Alternatively, the erection of the last few houses might
be prohibited until planting had been completed in accordance with the
landscape scheme. In relation to a permission for an industrial or office
building, it would be possible to impose a condition prohibiting or
restricting occupation of the building until such works had been
completed.

Trees

77. Section 159 of the Act places an express duty on the planning authority,
when granting planning permission, to ensure whenever appropriate that
adequate conditions are imposed to secure the preservation or planting of
trees, and that any necessary tree preservation orders are made under
section 160 of the Act. When granting outline planning permission, the
authority may consider it appropriate to impose a condition requiring the
submission of particular details relating to trees to be retained on the site,
such as their location in relation to the proposed development and their
general state of health and stability. When granting detailed planning
permission, conditions may be used to secure the protection of trees to be
retained, for example by requiring the erection of fencing around trees
during the course of development or restricting works which are likely to
adversely affect them. The long-term protection of trees, however, should
be secured by tree preservation orders rather than by condition. Such
orders may also be expedient for the temporary protection of existing trees
until details of the reserved matters are submitted and it becomes clear
whether there is a need to retain thpimes17

78. The plantina and establishment of new trees mav need work over



several months or years and the authority may wish to ensure that they
obtain details of those responsible for the management and maintenance
of certain planted areas during that period of time. Where appropriate, a
condition may require not just initial planting, but also that trees shall be
maintained over a specified period of years and that any which die or are
removed within that time shall be replaced.

Sites of archaelogical interest

Archaeological sites

79. Monuments scheduled as of national importance by the Secretary of
State are protected by Part | of the Ancient Monuments and Archaeological
Areas Act 1979. Where its provisions apply, their effect should not be
duplicated by planning conditions (see paragraphs 19-21), although
authorities granting planning permission in such circumstances are
advised to draw the attention of the applicant to the relevant provisions of
the 1979 Act.

80. Where, however, planning permission is being granted for development
which might affect the setting of a scheduled monument or a non-
scheduled monument or its setting, the planning authority may wish to
impose conditions designed to protect the monument or its setting; to
secure the provision of archaeological excavation and recording prior to
development commencing; or, if the expectation of significant
archaeological deposits is low, to ensure arrangements are made for a
watching brief before and during the construction period. Further advice on
archaeology and planning conditions is given in NPPG 5 Archaeology and
Planning and Planning Advice Note 42 Archaeology.

Maintenance conditions

81. A condition may be imposed, where appropriate, requiring some feature
of a development to be retained- car parking spaces off the road, for
example, or an area of open space in a housing scheme. A condition
requiring something to be maint#gedL iBthe sense of being kept in good
repair or in a prescribed manner, should be imposed only when the

IR [P ) L TR nu [ S NI N [ N JR TR B L I T I R T S [ TR N



pialitilly dutliviity di© 1ully oduoliCU tiidl UIT I1TUUIITITITIHIU 1o UL T ITITVdAlIl LU
the development which is being permitted, reasonable in its effects and
sufficiently precise in its terms to be readily enforceable. Maintenance
conditions should not normally be imposed when granting permission for
the erection of buildings, or for works other than works of a continuing
nature such as minerals extraction.

Conditions requiring a financial or other consideration for the
grant of permission

82. As a general proposition no payment of money or other consideration
can be required when granting a permission or any other kind of consent
required by a statute, except where there is specific statutory authority.
Conditions requiring, for instance, the cession of land for road
improvements or for open space, or requiring the developer to contribute
money towards the provision of facilities not directly related to the
proposed development, should accordingly not be attached to planning
permissions. There may, however, be certain circumstances whereby the
general proposition should not apply. The appropriateness of conditions
involving financial or other considerations is dependent on the particular
circumstances of the development for which the planning authority intends
to grant planning permission and whether, in particular, the proposed
conditions satisfy the criteria in paragraph 12. Thus conditions, involving
financial considerations, but which meet the tests in paragraph 12 need not
necessarily be ultra vires. Planning authorities should also bear in mind the
advice in SODD Circular 12/1996 on Planning Agreements.

Conditions altering the nature of the development

Modifying proposed development

83. If some feature of a proposed development, or the lack of it, is
unacceptable in planning terms, the best course will often be for the
applicant to be invited to modify the application. If the modification is
substantial, of course, a fresh application will be needed. It may however,
depending on the case, be quicker Bgd eﬁigr for the planning authority to
impose a condition modifying the dev%?opment permitted in some way. The
precise course of action will normally emerge during discussion with the



applicant. It would thus be legitimate to require by condition that a factory
proposal, for example, should include necessary car parking facilities, but
wrong to grant permission for a development consisting of houses and
shops subject to a condition that houses be substituted for the shops.
Whether a modification would amount to substantial difference will depend
upon the circumstances of the case. A useful test will be whether it would
so change the proposal that: (i) those who have shown an interest in it
would wish to comment on the modification; and (ii) those who, although
they had a right to object to the original application and chose not to do so,
would be prejudiced if they were not now given an opportunity to comment.
A condition modifying the development, however, cannot be imposed if it
would make the development permitted substantially different from that
comprised in the application.

Regulation after development

84. Conditions which will remain in force after the development has been
carried out always need particular care. They can place onerous and
permanent restrictions on what can be done with the premises affected
and they should, therefore, not be imposed without scrupulous weighing of
where the balance of advantage lies. The following paragraphs give more
detailed guidance.

Restrictions on use or permitted development

85. Exceptionally, conditions may be imposed to restrict further
development which would normally be permitted by the Town and Country
Planning (General Permitted Development) (Scotland) Order 1992, or to
restrict changes of use which would not be regarded as development
whether because the change is not a "material” change within the terms of
section 26(1) of the Act, or by reason of section 26(2) and the provisions of
The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997.
Changes of use can be restricted either by prohibiting any change from the
use permitted or by precluding specific alternative uses. It should be noted,
however, that a condition restricting changes of use will not restrict
ancillary or incidental activities unless it so specifies. Similarly, a general
condition which restricts the use of land does not remove permitted
development rights for that useRaf@skdBe condition specifically removes
those rights as well.



Presumption against such restrictions

86. Both the General Permitted Development Order and the Use Classes
Order, however, are designed to give or confirm a freedom from detailed
control which will be acceptable in the great majority of cases. Accordingly,
save in exceptional circumstances, conditions should not be imposed
which restrict either permitted development rights granted by the General
Permitted Development Order or future changes of use which the Use
Classes Order would otherwise allow. The Secretary of State would regard
such conditions as unreasonable unless there were clear evidence that the
uses excluded would have serious adverse effects on amenity or the
environment, that there was no other forms of control and that the
condition would serve a clear planning purpose.

87. To illustrate some exceptional circumstances, it may be possible to
justify imposing a condition restricting permitted development rights
allowed by Class 7 of the General Permitted Development Order so as to
preserve an exceptionally attractive open plan estate free of fences, or
under Class 1 of the General Permitted Development Order so as to avoid
over-development by extensions to dwellinghouses in an area of housing at
unusually high density. Similarly, changes of use may be restricted so as to
prevent the use of large retail premises as a food or convenience goods
supermarket, where such a use may generate an unacceptable level of
additional traffic or have a damaging effect on the vitality of a nearby town
centre. Conditions may also limit the storage of hazardous substances in a
warehouse.

Specific conditions better than general ones

88. Because of the general presumption against such restrictions on
permitted development or on changes of use which are not development, it
will always be necessary to look carefully at the planning reasons for any
restriction and to ensure that the condition imposed is no more onerous
than can be justified (see paragraph 87 above). It would not be right to use
a condition restricting uses where an alternative, more specific, condition
would achieve the same end. For example, where it is necessary to restrict
the volume of noise emitted from grgigdystyial site and a condition
addressing the problem expressly can be used, that condition should be
imbposed. rather than one restrictina the permitted uses. Scrupulous care in



the giving of proper, adequate and intelligible reasons for imposing
conditions (see paragraph 9) can help authorities to ensure that the
conditions they impose are not more onerous than is necessary to achieve
their objective.

Restrictions on use

89. It will be preferable if a condition designed to restrict changes of use
can be drafted so as to prohibit a change to a particular unacceptable use
or uses (provided the list does not become too long), rather than in terms
which prevent any change of use at all. However, in certain cases a
condition confining the use only to the use permitted may be necessary. In
appropriate circumstances, it might be reasonable to impose a condition
limiting the intensification of use of small office or industrial buildings
where intensification beyond a certain point would generate traffic and/or
parking problems. Conditions designed to prevent the primary use of an
office building being changed to use as shops are unnecessary, as this
would involve a material change of use amounting to development of land
which would require planning permission.

Ancillary uses

90. Conditions are sometimes imposed restricting ancillary or incidental
activities which would not normally be material changes of use involving
development. Conditions of this kind can be burdensome to some
technologically advanced industries. They may have a need for higher than
normal levels of ancillary office, research or storage uses, or for short-term
changes in uses or the balance of uses. Such conditions should, therefore,
not normally be imposed on permissions for manufacturing or service
industry, except where they are designed to preclude or regulate activities
giving rise to hazard, noise or offensive emissions.

Conditions restricting the occupancy of buildings and
land

Page 122
Occupancy: general considerations



91. Since planning controls are concerned with the use of land rather than
the identity of the user, the question of who is to occupy premises for
which permission is to be granted will normally be irrelevant. Conditions
restricting occupancy to a particular occupier or class of occupier should
only be used when special planning grounds can be demonstrated and
where the alternative would normally be refusal of permission.

Personal permissions

92. Unless the permission otherwise provides, planning permission runs
with the land and it is seldom desirable to provide otherwise. There are
occasions relating, for example, to strong compassionate or other personal
grounds, where the planning authority is minded to grant permission for the
use of a building or land for some purpose which would not normally be
allowed. In such a case the permission may be made subject to a condition
that it shall enure only for the benefit of a named person- usually the
applicant. A permission personal to a company is generally inappropriate.
Conditions of this type will scarcely ever be justified in the case of a
permission for the erection of a permanent building.

General undesirability of commercial and industrial occupancy
conditions

93. Conditions are sometimes imposed to confine the occupation of
commercial or industrial premises to local firms. Such conditions can act-
undesirably- to protect local businesses against fair competition and may
hinder the movement of industry in response to economic demand. If a
service, or the employment it generates, is needed in an area, there is no
planning reason why it should be provided by one firm rather than another.
Commercial and industrial buildings in an area of open countryside will not
become more acceptable because their occupancy is restricted, nor will
the expansion of a local firm necessarily lead to less pressure for further
development (eg housing) than the arrival of a firm from outside. The
Secretary of State therefore regards such conditions as undesirable in
principle.

Conditions governing size of upijyeccupied
94. Conditions requiring that a large commercial or industrial building

Py U DN I MR B N R L. [N S ¥ TN S [ [



<11TUUIU VT ULLUPITU TILITTH Ullly do d olllyltT Uullit VI, dltclilidtiively, Ullly 11l
suites not exceeding a certain area or floorspace, represent a significant
interference with property rights which is likely to inhibit or delay the
productive use of the buildings affected. Such conditions should, therefore,
normally be avoided.

Domestic occupancy conditions

95. Subject to the advice about affordable housing (paragraph 96), staff
accommodation (paragraph 98-99), agricultural and forestry dwellings
(paragraphs 100-102) and seasonal use (paragraphs 111-113), if the
development of a site for housing is an acceptable use of the land, there
will seldom be any good reason on land use planning grounds to restrict
the occupancy of those houses to a particular type of person (eg those
already living or working in the area). To impose such a condition would be
to draw an artificial and unwarranted distinction between new houses or
new conversions and existing houses that are not subject to such
restrictions on occupancy or sale. It may deter housebuilders from
providing homes for which there is a local demand and building societies
from providing mortgage finance. It may also impose hardship on owners
who subsequently need to sell. It involves too detailed and onerous an
application of development control and too great an interference in the
rights of individual ownership. Such conditions should, therefore, not be
imposed save in the most exceptional cases where there are clear and
specific circumstances that warrant allowing an individual house (or
extension) on a site where development would not normally be permitted.

Affordable housing

96. The community's need for a mix of housing types- including affordable
housing- is capable of being a material planning consideration. It follows
that there may be circumstances in which it will be acceptable to use
conditions to ensure that some of the housing built is occupied only by
people falling within particular categories of need. Such conditions would
normally only be necessary where a different planning decision might have
been taken if the proposed development did not provide for affordable
housing and should make clear the nature of the restriction by referring to
criteria set out in the relevant dexgiapmant plan policy. Conditions should
not normally be used to control matters such as tenure, price or ownership.
Guidance on affordable housina is contained in NPPG 3: Land for Housina.



"Granny annexes"

97. Some extensions to dwellings are intended for use as "granny
annexes”. It is possible that a "granny annex" which provides independent
living accommodation, could subsequently be let or sold off separately
from the main dwelling. Where there are sound planning reasons why the
creation of an additional dwelling would be unacceptable, it may be
appropriate to impose a planning condition to the effect that the extension
permitted shall be used solely as accommodation ancillary to the main
dwellinghouse. The same is true for separate buildings (often conversions
of outbuildings) intended for use as "granny annexes". In these cases it is
even more likely that a separate unit of accommodation will be created.

Staff accommodation

98. The above considerations may equally apply to staff accommodation.
Where an existing house is within the curtilage of another building and the
two are in the same occupation, any proposal to occupy the two buildings
separately is likely to amount to a material change of use, so that planning
permission would be required for such a proposal even in the absence of a
condition. Planning authorities should normally consider applications for
such development sympathetically since, if the need for such a dwelling
(for the accommodation of an employee, for example) disappears, there
will generally be no justification for requiring the building to stand empty or
to be demolished.

99. Conditions tying the occupation of dwellings to that of separate
buildings (eg requiring a house to be occupied only by a person employed
by a nearby garage) should be avoided. However, exceptionally, such
conditions may be appropriate where there are sound planning reasons to
justify them, eg where a dwelling has been allowed on a site where
permission would not normally be granted. To grant an unconditional
permission would mean that the dwelling could be sold off for general use
which may be contrary to development plan policy for the locality. To
ensure that the dwelling remains available to meet the identified need, it
may therefore be acceptable to gralgtoqlgr iéssion subject to a condition

S

that ties the occupation of the new holisa 0 the existing business.



Agricultural and forestry dwellings

100. In many parts of Scotland planning policies impose strict controls on
new residential development in the open countryside. There may, however,
be circumstances where permission is granted to allow a house to be built
to accommodate a worker engaged in bona fide agricultural or forestry
employment on a site where residential development would not normally
be permitted. In these circumstances, it will often be necessary to impose
an agricultural or forestry worker occupancy condition.

101. Planning authorities will wish to take care to frame agricultural
occupancy conditions in such a way as to ensure that their purpose is
clear. In particular, they will wish to ensure that the condition does not have
the effect of preventing future occupation by retired agricultural workers or
the dependants of the agricultural occupant.

102. Where an agricultural occupancy condition has been imposed, it will
not be appropriate to remove it on a subsequent application unless it is
shown that circumstances have materially changed and that the
agricultural need which justified the approval of the house in the first
instance no longer exists.

Retail development

103. Out-of-centre retail developments, including retail parks, can change
their composition over time. If such a change would create a development
that the planning authority would have refused on the grounds of impact on
vitality and viability of an existing town centre, it may be sensible to
consider the use of planning conditions to ensure that these developments
do not subsequently change their character unacceptably. Any conditions
imposed should apply only to the main ranges of goods (eg food and
convenience goods, hardware, electrical goods, furniture and carpets) and
should not seek to control details of particular products to be sold. For
further guidance see NPPG 8: Retailing.

Temporary permissions

104. Section 41(1)(b) of the AcPg98slgéwer to impose conditions requiring
that a use be discontinued or that bwldmgs or works be removed at the

P I c . ol [ e I 1, N 1 . . . S PR Y o N P IR R 1



CliIu Ul d opcullitu PTliUvU. vVIITIT PCliilitoolvVil 1o ylidlittu 1Ul UI1C UTVCIUPITICTHIL
of the operational land of a statutory undertaker, however, this power does
not apply except with the undertaker's consent (see section 219 of the
Act). Conditions of this kind are sometimes confused with conditions
which impose a time-limit for the implementation of a permission
(paragraphs 45 to 49) but they are quite distinct and different
considerations arise in relation to them.

Principles applying to Temporary permissions

105. In other cases, in deciding whether a temporary permission is
appropriate, three main factors should be taken into account. Firstly, it will
rarely be necessary to give a temporary permission to an applicant who
wishes to carry out development which conforms with the provision of the
development plan. Secondly, it is undesirable to impose a condition
requiring the demolition after a stated period of a building that is clearly
intended to be permanent. Lastly, the material considerations to which
regard must be had in granting any permission are not limited or made
different by a decision to make the permission a temporary one. Thus, the
reason for granting a temporary permission can never be that a time-limit
is necessary because of the effect of the development on the amenity of
the area. Where such objections to a development arise they should, if
necessary, be met instead by conditions whose requirements will
safeguard amenity. If it is not possible to devise such conditions and the
damage to amenity cannot be accepted, then the proper course is to refuse
permission. These considerations mean that a temporary permission will
normally only be appropriate either where the applicant himself proposes
temporary development or when a trial run is needed in order to assess the
effect of the development on the area.

Short-term buildings or uses

106. Where, therefore, a proposal relates to a building or use which the
applicant is expected to retain or continue only for a limited period, whether
because he has specifically volunteered that intention or because it is
expected that the planning circumstances will change in a particular way at
the end of that period, then a temporary permission may be justified. For
example, permission might reasonphlyebggranted on an application for
erection of a temporary building to last seven years on land which will be
required for road improvements eiaht or more vears hence. althouah an



application to erect a permanent building on the land would normally be
refused.

Trial runs

107. Again, where an application is made for permanent permission for a
use which may be a "bad neighbour” to existing uses nearby but there is
insufficient evidence to enable the authority to be sure of its character or
effect, it might be appropriate to grant a temporary permission in order to
give the development a trial run, provided that such a permission would be
reasonable having regard to the capital expenditure necessary to carry out
the development. However, a temporary permission would not be justified
merely because, for example, a building is to be made of wood rather than
brick. Nor would a temporary permission be justified on the grounds that,
although a particular use, such as a hostel or playgroup, would be
acceptable in a certain location, the character of its management may
change. In certain circumstances it may be possible to grant temporary
permission for the provision of a caravan or other temporary
accommodation, where there is some evidence to support the grant of
planning permission for an agricultural or forestry dwelling but it is
inconclusive, perhaps because there is doubt about the sustainability of
the proposed enterprise. This allows time for such prospects to be
clarified.

108. A second temporary permission should not normally be granted. A
trial period should be set that is sufficiently long for it to be clear by the end
of the permission whether permanent permission or a refusal is the right
answer. Usually a second temporary permission will only be justified where
road or redevelopment proposals have been postponed or in cases of
hardship where temporary instead of personal permission has been
granted for a change of use.

Restoration of sites

1009. If the temporary permission is for development consisting of, or
including, the carrying out of operations, it is important to make provision
by condition for the removal of Bgégtii%dérngs and works permitted- not
merely for the cessation of the usé-and for the reinstatement of the land
when the permission expires. Where the permission is for temporary use of



land as a caravan site, conditions may include a requirement to remove at
the expiry of the permission any buildings or structures, such as toilet
blocks, erected under Class 17 of the General Permitted Development
Order.

Access for disabled people

110. Where a building is new or is being altered, it is usually sufficient to
rely on building regulations to ensure adequate access for disabled people.
However, some new development does not require building regulation
approval, eg development affecting the setting of buildings (layout of
estates, pedestrianisation etc) rather than the buildings themselves. Where
there is a clear planning need, it may be appropriate to impose a condition
to ensure adequate access for disabled people.

Seasonal use

Seasonal occupancy conditions

111. Occasionally it may be acceptable to limit the use of land for a
particular purpose to certain seasons of the year. For example, where
planning permission is being granted for a caravan site, the planning
authority may think it necessary to impose a condition to ensure that
during the winter months the caravans are not occupied and are removed
for storage to a particular part of the site or away from the site altogether.
Where such a condition is imposed, particular care should be taken to see
that the condition allows a reasonable period of use of the caravans in
each year. A similar approach may be taken where it is necessary to
prevent the permanent residential use of holiday chalets, which by the
character of their construction or design are unsuitable for continuous
occupation. Seasonal occupancy conditions may also be appropriate to
protect the local environment, or example, where the site is near a fragile
habitat which requires peace and quiet to allow seasonal breeding or
winter feeding to take place.

. . P 129
Holiday occupancy conditions age

112. In recent vears there has been an increased demand for self-caterina



holiday accommodation- whether new buildings (including mobile homes)
or converted properties- which may be constructed to a standard that
would equally support permanent residence in some comfort. But this
accommodation may also be located in areas in which the provision of
permanent housing would be contrary to national policies on development
in the countryside or not in accordance with development plan policies, or
both. The Secretary of State considers that the planning system should
respond to these changes without compromising policies to safeguard the
countryside.

113. There may be circumstances where it will be reasonable for the
planning authority to grant planning permission for holiday
accommodation as an exception to these policies, with a condition
specifying its use as holiday accommodation only. For example,
conversions of redundant buildings into holiday accommodation where
conversion to residential dwellings would not be permitted may reduce the
pressure on other housing in rural areas. A holiday occupancy condition
would seem more appropriate in those circumstances than a seasonal
occupancy condition. But authorities should continue to use seasonal
occupancy conditions to prevent the permanent residential use of
accommodation which by the character of its construction or design is
unsuitable for continuous occupation, particularly in the winter months.

Addendum to Circular 4/1998

Planning Series:

National Planning Policy Guidelines (NPPGs) provide statements of
Government policy on nationally important land use and other planning
matters, supported where appropriate by a locational framework.

Circulars, which also provide statements of Government policy, contain
guidance on policy implementation through legislative or procedural
change.

Planning Advice Notes (PANs) provide advice on good practice and other

relevant information.
Page 130

Statements of Government policy contained in NPPGs and Circulars may,


https://www.gov.scot/publications/ministerial-visits-europe-2018/

so far as relevant, be material considerations to be taken into account in
development plan preparation and development control.

Planning_circular 4-1998 The use of conditions in
planning_permissions.pdf

31 page PDF | 187.8 kB

Download

]
Contact

Email: chief.planner@gov.scot

Telephone: 0131 244 7528

Post:

Area 2-H (South)

Planning and Architecture Division
The Scottish Government

Victoria Quay

Edinburgh

EH6 6QQ

Page 131


mailto:chief.planner@gov.scot
https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/advice-and-guidance/1998/02/planning-circular-4-1998-use-of-conditions-in-planning-permissions/documents/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/govscot%3Adocument/Planning%2Bcircular%2B4-1998%2BThe%2Buse%2Bof%2Bconditions%2Bin%2Bplanning%2Bpermissions.pdf
https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/advice-and-guidance/1998/02/planning-circular-4-1998-use-of-conditions-in-planning-permissions/documents/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/govscot%3Adocument/Planning%2Bcircular%2B4-1998%2BThe%2Buse%2Bof%2Bconditions%2Bin%2Bplanning%2Bpermissions.pdf
https://www.gov.scot/binaries/content/documents/govscot/publications/advice-and-guidance/1998/02/planning-circular-4-1998-use-of-conditions-in-planning-permissions/documents/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/planning-circular-4-1998-use-conditions-planning-permissions-pdf/govscot%3Adocument/Planning%2Bcircular%2B4-1998%2BThe%2Buse%2Bof%2Bconditions%2Bin%2Bplanning%2Bpermissions.pdf?forceDownload=true

Was this helpful?

Your feedback will help us improve this site

Yes 1 No [ Yes,but

Accessibility

Archive

Contact

Cookies

Crown Copyright
Jobs and vacancies

Privacy

Page 132


https://www.gov.scot/accessibility/
https://www.gov.scot/archive/
https://www.gov.scot/about/contact-information/
https://www.gov.scot/cookies/
https://www.gov.scot/crown-copyright/
https://www.gov.scot/about/contact-information/jobs-vacancies
https://www.gov.scot/privacy/

Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



ovT ebed

Existing building

A ——

s gl N t 1
Existing access el o

retaining wall
road \ \

level = 8.765m [

level =21.365m

I

‘1 1.000 m ‘

Existing building
level =19.500m

O
O

level =9.900m
V Road
C/L

Proposed building and level
on North Elevation

level = 16.985m

. L
Existing access /
road
\
level >8.790m level = 8.8501
The buildings marked with blue hatch will
be removed from the site to make room for
the new building.
Existing buildings and levels
on North Elevation
Proposed building
level =21.365m
Existing building level = 19.615
e Existing building
level = 19.190m
Existing building
level = 14.465m

level =8.100m
\/U ‘ V Jevel =7.900m

level =19.500m

O
O

level =9.900m
V Road
C/L

level =10.165m

|

level = 11065m

i v

level =8.100m
\/U ‘ V level =7.900m
‘

Existing building
level = 17.545m

Existing access
road

level=13.955m

level = 11.265m

}

Existing L Existing

Tube barrier rail

Existing and new building
on South Elevation

Barrier 1.2m above
existing road level

/ % level = 8.765m

level =10.265m
v 1 20‘0 )
I
1 1,500 m
New yard
level

View on AA

Existing road
level

Existing

12.000 m

1:200 A2 }_}—W—!_}—i_}—!_}—l

Existing and proposed elevations

This is to certify that this a true copy
of the original drawing supplied for the
application

Signed -

Dated -

Robert Robertson & Son
Bonnington Farm
Kirknewton

Edinburgh

EH27 8BB

Drawing No.03B Drawn by - BMS

Date -17.10.19

amended 7.1.20

Scale -200:1

John Thorburn & Sons Construction LTD,
Station Works
Duns
Berwickshire
TD11 3EJ
Tel. 01361 883245
Fax. 01361 883637




Page 141



Was this helpful?

Your feedback will help us improve this site

Yes 1 No [ Yes,but

Accessibility

Archive

Contact

Cookies

Crown Copyright
Jobs and vacancies

Privacy

Page 142


https://www.gov.scot/accessibility/
https://www.gov.scot/archive/
https://www.gov.scot/about/contact-information/
https://www.gov.scot/cookies/
https://www.gov.scot/crown-copyright/
https://www.gov.scot/about/contact-information/jobs-vacancies
https://www.gov.scot/privacy/

Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



05T obed

Existing building

A ——

s gl N t 1
Existing access el o

retaining wall
road \ \

level = 8.765m [

level =21.365m

I

‘1 1.000 m ‘

Existing building
level =19.500m

O
O

level =9.900m
V Road
C/L

Proposed building and level
on North Elevation

level = 16.985m

. L
Existing access /
road
\
level >8.790m level = 8.8501
The buildings marked with blue hatch will
be removed from the site to make room for
the new building.
Existing buildings and levels
on North Elevation
Proposed building
level =21.365m
Existing building level = 19.615
e Existing building
level = 19.190m
Existing building
level = 14.465m

level =8.100m
\/U ‘ V Jevel =7.900m

level =19.500m

O
O

level =9.900m
V Road
C/L

level =10.165m

|

level = 11065m

i v

level =8.100m
\/U ‘ V level =7.900m
‘

Existing building
level = 17.545m

Existing access
road

level=13.955m

level = 11.265m

}

Existing L Existing

Tube barrier rail

Existing and new building
on South Elevation

Barrier 1.2m above
existing road level

/ % level = 8.765m

level =10.265m
v 1 20‘0 )
I
1 1,500 m
New yard
level

View on AA

Existing road
level

Existing

12.000 m

1:200 A2 }_}—W—!_}—i_}—!_}—l

Existing and proposed elevations

This is to certify that this a true copy
of the original drawing supplied for the
application

Signed -

Dated -

Robert Robertson & Son
Bonnington Farm
Kirknewton

Edinburgh

EH27 8BB

Drawing No.03B Drawn by - BMS

Date -17.10.19

amended 7.1.20

Scale -200:1

John Thorburn & Sons Construction LTD,
Station Works
Duns
Berwickshire
TD11 3EJ
Tel. 01361 883245
Fax. 01361 883637




Page 151



This page is intentionally left blank



< 2[5 B VIeTHe

THECTY OF COCHOURG S COUHCIL

James Robertson Architect (Mavisbank). Ms Jenny Smith.
7B Mavisbank Grange Mission Hall
Edinburgh 37 Burns Street
United Kingdom Edinburgh
EH20 9Sz EH6 8DS

Decision date: 1 June 2020

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Part change of use to form artists residence within existing studio building.
At 37 Burns Street Edinburgh EH6 8DS

Application No: 20/01176/FUL
DECISION NOTICE

With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 9 March 2020,
this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in exercise of its
powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now
determines the application as Refused in accordance with the particulars given in the
application.

Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;

Conditions:-

Reasons:-

1. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Hou 5 in respect
of Conversion to Housing, as future occupiers will have limited amenity in terms of
noise due to the proximity of a class 5 use

2. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 5 in respect
of Development Design - Amenity, as future occupiers will have limited amenity in
terms of noise.

I?Agega%hgé?e,%rainee Planner, Local 1 Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3920, Email amelia.christie@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG



Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.

Drawings 01-03, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can
be found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services

The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:

The proposal is not acceptable as it does not comply with policies of the Local
Development Plan. The proposal does not provide an acceptable living environment for
future occupiers. There are no material considerations that outweigh this decision.

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
proposed development under other statutory enactments.

Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Amelia
Christie directly on 0131 529 3920.

T R Leedg B

/
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE

The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 154


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planning-applications/apply-planning-permission/4?documentId=12565&categoryId=20067
https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

NOTES

1. If the applicant is aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online at www.eplanning.scot or forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries about the Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannot be rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying out of any development which has been or would be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordance with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 155



Report of Handling

Application for Planning Permission 20/01176/FUL

At 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh, EH6 8DS

Part change of use to form artists residence within existing
studio building.

Item Local Delegated Decision
Application number 20/01176/FUL

Wards B13 - Leith

Summary

The proposal is not acceptable as it does not comply with policies of the Local
Development Plan. The proposal does not provide an acceptable living environment for
future occupiers. There are no material considerations that outweigh this decision.

Links

Policies and guidance for LHOUOS5, LDES12, LEN06, NSBUS, NSHOU,
this application NSGDO02, LDESO05,

Development Management report of handling — Page 1 of 8 20/01176/FUL

Page 156



Report of handling

Recommendations

1.1 It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.
Background

2.1 Site description

The application site is a two storey artist's studio. The building is situated on Burns
Street with the surrounding area comprising of mainly residential flats and a handful of
garages.

The building is not listed.

This application site is located within the Leith Conservation Area.

2.2 Site History

There is no relevant planning history for this site.

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal

The application is for a part change of use from artist studio to an artist's residence.
The building currently contains an office, studio rooms, a kitchen and a shower room.

3.2 Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Do the proposals comply with the development plan?

If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?

If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?

Development Management report of handling — Page 2 of 8 20/01176/FUL

Page 157



3.3 Assessment
To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:

a) the proposal is acceptable in principle;

b) the proposals affect the character and appearance of the conservation area;
c) the proposal will impact on neighbouring amenity;

d) there is a sufficient level of amenity for future occupiers; and

e) any representations received have been addressed.

a) Principle

Policy Hou 5 of the LDP states that planning permission will be granted for the change
of use of existing buildings in non-residential use to housing, provided that a
satisfactory residential environment can be achieved; housing would be compatible
with nearby uses; appropriate open space, amenity and car and cycle parking
standards are met; and the change of use is acceptable having regards to other
policies in the plan.

The Edinburgh Design Guidance requires a minimum floorspace standard of 52 square
metres for a one-bed property. The proposal meets these requirements. Whilst the
proposal does not include outdoor space, the application site is within close proximity to
Leith Links. This meets the criteria relating to open space as set out in the Edinburgh
Design Guidance.

Transport raised no objections to the proposal.

The area surrounding the application site is predominantly residential. The application
site itself is directly adjacent to a motor repair garage. There are no planning
restrictions on how the garage currently operates now or in the future. Due to the close
proximity of the motor repair garage, the future occupiers could experience acute noise
levels which would not provide a satisfactory residential environment. Additionally, the
motor repair garage also has the capacity to generate noise levels that far exceed the
current levels.

The proposal does not provide a sufficient residential environment for future occupiers
and, therefore, does not comply with Policy Hou 5.

b) Conservation Area
The proposal does not involve any alteration to the exterior. The change of use would
not be detrimental to the Leith conservation area.

c) Neighbouring Amenity

As the building is existing, the proposal will not impact on neighbouring amenity in
terms of loss of privacy, daylight, overshadowing or noise. The proposal complies with
policy Des 12 .

d) Amenity of Future Occupiers
Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets out criteria for assessing amenity.

Policy Des 5 states that permission will be granted for development where it is
demonstrated that future occupiers have acceptable levels of amenity. As the

Development Management report of handlipga—ge 158Page 30f8 20/01176/FUL



application site shares a wall with the motor repair garage it would be difficult to contain
any noise transfer. Exceedence of current noise levels would be beyond the control of
the planning authority. Therefore, it cannot be demonstrated that future occupiers
would have acceptable amenity levels in relation to noise.

The amount of internal floor space is suitable The close proximity to open space meets
requirements set out in the Edinburgh Design Guidance. The proposal would meet the
criteria regarding daylight, sunlight and privacy.

The proposal does not provide acceptable levels of amenity in relation to noise and,
therefore, does not comply with Policy Des 5.

d) Public Comment
No representations were received.

Conclusion

The proposal is not acceptable as it does not comply with policies Hou 5 and Des 5 of
the Local Development Plan. The proposal does not provide an acceptable living
environment for future occupiers.

It is recommended that this application be Refused for the reasons below.

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives

Reasons:-

1. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Hou 5 in respect
of Conversion to Housing, as future occupiers will have limited amenity in terms of
noise due to the proximity of a class 5 use

2. The proposal is contrary to the Local Development Plan Policy Des 5 in respect

of Development Design - Amenity, as future occupiers will have limited amenity in
terms of noise.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact

4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact

5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:

Development Management report of handling —Page 1F592 4 0f 8 20/01176/FUL



The application has been assessed and has no impact in terms of equalities or human
rights.

Consultation and engagement

6.1 Pre-Application Process
Pre-application discussions took place on this application.
6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments

No representations have been received.

Background reading / external references

e To view details of the application go to

e Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handlipga—ge 160Page 50f8 20/01176/FUL


https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

Statutory Development
Plan Provision
Date registered 9 March 2020

Drawing numbers/Scheme  01-03,

Scheme 1

David R. Leslie

Chief Planning Officer
PLACE

The City of Edinburgh Council

Contact: Amelia Christie, Trainee Planner
E-mail:amelia.christie@edinburgh.gov.uk

Links - Policies

Relevant Policies:

LDP Policy Hou 5 (Conversion to Housing) sets out the criteria for change of use of
existing buildings to housing.

LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) sets criteria for assessing alterations
and extensions to existing buildings.

LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing
development in a conservation area.

Non-statutory guidelines 'GUIDANCE FOR BUSINESSES' provides guidance for
proposals likely to be made on behalf of businesses. It includes food and drink uses,
conversion to residential use, changing housing to commercial uses, altering
shopfronts and signage and advertisements.

Non-statutory guidelines 'GUIDANCE FOR HOUSEHOLDERS' provides guidance
for proposals to alter or extend houses or flats.

Non-Statutory guidelines Edinburgh Design Guidance supports development of the
highest design quality and that integrates well with the existing city. It sets out the

Development Management report of handling —Page 1F69? 6 of 8 20/01176/FUL



Council's expectations for the design of new development, including buildings, parking,
streets and landscape, in Edinburgh.

LDP Policy Des 5 (Development Design - Amenity) sets criteria for assessing amenity.

Development Management report of handlipga—ge 162Page 7 of 8 20/01176/FUL



Appendix 1

Consultations

Roads Authority
No objections to the application.

Environmental Protection
Awaiting response.

END

Development Management report of handling —Page 1%@ 8 of 8 20/01176/FUL



*€EDINBVRGH

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Email: planning.support@edinburgh.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100265551-001

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) |:| Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

James Robertson Architect

Company/Organisation:

Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *

James

First Name: * Building Name:

Robertson 7b

Last Name: * Building Number:

Address 1 .
Telephone Number: * _ (Street): * Mavisbank Grange

Extension Number: Address 2:

Mobile Number: Town/City: * Edinburgh

Fax Number: Country: * United Kingdom
Postcode: * EH20 952

Email Address: * I

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 164 Page 10f 5




Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Ms You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name: Mission Hall
First Name: * Jenny Building Number: 87

Last Name: * Smith '(Asdt(rje“;?)sj Burns Street
Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * _ Town/City: * Edinburgh
Extension Number: Country: * Scotland
Mobile Number: Postcode: * EH6 8DS
Fax Number:

Email Address: * _

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: 37 BURNS STREET

Address 2:

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: EDINBURGH

Post Code: EH6 8DS

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 675698 Easting 327417

Page 165

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

Part change of use to form artists residence within existing studio building

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

|:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

Please refer statement submitted within 'supporting documents' section.

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the |:| Yes No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Page 3 of 5

Page 166




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

37 Burns St. Email Correspondence with Planning Officer. 37 Burns St. Mission Hall. Notice of Review. Supporting Statement.
Dwg 2009-01 As Existing Dwg 2009-02 As Proposed Dwg 2009-03 Site Location Plan Planning Submission Letter Report of
Handling

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 20/01176/FUL
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 06/03/2020

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 01/06/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * Yes D No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 4 of 5

Page 167




Declare — Notice of Review
I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.
Declaration Name: Mr James Robertson

Declaration Date: 22/06/2020

Page 50of 5

Page 168




Proposal Details

Proposal Name

Proposal Description
Address

Local Authority

Application Online Reference

Application Status

Form

Main Details

Checkilist

Declaration

Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

Attachment Details

Notice of Review

37 Burns St Report of Handling
37 Burns St Mission Hall Notice of
Review Supporting Statement

37 Burns St Email Correspondence
with Planning Officer

2009-01 As Existing

2009-02 As Proposed

2009-03 Site Location Plan
2009-Planning Submission Letter
Notice_of Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf

Notice of Review-001.xml

100265551

Appeal against planning refusal

37 BURNS STREET, EDINBURGH, EH6 8DS

City of Edinburgh Council
100265551-001

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

System
Attached
Attached

Attached

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

Page 169

Ad
Ad
Ad

A4

A1
A1
A4
A4
AO
AO
AO



From: james robertsonW
Subject: Re: 20/01176 urns Stree

Date: 20 May 2020 at 20:16:10 BST

To: Amelia Christie

Cc: Jenny Smith

Dear Amelia,

Could you please provide me with your colleague and your managers contact
details.

Whilst you have responded to my correspondence you have not answered my
questions which I feel would have helped to move this application towards a
positive outcome. There has been very little, if any, dialogue on pertinent issues
raised by myself and the applicant. Please note that once able we would be very
happy to provide a noise impact assessment.

Again, please advise what benefit there is to the applicant in withdrawing the
application? My point being that I believe you are acting wholly outwith your
authority in recommending any course of action to the applicant, or myself, in
respect of this matter.

Regards

James

On 20 May 2020, at 15:40, Amelia Christie <} | | N

wrote:

Dear James

After discussing this with my colleague, it is not possible to approve the application due to the garage
being adjacent to the application site. It cannot be demonstrated that future occupiers will have
acceptable levels of amenity, as noted in my previous email. Applications can be recommended to be

withdrawn if the application cannot be supported by case officers.
This is the decision unless you wish to withdraw your application.

Kind Regards

Amelia
Amelia Christie | Trainee Planner | Spatial Policy Team | Place | The City of Edinburgh Council |
Waverley Court, Level G:3, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG | Tel. 0131 529 3920

Page 170



From: james robertson <—

Sent: 13 May 2020 20:04

To: Amelia Christi_
Cc: Jenny Smith _

Subject: Re: 20/01176/FUL 37 Burns Street
Dear Amelia,

Are you aware of the current noise levels from the garage or is this important decision being made
without relative knowledge? The applicant has previously noted that she hears hardly any noise from

the garage. The owner is a sole proprietor dealing with cars/small vans.

The garage is located within a predominantly residential area. Please note the blocks of flats directly
opposite the garage on the same street and the houses backing on to the garage. Are you aware of
any noise complaints made to environmental health, or any other department, in respect of this

garage?

Would it not be prudent, before advising on an application which will affect the applicants life, that
any issues are investigated thoroughly to ensure that the decision you make is the correct one. A
noise impact assessment has not been submitted due to the fact that this is a quiet, mainly residential
street, and no noise issues have been found to be present which may, to my mind, adversely affect
the amenity of the proposed residence. What MIGHT happen could be cited for almost any

development proposal. This should not prevent development.

Could you please advise why you suggest withdrawing the application. | wish to understand the

benefits of this route to the applicant.
Regards

James

Page 171



On 13 May 2020, at 15:27, Amelia Christie ||| [ G ot

Dear James

This is not something we could seek to control through conditions as the garage could bring in new
equipment or begin a process that may generate high noise levels than at present. Therefore we
would have no way of preventing it. You should be able to appeal any decision if you do wish to carry
on with the application but it is still suggested that you withdraw the application.

Kind Regards
Amelia

Amelia Christie | Trainee Planner | Spatial Policy Team | Place | The City of Edinburgh Council |
Waverley Court, Level G:3, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG | Tel. 0131 529

3920

Sent: 13 May 2020 10:08

Subject: Re: 20/01176/FUL 37 Burns Street

May | add that any noise from the garage would be during normal working hours and not whilst the

application property is being utilised predominantly as a residence. i.e. during the evening/night.

On 13 May 2020, at 10:06, james robertson <— wrote:

Dear Amelia,
Thank you.

In this situation would it not be prudent to measure current noise levels within the application
property and then propose, if required, measures to negate the noise?

Regards

James

Page 172



On 13 May 2020, at 09:41, Amelia Christie_ wrote:

Dear James

The amenity issue is relating to the noise levels from the motor repair garage. As the application site
and the motor repair garage share a wall any future resident would experience an unreasonable level
of noise. Although there are residential buildings in the surrounding area the impact on 37 Burns
Street would be significantly greater.

| hope this clarifies the issue.

Kind Regards
Amelia

Amelia Christie | Trainee Planner | Spatial Policy Team | Place | The City of Edinburgh Council |
Waverley Court, Level G:3, 4 East Market Slreet, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG | Tel. 0131 529

3920

Sent: 12 May 2020 18:52

To: Amelia hrist [
ce:senny st

Subject: Re: 20/01176/FUL 37 Burns Street
Dear Amelia,

To allow the applicant to make an informed decision could you please provide further information on

the relevant amenity issues currently preventing a positive decision.
Regards

James

Page 173



On 12 May 2020, at 15:09, Amelia Christic ||| | G > ot

Good Afternoon James
I am emailing about the below application. After reviewing the application | can inform you that this
application cannot be supported due to amenity issues. It is recommended that you withdraw the

application. Please let me know how you wish to proceed.

Kind Regards
Amelia

Sent: 08 April 2020 09:10

To: Amelia christ

Subject: Re: 20/01176/FUL 37 Burns Street

Good Morning Amelia,

Thank you for your email.

| have copied the applicant, Jenny Smith, in to my response to keep her up to date.

We are all in exactly the same boat at the moment so there is no expectation from me for this
application to be determined within the normal timescales. | am very grateful for your update and
would welcome any requests for information or further updates as and when you are able or there is
something to report.

| will respond to the extension request as soon as received and it will not be an issue.

Kind regards

James

Page 174



On 8 Apr 2020, at 09:00, Amelia Christie _> wrote:

Good Morning James

| am emailing regarding application 20/01176/FUL at 37 Burns Street. | am the case officer for this
particular application and can now provide an update. You may be aware from the Planning Blog that
we are not able to carry out the necessary publicity (as required by the Town and Country Planning
(Scotland) Act 1997) on some applications due to the Covid — 19 restrictions. This has affected site
notices, adverts and neighbour notifications.

Unfortunately, the neighbour notification period on this application had not finished by the time
restrictions came into place and the application cannot therefore be determined at this time. This
may change following the implementation of the Coronavirus Act. Whist this is disappointing; it is
unavoidable in these challenging times. As much work as possible will be carried out on assessing the
application (you may be asked for more information to help this process) and the application will be
determined as soon as it is practically possible to do so. In the meantime, an extension of time is

requested until to cover this delay and you will receive a separate request for this.
Please sign up to the Planning Blog to ensure you are up-to-date with any planning news.
| hope you understand and are keeping well.

Kind Regards

Amelia

Amelia Christie | Trainee Planner | Spatial Policy Team | Place | The City of Edinburgh Council |
Waverley Court, Level G:3, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG | Tel. 0131 529

3920

Page 175


https://planningedinburgh.com/
https://planningedinburgh.com/

Notice of Review - Supporting Statement
Planning Application Ref 20/01176/FUL

This notice for review follows an application to Edinburgh Council seeking planning
consent for part change of use to form an artist’s residence within an existing studio
building at 37 Burns Street, EH6 8DS. The property is not listed. The application
(20/01176/FUL) was refused by the Council on 1 June 2020.

The reason for the review is as follows.

Report of handling

With reference to the report of handling 3.3 Assessment. In addressing the
determining issues Edinburgh Council appear to accept that the proposal meets all
relative considerations except, to their mind, ‘amenity by future occupiers due to
acute noise levels’.

In her email of 13" May 2020 Edinburgh Council Planning Officer (Amelia Christie)
noted that the application could not be supported because ‘as the application site
and motor repair garage share a wall any future resident would experience an
unreasonable level of noise’.

The applicant confirms there is very little noise from the garage. This is a quiet
predominantly residential street. There are sixteen existing dwellings within 15m
distance of the garage. The closest only 12m away and directly in front. The planning
officer has been asked if any complaints have been made in respect of noise. No
response has been received. There is evidently no current issue with noise from the
garage. A noise impact assessment has not been submitted as there was no
concern in respect of noise when preparing the application. We are unaware if the
planning officer has visited the street when considering the application. Due to
current circumstances we would not expect an internal visit however it may be
appropriate, when considering applications which affect people’s livelihoods, that
appropriate knowledge is gained prior to determining such an application.

Within the report of handling, 3.3 d, reference is made to the application site sharing
a wall with the motor repair garage. The application building and adjacent motor
repair garage only share a wall in the sense that they abut each other. The
application property is of masonry cavity wall construction, the external wall to the
garage is built up to this with roof structure supported from internal masonry piers.
The walls are inherently separate with neither building being dependant on the other.
This would, to my mind, be a material consideration when considering noise.

The report of handling, 3.1, makes reference to removal of a conservatory,
construction of a single storey extension and a canopy to the front of the building.
Alterations to the rear ground floor elevation are also noted. These elements are also
referred to within several further sections of the report. The conservatory, extension,
canopy and elevation alterations do not form part of this application and are not
relevant to this property.

Page 176



Precedent

There are numerous small garages, just like this one, within a similar proximity to
relatively modern residential developments where amenity due to noise would have
to be considered. In these instances noise has not prevented development.

Please refer the following local sites for precedent.

16 & 18 Jane Street, Leith.
Two separate residential developments across a narrow street from several car
repair garages.

R .", »

Arthur Street, Leith.
Modern residential developments adjacent a car repair garage.



Couper Street, Leith.
Large New build residential d

evelopment directly opposite existing car repair garage.

Windsor Street Lane Development

Planning Ref 17/00890/FUL

New build mews houses proposed opposite existing car repair garage. A very similar
context, though larger scale garage, to the application at 37 Burns St. A noise impact
assessment accompanies the application at Windsor Street Lane. The assessment
only refers to current noise levels from the existing car repair and MOT garages
within the locality. It does not consider potential noise levels. It is noted within the
report that the car repair business is ‘spread across the various mews and
outbuildings in the Lane’. This is a much bigger commercial operation at Windsor St
Lane than the neighbouring car repair garage in Burns St.

The report also references existing residential properties surrounding the Windsor St
Lane garage. As per the Burns St context.

The conclusion within the report is to install a double glazed unit OR secondary
glazing to the windows of the new development. Consent was granted.

Page 178



Salamander Place Development

The large residential development at 9-21 Salamander Place, Ref 07/03238/FUL,
was granted consent when proposed adjacent, only 12m, from Dalton scrap yard to
the North of the development site.

In respect of loss of amenity due to noise the report for Salamander Place notes that
the scrap yard operates during normal working hours (08.00 to 16.30 Mon to Fri and
8.00 to 12.00 on Sat) and that the closest rooms affected by the noise are bedrooms.
The bedrooms are noted as unlikely to be affected during operational hours of the
scrap yard. The proposal to attenuate noise is to keep these windows closed during
the day.

This scrap yard operates large plant and moves literally tonnes of material. | do not
see from the report at 9-21 Salamander Place where further acute noise levels had
to be considered by the applicant. These would surely be louder in a large scrap
yard than those which could be created by a small car repair garage. The
considerations and proposals within the report at Salamander Place appear to be
reasonable and proportionate and ultimately permit development.

Page 179



Conclusion

The car repair garage adjacent 37 Burns Street operates similar hours to the scrap
yard. This does not appear to have been considered in the same manner as at
Salamander Place. We believe this should be considered in determining the
application.

The application at 37 Burns Street is for ‘part change of use’. This does not appear
to have been considered. The part change of use is to accommodate an artist in
residence within an existing artist studio building. This is not a change of use for the
whole building. The building remains, predominantly, an artists studio. The residence
aspect will always be inherently linked to the studio. This does not appear to have
been considered in determining the application. Edinburgh council has always
acknowledged the contribution creative industries make to the vibrancy of the city. It
has a sustained track record of supporting and enabling it's creative professionals in
what can be a financially challenging profession.

If noise levels are really a concern then, as elsewhere, we propose measures to
negate this. In respect of this application current noise levels from the garage are not
an issue and do not affect the occupiers amenity.

In light of local precedent, current noise levels from the garage, proximity of existing
local residential property to the garage, operating hours of the garage, existing
separation from the garage, lack of detail from the Planning Officer in respect of
concerning noise levels and only a part change of use the applicant does not believe
Edinburgh Council has acted proportionately, fairly or consistently in respect of this
application.

Page 180



dimensions stated are in millimetres unless specifically noted
otherwise

do not rely upon sizes scaled directly from printed drawings

copyright for all designs and other information on this
drawing shall remain strictly with james robertson architect

Site Location Plan N

1:1250

-<I0M OM 10M 20M 30M

james robertson @ architect

a. 7b mavisbank grange. edinburgh. eh20 9sz
t. 0131 440 3615 e. james@jrarchitect.co.uk

project address L .
Mission Hall, 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh

project title Part change of use to dwelling and
internal alterations

drawing title ) )
Site Location Plan

roject no
Prel 2009

drawing no 03

P age 1C§t‘i March 2020

revisions


AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
26

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
27

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
Ruin

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
32

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
2 to 3

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
39

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
28

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
Posts

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
34

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
Surgery

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
4 to 5

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
29

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
Hotel

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
37


7b mavisbank grange
edinburgh eh20 9sz
hello 0131 440 3615
james@)jr .co.uk
www.jrarchitect.co.uk

The City of Edinburgh Council
City Development Department
Planning and Strategy
Waverley Court

4 East Market Street
Edinburgh

EH8 8BG

06" March 2020
Dear Sir/Madam

Re: Proposed Part Change of Use to Artists Studio
Mission Hall, 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh, EH6 8DS.

We wish to submit a planning application for the above noted property.

The application relates to an existing artist’s studio building on Burns St. The applicant wishes
to form living accommodation within part of the studio for use as an artist’s flat.

The proposal is to form a living/bed space within what is currently an existing studio space.
The existing kitchen will be altered to enlarge the facilities. The existing shower and now larger
kitchen will be utilised by the resident artist.

It has not been easy placing the proposals under a specific planning heading. The proposals
were discussed with a duty planning officer at the planning help desk. We were advised to
apply for part change of use and provide information in the form as shown on the following
drawings which accompany the application.

e Dwg No. 2009-01 As Existing @A1
e Dwg No. 2009-02 As Proposed @A1
e Dwg No. 2009-03 Site Location Plan @A4
The lodging fee of £401.00 will be made online.
We trust the application is in order and look forward to receiving your acknowledgement that

this has been registered in due course.

Yours faithfully,

James Robertson

Page 182



£gT abed

Ground Floor Plan as Existing First Floor Plan as Existing
1:50 1:50

N BURNS STREET
-0.5M OM 0.5M 1.0M 1.5M
[ I I

dimensions stated are in millimetres unless specifically noted

otherwise

do not rely upon sizes scaled directly from printed drawings

copyright for all designs and other information on this

drawing shall remain strictly with james robertson architect

PLANNING

james robertson architect

a. 7b mavisbank grange. edinburgh. eh20 9sz
t. 0131 440 3615 e. james@jrarchitect.co.uk

[ ] [ ]
| I | | I |
™
STUDIO STUDIO
FF2 FF3
_—,
m®m
STUDIO WORKSHOP STORE OFFICE
GF4 GF3 GF2 GF1
-
Front Elevation as Existing Section as Existing
1:50 1:50
/5 ) /5 )
\03 / \03 /
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I I
I I
I I
I I
STUDIO | |
GF4 | I T 1 |
e -
| | : | | | | :
I I I I
KITCHEN | I I I I |
GF5 | STUDIO |
| F——— e - ——— |
| N | | |
I I
I I
I I
I I
WORKSHOP | |
GF3 | |
I I
I I
I I
I I
I |
| |
I I
I I
I I
B STORE I I
GF2 | |
WC/SHOWER
GF6 I I
I I
- I I
I I
] I I
I I
L CORRIDOR I |
GF7 = I
I I
STUDIO
STAIR i | I FF3 |
OFFICE I I
GF1
I I
| | | |
L I I |
WC G I I |
I dralr |
| I I
| | |
O O O

Roof Plan as Existing

1:50

project address

project title

drawing title

project no

drawing no

date

revisions

Mission Hall, 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh

Part change of use to dwelling and
internal alterations

As Existing

2009

01

March 2020



8T abed

KITCHEN AND SHOWER
SPACE SHOWN IN GREEN
HATCH TO BE UTILISED BY
LIVE-IN ARTIST AND TO BE
SHARED BY STUDIO SPACE

dimensions stated are in millimetres unless specifically noted
otherwise

do not rely upon sizes scaled directly from printed drawings

copyright for all designs and other information on this
drawing shall remain strictly with james robertson architect

DENOTES AREA OF APPLICATION
PROPERTY TO BE USED AS RESIDENTIAL.

[ ] [ 1
LI L
™
STUDIO BED/LIVING
FF2 FF3
_—,
I
Il -
Il
Il
Il
stupio | | STORE OFFICE
GF4 I GF2 GF1
I I -
Il
Il
Il
L
Section as Proposed
1:50
(5 )
\03 /
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I I
I I
I I
I I
I ] - I
| — 1 — 1 |
N s B
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| STUDIO |
| b - ——— |
| e - _ 1 |
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I
I I
I |
I I
I i
I |
I I EXISTING STUDIO USE
I I SHOWN WITH BLUE HATCH
TO HAVE USE CHANGED TO
I I LIVE-IN ARTISTS RESIDENCE.
| I REMAINING SPACE NOT
: | SHOWN HATCHED TO REMAIN
| | IN USE AS ARTISTS STUDIO
1
' BED/LIVING |
| FF3 |
| X 19.0SQM |
I |
| I
I |
I I
I I
I |
| $TAIR |
I |
| |

Front Elevation as Proposed
1:50
(5 )
\03 /
) L] ===f|'
| ::::g
I I
ol
\
\
& i
Bl SLIDING/FOLDING PARTITION
e WITH SINGLE LEAF DOOR
; KITCHEN H
! GF5
L7 T —
I_} S STUDIO
— __ GF4 /
I | X I ~ _ 1
I \ | N |
|| \ | \/ |
|5 OoE <3 ! ===
|1 \
M EMOVALS SHOWN BY
DASHED RED LINE
—
7
/
/
L
—1
] STORE
GF2
WC/SHOWER
GF6
1 CORRIDOR
GF7
/ STAIR ]
OFFICE
GF1
| I
| I
L\ _|
WC G I
I
|
O
\03 /
Ground Floor Plan as Proposed
1:50
N BURNS STREET
-0.5M OM 05M 1.0M 1.5M
[ I ]

First Floor Plan as Proposed

1:50

Roof Plan as Proposed

1:50

PLANNING

james robertson

BED AND LIVING SPACE. 19.0SQM

DENOTES AREA OF APPLICATION
PROPERTY TO BE UTILISED BY BOTH
STUDIO AND RESIDENCE. KITCHEN AND
SHOWER ROOM. 25.0SQM

architect

a. 7b mavisbank grange. edinburgh. eh20 9sz
t. 0131 440 3615 e. james@jrarchitect.co.uk

project address

project title

drawing title

project no

drawing no

date

revisions

Mission Hall, 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh

Part change of use to dwelling and
internal alterations

As Proposed

2009

02

March 2020



2513 VIeGh

THE €17F ©F CRENOURGH COVHCIL

Les McCaskey. Mr Tim Stevens.
18A Rothesay Place 131 Mayfield Road
Edinburgh Edinburgh
EH37SQ

Decision date: 3 April 2020

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013

Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacementexternal stair and french
doors to front of property.
At 131 Mayfield Road Edinburgh

Application No: 20/00455/FUL
| DECISION NOTICE

With reference to your application for Planning Permission registered on 3 February

2020, this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Council in exercise of
its powers underthe Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts and regulations, now
determines the application as mixed decision in accordance with the particulars given

in the application.

Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;

1. This permission relates to the proposed rear extension. **** #k*

2. This refusal relates to alterations to the rear fenestration, proposed balcony on
the rear elevation, and formation of double doors on the frontelevation..

Reasons:-

1. In order to recognise the elements of the application which are compatible with
the character and appearance of the conservation area.

2. The proposed replacement stairs, alterations to the rear fenestration and double
doors would be detrimental to the character of the building. The proposed balcony
would resultin significant overlooking of the neighbouring property.

Declaﬂag@ F"I"E%% Officer, Householders Area Team, Place Directorate.
e 1529 3968, Email declan.semple@edinburgh.gov.uk,

Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG



Informatives:-
It should be noted that:

1. The developmenthereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration
of three years from the date of this consent.

2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of
Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on which
the developmentis to commence. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of planning
control, under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as
authorised in the associated grant of permission, a 'Notice of Completion of
Development must be given, in writing to the Council.

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for furtherinformation, including
how to appeal or review your decision.

Drawings 01 - 10, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can
be found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services

The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:

It is recommended that a MIXED decision isissued refusing the proposed double
doors on the front elevation and the proposed alterations to the fenestration and
balcony to the rear elevation on the basis that they are contrary to policies Env 6
Conservation Areas - Developmentand Des 12 Alterations and Extensions of the
Edinburgh Local Development Plan. The proposed extension would be compatible with
the existing building and the character of the surrounding streetscape. It would
preserve or enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area. It would
not have an unacceptable impact on neighbouring amenity and complies with the
relevant policies and non statutory guidelines. It is therefore, recommended that the
proposed extension be granted.

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consentor approval for the
proposed developmentunder other statutory enactments.

Should you have a specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Declan
Semple directly on 0131 529 3968.

T R Leedg .
/

Chief Planning Officer
PLACE
The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 186


https://www.edinburgh.gov.uk/planning-applications/apply-planning-permission/4?documentId=12565&categoryId=20067
https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

NOTES

1. If the applicantis aggrieved by the decision to refuse permission for or approval
required by a condition in respect of the proposed development, or to grant permission
or approval subject to conditions, the applicant may require the planning authority to
review the case under section 43A of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 within three months beginning with the date of this notice. The Notice of Review
can be made online atwww.eplanning.scotor forms can be downloaded from that
website. Paper forms should be addressed to the City of Edinburgh Planning Local
Review Body, G.2, Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG. For
enquiries aboutthe Local Review Body, please email
localreviewbody@edinburgh.gov.uk.

2. If permission to develop land is refused or granted subject to conditions and the
owner of the land claims that the land has become incapable of reasonably beneficial
use in its existing state and cannotbe rendered capable of reasonably beneficial use
by carrying outof any development which has been orwould be permitted, the owner
of the land may serve on the planning authority a purchase notice requiring the
purchase of the owner of the land's interest in the land accordan ce with Part 5 of the
Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

Page 187



Report of Handling

Application for Planning Permission 20/00455/FUL

At 131 Mayfield Road, Edinburgh,

Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacement
external stair and french doors to front of property.

Item Local Delegated Decision
Application number 20/00455/FUL

Wards B15 - Southside/Newington
Summary

It is recommended that a MIXED decision is issued refusing the proposed double doors
on the front elevation and the proposed alterations to the fenestration and balcony to
the rear elevation on the basis that they are contrary to policies Env 6 Conservation
Areas - Development and Des 12 Alterations and Extensions of the Edinburgh Local
Development Plan. The proposed extension would be compatible with the existing
building and the character of the surrounding streetscape. It would preserve or
enhance the character and appearance of the conservation area. It would not have an
unacceptable impact on neighbouring amenity and complies with the relevant policies
and non statutory guidelines. It is therefore, recommended that the proposed extension
be granted.

Links

Policies and quidance for LDPP, LENO6, LDES12, NSG, NSHOU, NSLBCA,
this application OTH, CRPCMP,

Development Management report of handling — Page 1 of 9 20/00455/FUL

Page 188



Development Management report of handling ‘Page 1F89; 20f9 20/00455/FUL



Report of handling

Recommendations

1.1 It is recommended that this application be mixed decision to part-approve and part-
refuse this application subject to the details below.

Background

2.1 Site description

The proposal relates to a terraced property located on the east side of Mayfield Road
within a primarily residential area.

This application site is located within the Craigmillar Park Conservation Area.
2.2 Site History

There is no relevant planning history for this site.

Main report
3.1 Description Of The Proposal

- Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacement external stair and french
doors to front of property.

3.2 Determining Issues

Section 25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 states - Where, in
making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be had to the
development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance with the plan unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

Section 64 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) (Scotland) Act
1997 states - special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character or appearance of the conservation area.

Do the proposals comply with the development plan?

If the proposals do comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for not approving them?

If the proposals do not comply with the development plan, are there any compelling
reasons for approving them?

3.3 Assessment

Development Management report of handling — Page 3 of 9 20/00455/FUL

Page 190



To address these determining issues, it needs to be considered whether:

a) The scale, form and design is acceptable; and would preserve or enhance the
character and appearance of the conservation area.

b) There would be no unreasonable loss to neighbour's amenity.

c) Public comments.

a) Scale, form, design and impact on Conservation Area

The proposed extension of an acceptable scale, form and design, compatible with the
neighbourhood character and would preserve or enhance the character and
appearance of the conservation area. Rear extensions are a characteristic of the area
and this proposal will replace the existing uPVC conservatory. Therefore, the extension
including the uPVC windows complies with the relevant non-statutory guidance and
Local Plan Policies Env 6 and Des 12.

In terms of the installation of double doors on the front elevation and proposed balcony,
these aspects of the proposal are contrary to policies Env 6, Des 12 and the relevant
non-statutory guidance. Proposed elevations have not been submitted for the double
doors on the front elevation and there is therefore, insufficient information to fully
assess this aspect. Whilst, proposed front elevations have not been submitted the
proposed double doors are likely to be detrimental to the character of the existing
terrace and detract from the character and appearance of the conservation area. The
street is characterised by a row of Victorian terraced properties with a set rhythm
formed by the bay windows and identical proportions. The introduction of uPVC double
doors on the property would detrimentally impact on the architectural integrity and
fabric of the property.

On the rear elevation the alteration of rear fenestration and proposed balcony would
detract from the character of the building. The increased opening would negatively
impact on the pattern of openings and proportions. It is therefore recommended that
the replacement stairs, installation of double doors on the front elevation and proposed
balcony are refused planning permission as part of a mixed decision.

b) Neighbouring Amenity

The proposed extension would not result in an unreasonable loss of neighbouring
residential amenity. The proposal complies with the non-statutory guidance with
respect to daylight, sunlight and privacy and Local Plan Policy Des 12.

However, the proposed balcony on the upper ground floor would result in significant
overlooking of the neighbouring property. Policy Des 12 does not support proposals
that will result in an unreasonable loss of privacy to neighbouring properties or will be
detrimental to neighbourhood amenity. The non-statutory guidance for householders
states that permission for balconies will not be granted where there is significant
overlooking into neighbouring property due to positioning and height results in loss of
privacy to neighbouring properties. Therefore, it is recommended that the balcony is
refused planning permission.

c) Public Comments

Development Management report of handling ‘Page 1F9g_e 4 0of 9 20/00455/FUL



One representation was received from an amenity body.
Material Planning Issues

- impact on built heritage; this is addressed in section a),
- materials; this is addressed in section a).

It is recommended that this application be mixed decision to part-approve and part-
refuse this application subject to the details below.

3.4 Conditions/reasons/informatives

Conditions:-
1. This permission relates to the proposed rear extension. **** ****,
2. This refusal relates to alterations to the rear fenestration, proposed balcony on

the rear elevation, and formation of double doors on the front elevation..
Reasons:-

1. In order to recognise the elements of the application which are compatible with
the character and appearance of the conservation area.

2. The proposed replacement stairs, alterations to the rear fenestration and double
doors would be detrimental to the character of the building. The proposed balcony
would result in significant overlooking of the neighbouring property.

Informatives
It should be noted that:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration
of three years from the date of this consent.

2. No development shall take place on the site until a 'Notice of Initiation of
Development' has been submitted to the Council stating the intended date on which the
development is to commence. Failure to do so constitutes a breach of planning control,
under Section 123(1) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997.

3. As soon as practicable upon the completion of the development of the site, as

authorised in the associated grant of permission, a '‘Notice of Completion of
Development' must be given, in writing to the Council.

Risk, Policy, compliance and governance impact

4.1 Provided planning applications are determined in accordance with statutory
legislation, the level of risk is low.

Equalities impact

Development Management report of handlil;rga—ge 192Page 50f9 20/00455/FUL



5.1 The equalities impact has been assessed as follows:

The application has been considered and has no impact in terms of equalities or
human rights.

Consultation and engagement

6.1 Pre-Application Process

There is no pre-application process history.

6.2 Publicity summary of representations and Community Council comments
The application was publicised on the weekly list of applications on 10 February 2020.
Neighbours were notified of the application on 06 February 2020 and 21 days were

allowed for comments. The proposals received one objection.

A full assessment of the representations can be found in the main report in the
Assessment section.

Background reading / external references

e To view details of the application go to

e Planning and Building Standards online services

Development Management report of handling —Page 1Fgga 6 0of9 20/00455/FUL


https://citydev-portal.edinburgh.gov.uk/idoxpa-web/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application

Statutory Development

Plan Provision Edinburgh Local Development Plan
Date registered 3 February 2020
Drawing 01 -10,
numbers/Scheme
Scheme 1
David R. Leslie
Chief Planning Officer
PLACE

The City of Edinburgh Council

Contact: Declan Semple, Planning Officer
E-mail:declan.semple@edinburgh.gov.uk Tel:0131 529 3968

Links - Policies

Relevant Policies:

Relevant policies of the Local Development Plan.

LDP Policy Env 6 (Conservation Areas - Development) sets out criteria for assessing
development in a conservation area.

LDP Policy Des 12 (Alterations and Extensions) sets criteria for assessing alterations
and extensions to existing buildings.

Relevant Non-Statutory Guidelines

Non-statutory guidelines 'GUIDANCE FOR HOUSEHOLDERS' provides guidance
for proposals to alter or extend houses or flats.

Non-statutory guidelines 'LISTED BUILDINGS AND CONSERVATION AREAS'
provides guidance on repairing, altering or extending listed buildings and unlisted
buildings in conservation areas.

Other Relevant policy guidance

Development Management report of handlil;rga—ge 194Page 70f9 20/00455/FUL



The Craigmillar Park Conservation Area Character Appraisal emphasises the
predominance of high quality stone-built Victorian architecture of limited height which
provides homogeneity through building lines, heights, massing and the use of
traditional materials, and the predominant residential use.

Development Management report of handling ‘Page 1@@ 8of9 20/00455/FUL



Appendix 1

Consultations

No consultations undertaken.

END

Development Management report of handI'Fga—ge 196Page 90f9 20/00455/FUL



Comments for Planning Application 20/00455/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00455/FUL

Address: 131 Mayfield Road Edinburgh

Proposal: Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacement external stair and french doors
to front of property.

Case Officer: Declan Semple

Customer Details
Name: Dr The Architectural Heritage Society of Scotland
Address: 15 Rutland Square, Edinburgh EH1 2BE

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Amenity Body

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above planning application. The proposals relate
to the property, located within Craigmillar Park Conservation Area and include external alterations.
The applicant wishes to modify single storey extension to the rear of the property; to create a
balcony and install French doors; also to replace external stairs. The panel has discussed the
case and is concerned about the impact that can be made by the proposed alterations.

According to the Historic Environment Scotland "Managing Change" Series, new external fixtures
must be sited to minimise impact on the architectural integrity and fabric of the building, and
materials, such as uPVC, shouldn't be encouraged and won't be permitted.

Policy Env 6 in the Edinburgh Local Plan (LDP) states that proposals to the development within a
conservation area or affecting its setting will be permitted which preserve or enhance the special

character or appearance of the conservation area and demonstrate high standards of design and
utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment.

The use of uPVC, mentioned in the drawings (all new doors, windows, rooflight in the extension
and the proposed infill of the balcony opening in the external wall), is not acceptable, according to

the city's guidance on Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas, 2016, p. 22, 24).

Accordingly, the panel wishes to object to the application.

Page 197



Comments for Planning Application 20/00455/FUL

Application Summary

Application Number: 20/00455/FUL

Address: 131 Mayfield Road Edinburgh

Proposal: Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacement external stair and french doors
to front of property.

Case Officer: Declan Semple

Customer Details
Name: Not Available
Address: Not Available

Comment Details

Commenter Type: Amenity Body

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Comment Reasons:

Comment:

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the above planning application. The proposals relate
to the property, located within Craigmillar Park Conservation Area and include external alterations.
The applicant wishes to modify single storey extension to the rear of the property; to create a
balcony and install French doors; also to replace external stairs. The panel has discussed the
case and is concerned about the impact that can be made by the proposed alterations.

According to the Historic Environment Scotland "Managing Change" Series, new external fixtures
must be sited to minimise impact on the architectural integrity and fabric of the building, and
materials, such as uPVC, shouldn't be encouraged and won't be permitted.

Policy Env 6 in the Edinburgh Local Plan (LDP) states that proposals to the development within a
conservation area or affecting its setting will be permitted which preserve or enhance the special

character or appearance of the conservation area and demonstrate high standards of design and
utilise materials appropriate to the historic environment.

The use of uPVC, mentioned in the drawings (all new doors, windows, rooflight in the extension
and the proposed infill of the balcony opening in the external wall), is not acceptable, according to

the city's guidance on Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas, 2016, p. 22, 24).

Accordingly, the panel wishes to object to the application.

Page 198



*€EDINBVRGH

THE CITY OF EDINBURGH COUNCIL

Business Centre G.2 Waverley Court 4 East Market Street Edinburgh EH8 8BG Email: planning.support@edinburgh.gov.uk

Applications cannot be validated until all the necessary documentation has been submitted and the required fee has been paid.
Thank you for completing this application form:
ONLINE REFERENCE 100268260-002

The online reference is the unique reference for your online form only. The Planning Authority will allocate an Application Number when
your form is validated. Please quote this reference if you need to contact the planning Authority about this application.

Applicant or Agent Details

Are you an applicant or an agent? * (An agent is an architect, consultant or someone else acting
on behalf of the applicant in connection with this application) |:| Applicant Agent

Agent Details

Please enter Agent details

Company/Organisation: les mccaskey architectural design services
Ref. Number: You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
First Name: * les Building Name:
Last Name: * mecaskey Building Number: 182
Address 1 18a
Telephone Number: * _ (Street): *
Extension Number: Address 2: Rothsay Place
Mobile Number: Town/City: * Edinburgh
Fax Number: Country: * Scotland
Postcode: * EH3 75Q
Email Address: * |

Is the applicant an individual or an organisation/corporate entity? *

Individual |:| Organisation/Corporate entity

Page 199 Page 1 of 5




Applicant Details

Please enter Applicant details

Title: Mr You must enter a Building Name or Number, or both: *
Other Title: Building Name:

First Name: * M Building Number: 131

Last Name: * STEVENS (Strooty - MAYFIELD ROAD
Company/Organisation Address 2:

Telephone Number: * Town/City: * EDINBURGH
Extension Number: Country: * SCOTLAND
Mobile Number: _ Postcode: * EH9 3AN
Fax Number:

Email Address: * _

Site Address Details

Planning Authority: City of Edinburgh Council

Full postal address of the site (including postcode where available):

Address 1: GF

Address 2: 131 MAYFIELD ROAD

Address 3:

Address 4:

Address 5:

Town/City/Settlement: EDINBURGH

Post Code: EH9 3AN

Please identify/describe the location of the site or sites

Northing 671030 Easting 326776

Page 200

Page 2 of 5




Description of Proposal

Please provide a description of your proposal to which your review relates. The description should be the same as given in the
application form, or as amended with the agreement of the planning authority: *
(Max 500 characters)

SINGLE STOREY EXTENSION AND FRENCH DOORS AND BALCONY TO EXTERNAL ELEVATION

Type of Application

What type of application did you submit to the planning authority? *

Application for planning permission (including householder application but excluding application to work minerals).
D Application for planning permission in principle.
D Further application.

|:| Application for approval of matters specified in conditions.

What does your review relate to? *

Refusal Notice.

D Grant of permission with Conditions imposed.

|:| No decision reached within the prescribed period (two months after validation date or any agreed extension) — deemed refusal.

Statement of reasons for seeking review

You must state in full, why you are a seeking a review of the planning authority’s decision (or failure to make a decision). Your statement
must set out all matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. If necessary this can be provided as a
separate document in the ‘Supporting Documents’ section: * (Max 500 characters)

Note: you are unlikely to have a further opportunity to add to your statement of appeal at a later date, so it is essential that you produce
all of the information you want the decision-maker to take into account.

You should not however raise any new matter which was not before the planning authority at the time it decided your application (or at
the time expiry of the period of determination), unless you can demonstrate that the new matter could not have been raised before that
time or that it not being raised before that time is a consequence of exceptional circumstances.

SUPPORTING STATEMENT

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the Yes D No
Determination on your application was made? *

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are raising the new matter, why it was not raised with the appointed officer before
your application was determined and why you consider it should be considered in your review: * (Max 500 characters)

Reference made to adjacent property planning approval for french doors and external balcony and stairs

Page 3 of 5

Page 201




Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with your notice of review and intend
to rely on in support of your review. You can attach these documents electronically later in the process: * (Max 500 characters)

01 location plan 02 site plan 03 lower ground floor plan 04 ground floor plan 05 sections 06 proposed elevations 07 existing
ground floor plan / rear elevation 08 existing lower ground floor plan photo of rear elevation adjacent property balcony and
doors House Holder application form Decision Notice

Application Details

Please provide the application reference no. given to you by your planning 20/00455/FUL
authority for your previous application.

What date was the application submitted to the planning authority? * 03/02/2020

What date was the decision issued by the planning authority? * 03/04/2020

Review Procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure to be used to determine your review and may at any time during the review
process require that further information or representations be made to enable them to determine the review. Further information may be
required by one or a combination of procedures, such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or
inspecting the land which is the subject of the review case.

Can this review continue to a conclusion, in your opinion, based on a review of the relevant information provided by yourself and other
parties only, without any further procedures? For example, written submission, hearing session, site inspection. *

Yes D No

In the event that the Local Review Body appointed to consider your application decides to inspect the site, in your opinion:

Can the site be clearly seen from a road or public land? * Yes D No
Is it possible for the site to be accessed safely and without barriers to entry? * Yes D No

Checklist — Application for Notice of Review

Please complete the following checklist to make sure you have provided all the necessary information in support of your appeal. Failure
to submit all this information may result in your appeal being deemed invalid.

Have you provided the name and address of the applicant?. * Yes D No

Have you provided the date and reference number of the application which is the subject of this Yes D No

review? *

If you are the agent, acting on behalf of the applicant, have you provided details of your name Yes D No D N/A

and address and indicated whether any notice or correspondence required in connection with the
review should be sent to you or the applicant? *

Have you provided a statement setting out your reasons for requiring a review and by what Yes D No
procedure (or combination of procedures) you wish the review to be conducted? *

Note: You must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your application. Your statement must set out all matters you consider
require to be taken into account in determining your review. You may not have a further opportunity to add to your statement of review
at a later date. It is therefore essential that you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and evidence that you rely
on and wish the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review.

Please attach a copy of all documents, material and evidence which you intend to rely on Yes D No
(e.g. plans and Drawings) which are now the subject of this review *

Note: Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or modification, variation or removal of a
planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval of matters specified in conditions, it is advisable to provide the
application reference number, approved plans and decision notice (if any) from the earlier consent.

Page 4 of 5

Page 202




Declare — Notice of Review

I/We the applicant/agent certify that this is an application for review on the grounds stated.

Declaration Name: Mr les mccaskey

Declaration Date: 17/06/2020

Page 203

Page 50of 5




Proposal Details

Proposal Name
Proposal Description
Address

Local Authority

Application Online Reference

Application Status

Form

Main Details

Checklist

Declaration

Supporting Documentation
Email Notification

Attachment Details
Notice of Review

0O ~NOoO O WN -

Notice_of Review-2.pdf
Application_Summary.pdf
Notice of Review-002.xml

100268260

EEXTENSION AND ALTERATIONS

GF, 131 MAYFIELD ROAD, EDINBURGH, EH9

3AN
City of Edinburgh Council
100268260-002

complete
complete
complete
complete
complete
complete

System

Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached
Attached

Page 204

A4
A4
A4
A3
A3
A3
A3
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
A4
AO
AO
AO
AO



HOUSEHOLDER APPLICATION FOR PLANNING
PERMISSION

Town and Couniry Planning (SCOTLAND) ACT 1887
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS
2013
Please refer to the accompanying Guidance Notes when completing this application
PLEASE NOTE IT IS FASTER AND SIMPLER TO SUBMIT PLANNING APPLICATIONS
ELECTRONICALLY VIA htips:/eplanning.scotland.gov.uk

1. Applicant’s Details 2. Agent’s Details (if any)

Title M Ref No.

Forename 1 TPwWA Forename LE<

Surname CTRUELS Surname W LS\ e G /

Company Name Company Name

Building No./Name 12| Building No./Name e A

Address Line 1 MR FEWD Roro.- Address Line 1 QQWSV"\‘( ()(/ BCE

Address Line 2 Address Line 2

Town/City 0 !@&@C\'\’ Town/City E& NI bm,\

Postcode 4 3BAS Postcode S fSGe

Telephone Telephone sl

Mobife ; Mobile L

Fax Fax =

Email| N | o |
A

3. Address or Location of Proposed Development (please include postcode)

13 WA/ Tl PCowd
0 OGURCKH:
a4 3A,90

NB. I you do not have a full site address please identify the location of the site(s) in your accompanying
docuinentation.

4. Describe the Proposed Works

Please describe accurately the work proposed:

SN STOREY TXTmas oo AD By, TO RoaR
ROPUMUOMMITY TIXTOANL STE2 A FRrenal Doz,
T Faxl o Queeteny,

Have the works already been started or completed Yes [ ] No El/

If yes, please state date of completion, or if not completed, the start date:

Date started: Date completed:

Page 205




If yes, please explain why work has slready tzken place in advance of making this spplication.

5. Pre-Application Discussion

Have you received any advice from the planning authority in relation to this proposal? Yes [ | No E/
If yes, please provide details about the advice below:

in what format was the advice given? Meeting [ ] Telephone call [] Letter [] Email []
Have you agreed or are you discussing a Processing Agreement with the planning authority? Yes [ No []

Please provide a description of the advice you were given and who you received the advice from:

Name: Date: Ref No.:
6. Trees
Are there any trees on or adjacent to the application site? Yes [ ] No E}/

If yes, please show on drawings any trees (including known protected frees) and their canopy spread as they relate
fo the proposed site and indicate if any are to be cut back or felled.

7. Changes to Vehicle Access and Parking

Are you proposing a new altered vehicle access to or from a public road? Yes | No EJ/

If yes, please show in your drawings the position of any existing, altered or new access and explain the changes
you propose to make. You should also show existing footpaths and note if there with be any impact on these.

Are you proposing any changes to public paths, public rights of way or Yes [ ] No !E/
affecting any public rights of access?

If yes, please show on your drawings the position of any affected areas and explain the changes you propose fto
make, including arrangement for continuing or alternative public access.

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging and open parking) currently
Exist on the application site? ‘

How many vehicle parking spaces (garaging@nd open parking) do you
propose on the site? (i.e. the total of existing and any new spaces or \
reduced number of spaces)

Please show on your drawings the position of existing and proposed parking spaces and identify if these are for the
use of particular types of vehicles (e.g. parking for disabled people, coaches, HGV vehicles, efc.

Page 206




8. Planning Service Emplovee/Elected Member Interest

Are you / the applicant / the applicant’s spouse or partner, a member of staff within the planning s’e;r}v}ze or an
elected member of the planning authority? Yes [ ] No [+

Or, are you / the applicant / the applicant's spouse or partner a close relative of a member of staff in jhe planning
service or elected member of the planning authority? Yes[ ] No

If you have answered yes please provide details:

DECLARATION

|, the applisant / agent certify that this is an application for planning permission and that accompanying
plans/drawings and additional information are provided as part of this application. I hereby confirm that the
information given in this form is true and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

I, the spplicant/agent hereby certify that the attached Land Ownership Certificate has been completed I]/

1, the apptlitamt/agent hereby certify that requisite notice has been given to other land owners and /or agricultur;
tenants Yes [ | No [ ]N/A

, . \
Signature: ‘%J Name: | [ WA (CWRNGTY | Date: (Z?_’;V\\‘ZO

Any personal data that you have been asked to provide on this from will be held and processed in accordance with
the requirements of the 1998 Data Protection Act.

Pages207




e (UK
. Planning
.~ Maps

131 Mayfield Road, Edinburgh, EH9 3AN

\_

Map area bounded by: 326705,670959 326847,671101. Produced on 23 January 2020 from the OS National Geographic Database. Reproduction
in whole or part is prohibited without the prior permission of Ordnance Survey. © Crown copyright 2020. Supplied by UKPlanningMaps.com a

licensed OS partner (100054135). Unique plan reference: p2buk/421491/571581

Page 208



Notice of Review

In response to the planning authorities reasons for mixed decision refusal.

The applicant would disagree with and dispute the planning authorities
decision for refusal of rear French door and balcony installation.

It is the applicants opinion that the proposed alterations to fenestration and proposed
introduction of a new balcony to the rear of the property in terms of scale,form and design
would certainly not have a detrimental impact on either the property or the

surrounding conservation area.

The applicant would state that the introduction of said doors, balcony
and glazed balustrade would sit comfortably on the rear elevation
and not detract from the character of the building.

The applicant would make reference to previous approval granted in 2002

reference ( 02/02506/FUL ) to the adjacent property at no 133

Granting approval for new french doors and a substantial external cast iron balcony
and access stair down to the garden level.

(offering no privacy screening to applicants property )

The applicants proposals are of a much reduced scale and do include suitable privacy
screening to the said adjacent property.

The scale, design and lightweight materials proposed in respect of the new balcony would
provide an attractive addition and would not be detrimental in any way to

the building elevation.

No public objections or complaints have been submitted in respect of the proposals.

It is hoped that the review board shall look favourably in respect of this appeal and take into
consideration the points raised by the applicant in support of his appeal.

Page 209



‘p“gg”mﬁw Elr T s

CHEYT U s ~ I\ P



%8¢ attached photos. Spk later.

T |
@
=
o
(1]
z
8
3
o
B
8
[=]
=z
1
w
£
5]

in/mail/u/0?ik=eeB267834b&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-a%3Ar-4965867533157782505&simpl=msg-a%3Ar




€D!NBVRGH'

TORILPG ALK

Les McCaskey. Mr Tim Stevens.
18A Rothesay Place 131 Mayfield Road
Edinburgh Edinburgh
EH37SQ

Decision date: 3 April 2020
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND) ACTS
DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2013
Single storey extension and balcony to rear, replacement external stair and french
doors to front of property.

At 131 Mayfield Road Edinburgh

Application No: 20/00455/FUL

DECISION NOTICE

With reference to your application for Planning Permission registergd on 3 February
2020, this has been decided by Local Delegated Decision. The Gouncil in exercise o
its powers under the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Acts aqd regulatlons now
determines the application as mixed decision in accordance with the pa ars given
in the application.

Any condition(s) attached to this consent, with reasons for imposing them, or reasons
for refusal, are shown below;

*kkk kkkk

1. This permission relates to the proposed rear extension.

2. This refusal relates to alterations to the rear fenestration, proposed balcony on
the rear elevation, and formation of double doors on the front elevation..

Reasons:-

1. In order to recognise the elements of the application which are compatible with
the character and appearance of the conservation area.

2. The proposed replacement stairs, alterations to the rear fenestration and double
doors would be detrimental to the character of the building. The proposed balcony
would result in significant overlooking of the neighbouring property.

Page 212

Declan Semple, Planning Officer, Householders Area Team, Place Directorate.
Tel 0131 529 3968, Email declan.semple@edinburgh.gov.uk,
Waverley Court, 4 East Market Street, Edinburgh, EH8 8BG



Informatives:-
It should be noted that:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be commenced no later than the expiration
of three years from the date of this consent.

Please see the guidance notes on our decision page for further information, including
how to appeal or review your decision.

Drawings 01 - 10, represent the determined scheme. Full details of the application can

be found on the Planning and Building Standards Online Services

The reason why the Council made this decision is as follows:

This determination does not carry with it any necessary consent or approval for the
Proposed development under other statutory enactments.

Should you have g Specific enquiry regarding this decision please contact Declan
Semple directly on 0131 529 3968.

'D/&wa;_g

P
Chief Planning Officer

PLACE

The City of Edinburgh Council

Page 213



'+.0

MoaTwoO L ! Oeoa gAY W

V2|

T 3
i

1

i

i

f/».
h Y
s,
x\
.
3 ,

o ooNasuY
/wa?& v

Page 214

l\\J

| A,
a
|

hy §o //: N
o am =
A~ | A - - -
L | o
nk m A
N |
- | |
| @n |
| | |
/J SMNN0OV7S )—4-2 1 1 ‘ - _ - 1% |
_m N
NPy S — 3 |
. z _
T L
S A ) uf )
m
M , (]
LAOGL - z —— o




Page 215

LOUAE. (R To? Cutio DD



E A GEE% FAREESEFREFTEY S, | 5 o =
LAND OWNERSHIP CERTIFICATES

Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1987
Regulation 15 of the Town and Couniry Planning (Development Management Procedure) (Scotland)
Regulations 2013

CERTE?QCATE A, B, C, D OR CERTIFICATEE
MUST BE COMPLETED BY ALL APPLICANTS

CERTIFICATE A
Certificate A is for use where the applicant is the only owner of the land to which the appfication
relates and none of the land is agricultural fand.

{ hereb rtify that - ( _ -
SReay ESIGH S A’\’)\’)C\CM\/ )
(1) No person other than mwysei~ was owner of any part of the land to
which the application relates at the beginning of the period of 21 days ending with the V/

date of the application.
(2) None of the land to which the application relates constitutes or forms part of [

agricultural land.
Signed: B

On behalf of: WA T ST RS
Date: 2\ \"L(J

CERTIFICATE B
Certificate B is for use where the applicant is not the owner or sole owner of the land to which the
application relates and/or where the land is agricultural land and where all owners/agricultural tenants
have been identified.

Date of Service of
Notice

/

{2y None of the land fo w/hffch the application relates constitutes or forms part

agricuitural fand

/ or

y
{3) The land or part of/fd’ie tand to which the application relates constitutes or f6rms part of
agricuitural land gnd | have served hofice on every person other

than myself  / who, at the beginning of the period of 2¥/days ending with
the date of t@/@épp%ication was an agricultural tenant. These persofis are:

Page 216



120 W Qzoz IAWn~ D |
YO ANRAAYN S ﬁ*

SORLLYAH DY + NOISTHL X AESOA0AY ;

OS| T 20 N2 2A\AMNQT o
WY~ PV ONNoE]
T\«é NS Oy 03)“/ : )

g__
il

fﬁe&& %és IS Ay - T = AN /,
= _A b
| e meeen - - e - — B ) M\J‘ /\J\ gwm i 1...\r :
” »Mttu. / o s frnr = | ﬁ_m_ =1

] _ 'e)
Aezed | *. / 4 B
COE L v G0 P2okx Y3 var b : A TS |
1 S R S S R

HNDAS DnEhvml
No G DM . |

v ey,

WAASEID WA e D 0 oot A
WAVWANMY. =g DINVALWSY ol Ovang) L *
B DA PVIND SV S Ravmns N |
L)
A9 mkuﬁrr,n. oz Haiwm S 2wd ~ASE £ 4 AOWT™ AANND UYNGA N0 M
gﬂng..v g e\ =< VATYI0 2 Qé LRN=A XD XDA |
SAMO /SWWAD DIUS DD VNS DPIND AW W mows  (§)
Sy~ewal o — — — ) SV am vwash ey Ay @

—— i



yo DN
Q2007 /YD
HKoA0aNA3

ayod <dnauiyw il |
SHLLYZT LY +NOSNAL X <XdSONYd |

\’”“, s

_ - s ¢ .a_b |
\?4 mufnwl\,}wﬁﬂm ——
v i ~Zk
- | L )
B2
By
C08 ) KooV m PO
WINAS ATV YOTV I W,Q\W 7
- - e\ ¥
200NAT] B\ =~
o vl S Vi
AAYA DR MSEL O\ B ~ .
Tiiw% 2O0Q reayn T | /
2 \\
1

, 2 .
R < K M . %
L |
[
.

QS ¥4 ACA <020

saaonal T

_M,Zx Zy
\ w, nggw

il AN
A \wk@mw
AT J

A TN
T, gL P 20¥5H
[ 20 M0 |

e yorevesy as o) T\
FOYSTNT) O Cyod YD ;

3

<

2

Z

N
\E

—

SRR N0 |

A

2\ AN DOOwWAS
Cr.vﬁrg IRV CUAYYD Laaate 9 o

UG VG ONYOOM0 YD WSy b

-SNOLMAMY) oy
SW NI

Page 2r<N

Wi A ) I




YOS RN
STPRLY AR + QOISTENLXE dASAd0dd

0290 AYNOWD

HoNaNad
A

22 RUDOTS

]

YA
MO0

+6 W Q01
AU

-Efagem219

AN

o

%\(«53 S AV
L S20A dnd oy

\ MW Wt | (T SNaULgong .» uuka,ﬁ
A r L f
/25@@%&@ N .;«r ﬂrdﬁw Fw%\sg@ \NEQ
= AFA A0 DEMIES Y Iy \Girrmd@
I 3\ 'i {0 AL N
GNDS NOZ M.i VA48 f,wmm_ . {_ DWXID i N
i,w 1” ‘ig./«uu s - ‘gl . ),.,,,Wiﬁgu * nmuaw . (I T WS ,
. | T, & T | Tomovaa | (1R
AT - - BNl | J
” i N
| N N
= 1N ol A = gl n J
ﬁﬁ o)y IT T 3 Wi *\ 3
2014 ! i 41 ~
_. VHAS % ,_ | o Ll N N
F S 1, I C T
YT XY \.\\I-T”w : I _* b1 ) AP ] 3
ﬁ,(z.@n_kumk __ ; | W [ a9 T w I,.Tw
o w - 1&. ¥ fJgJ i\/\ |
4 - m . 771 A o |
: — il - [w — £ § LN : o .
T - . ) ) L e < |
| o T _ 5 Tl ; “ _ :
i : i __ - . m— - < =
[ oWy JE\U«Q m A7 o 1 z + 1 . ;
ALY O TOWE7 = S B A ﬂ
. a a T Lo 207 |
M _MOVID00) i
n ‘07, %00 | | |
a 1
w
- AT D a.tlx,m _ ” ‘ \L_
. | ATwWAAL cRE2A A T
2o MY €

' SSMITH
R e - Y

{

)

\

Ay
P&/

2T

CYONS 200w
w& \ﬁ.\.‘ had l.wm —




0 PN

Q7T Ny

PO NIQY
QAyo2d <N yw gl
YO\ TRLLUAR OASO IO

A Wiog -
LI LoD =
DIVPAD \/ta%ﬁ s o s

) SO M2NZ 1Y a0

Qo) CoLLY oI _\sys

..,.mi
_ )
b
IS
N =

oL Y \Nos

LR

Aawomnog

- e S

e e




	Agenda
	4.1 Minutes
	Minutes
	The City of Edinburgh Planning Local Review Body (Panel 2)
	10.00am, Wednesday 5 August 2020
	Present:  Councillors Booth, Child, Osler and Rose.
	1.  Appointment of Convener
	2.  Minutes
	3.  Planning Local Review Body Procedure
	4. Request for Review – 30 Belmont Gardens, Edinburgh
	5. Request for Review – 3 Fingal Place, Edinburgh
	6. Request for Review – 20 Regent Terrace, Edinburgh
	7. Request for Review – 8 Saughton Road North, Edinburgh




	5.1 Local Review Body - Procedure
	6.1 Bonnington Farm, Bonnington, Kirknewton
	Item 6.1 (a) - Bonnington Road - Decision Notice and Report of Handling
	tem 6.1 (b) - Bonnington Road - LRB Form and Supporting Documents
	tem 6.1 (c) - Bonnington RoaPages from LRB Form and Supporting Documents-2

	6.2 37 Burns Street, Edinburgh
	Item 6.2 (a) - 37 Burns Street - Decision Notice and Report of Handling
	Item 6.2 (b) - 37 Burns StreetLRB Form and Supporting Documents_Redacted

	6.3 131 Mayfield Road, Edinburgh
	Item 6.3(a) - 131 Mayfield Road - Decision Notice and Report of Handling
	Item 6.3(b) - 131 Mayfield Road - LRB Form and Supporting Documents_Redacted




